OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date:

Thursday 24 March 2022

Time:

7.00 pm

Venue:

Room B-06, Town Hall, Lambeth Town Hall, Brixton Hill, London, SW2 1RW*

*In line with Public Health guidance and continuing Covid-19 precautions, committee members will
attend the meeting in person at Lambeth Town Hall, with members of the public and press, visiting
members and officers invited to attend virtually. Instructions overleaf.
Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov

Members of the Committee
Councillor Tim Briggs, Councillor Liz Atkins (Chair), Councillor Mary Atkins (Vice-Chair), Councillor
Jonathan Bartley, Councillor Stephen Donnelly, Councillor Joshua Lindsey (Vice-Chair), Councillor
Marianna Masters (Vice-Chair), Councillor Irfan Mohammed and Councillor Martin Tiedemann

Co-optees
Lynette Murphy-O'Dwyer, Frank Roberts, Baboucarr Jallow and Simon Funnell

Substitute Members
Councillor Scarlett O'Hara, Councillor Joanna Reynolds, Councillor Joe Corry-Roake, Deputy Mayor,
Councillor Pauline George and Councillor Jessica Leigh

Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
David Rose, Telephone: 020 7926 8703; Email: mburton2@lambeth.gov.uk

Published on: Wednesday 16 March 2022

Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author are shown on the front page of
each report.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

How to access the meeting
In line with legislation, Committee members must attend the meeting in person at Lambeth Town Hall.
Reflecting current Public Health guidance to help prevent the spread of Covid-19, members of the public,
visiting Members and officers are invited to attend virtually. If you wish to attend the meeting in person,
public access can be made available for limited numbers, but please contact Democratic Services
(details on the front sheet of the agenda or Democracy@lambeth.gov.uk) before the meeting so that
arrangements can be made.

For Members of the Public
If you want to watch the live broadcast, this meeting is available to view as a Microsoft Teams Live
Event. If you are new to Microsoft Teams, clicking here will take you to the meeting page where you will
be prompted to download the app or watch on the web instead. Please follow the instructions to watch
on the web. On doing so, you can join our live event anonymously.
Members of the public wishing to make representations at this meeting must inform Democratic Services
(see front page for contact details) by 12pm on Wednesday 23 March 2022.

For Members of the Committee
In line with legislation, committee members will attend the meeting in person at Lambeth Town Hall.

For elected Members of the Council
Councillors who are not members of the Committee but wish to attend the meeting must inform
Democratic Services by 12pm on Wednesday 23 March 2022. Upon doing so they will be invited to
attend the meeting virtually.

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.

Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact
Democratic Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office).
Please note that the Chair of the meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of
reasons including disruption caused by the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that
it can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the
website www.lambeth.gov.uk)

Security
Please be aware that you may be subject to bag searches and asked to sign in at meetings that are held
in public. Failure to comply with these requirements could mean you are denied access to the meeting.
There is also limited seating which is allocated on a first come first serve basis, and you should aim to
arrive at least 15 minutes before the meeting commences. For more details please visit: our website.
Please contact Democratic Services for further information – 020 7926 2170 or the number on the front
page.

Directions to Lambeth Town Hall, London, SW2 1RW
Lambeth Town Hall is located at the southern end of Brixton Road and is a highly visible landmark. It can
be accessed via a number of bus routes and is a short walk from both Brixton Station and Brixton
Underground Station.

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY BE CHANGED AT THE MEETING

Page
Nos.
1

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
Under Standing Order 4.4, where any councillor has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct (para.
4)) in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the Council, a
committee, sub-committee or joint committee, they must withdraw from
the meeting room during the whole of the consideration of that matter
and must not participate in any vote on that matter unless a
dispensation has been obtained from the Monitoring Officer.

2

Minutes of Previous Meeting

1-8

To agree the minutes of the meeting of 2 February 2022 as an accurate
record of the meeting.

3

2021 Safer Lambeth Partnership Scrutiny Report

9 - 126

Wards: All
Report Authorised by: Executive Director Adult Social Care: Fiona
Connolly
Contact for enquiries: Trevor East, Community Safety Partnership
Manager, TEast@lambeth.gov.uk; and Anthony Lewis, Assistant
Director, Community Safety, ALewis3@lambeth.gov.uk

4

Health Inequalities

127 - 290

Wards: All
Report Authorised by: Andrew Eyres: Strategic Director of Adults and
Health
Contact for enquiries: Ruth Hutt, Director of Public Health, 020 7926
7196, rhutt@lambeth.gov.uk; and, Bimpe Oki, Consultant, Public Health
020 7926 9678, boki@lambeth.gov.uk

5

Work Programme
Wards: All
Contact for Information: David Rose, Democratic Services, 020 7926
1037 drose@lambeth.gov.uk

291 - 338

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MINUTES
Wednesday 2 February 2022 at 7.00 pm
Committee Room B-06, Lambeth Town Hall, London SW2 1RW

Members Present:

Councillor Liz Atkins (Chair), Councillor Mary Atkins (Vice-Chair),
Councillor Jonathan Bartley, Councillor Stephen Donnelly, Councillor
Joshua Lindsey (Vice-Chair), Councillor Irfan Mohammed and
Councillor Martin Tiedemann

Apologies:

Councillor Tim Briggs and Councillor Marianna Masters

1

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
With regard to the Skills and Employment Strategy, Councillor Mary Atkins declared that
she was a member of the Strategic Skills Board, but that this did not amount to a
pecuniary interest.
Councillor Joshua Lindsey declared in relation to the Skills and Employment Strategy
that his employer, Transport for London, had a skills academy in the borough.

2

Minutes of Previous Meeting
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 10 January 2022 be approved as
a correct record of proceedings.

3

Events Scrutiny Commission Action Plan Update
Councillor Mary Atkins, Chair of the Commission and Vice-Chair of Overview and
Scrutiny Committee, introduced the report, stating that the Commission had concluded
two years earlier and this was the final update. The recommendations had a significant
impact on officers, Councillors and residents, including Friends’ Groups, in terms of the
way parks were used and how groups related to each other. She thanked officers for
their positive reception to the Commission and its recommendations.
The Committee then heard from witnesses.
The Chair read a statement from Councillor Nigel Haselden, Commission Member,
raising the following points:
 One of the key aims of the Commission was to strengthen existing practices and
policies, and many of the recommendations had been accepted. The action plan
set a framework for maximising the benefits from events.


A major part of the evidence base for the Commission was the day-long
stakeholders’ summit, which brought different groups together to discuss their
concerns around the use of parks for events in a constructive manner.

Page 2


Parks for London had recently judged Lambeth to have the best green spaces of
all 32 London boroughs, and this was a credit to the work of the Commission and
officers.

Councillor Linda Bray then addressed the Committee, stating the following:
 Many residents near Clapham Common had concerns about the damage to the
Common caused by events and the potential enclosure of the events site for
weeks at a time.


She questioned how much local businesses benefited from events.



There were concerns that the use of Clapham Common for events could be
contrary to legislation.

Officers then provided the following information in response to questions from Members:
 The action plan formed the framework for events in parks and would be used as
events returned to normal in 2022. Some recommendations, such as those
around disability access, applied to parks generally and were not specific to
events.


There was an ongoing process regarding the need for Secretary of State approval for
Temporary Event structures on Clapham and Streatham Commons. Officers had a good
relationship with the Planning Inspectorate, with a planning consultant on board to
support the 2022 application. The Planning inspectorate had indicated that if consent
was granted for 2022, it could be possible to submit multiple-year applications for 2023
onwards.



While park usage remained high in 2021, it had decreased from the significantly
higher levels seen during the lockdowns of 2020, and there was no evidence of a
long-term change in the way residents used parks.



2022 would be the first year of using the framework and audit process, and
officers would work with event organisers on-site to monitor adherence to the
framework. Outcomes would be monitored after events, and if there were
failings, officers would explore the most effective ways of ensuring targets would
be met in future years.



The safety of park users was not part of the Commission’s focus, but was
included in the Events Strategy. As part of a wider area of work on safer spaces,
officers had undertaken a review of safety of public places, including parks.
Funding for lighting and CCTV on Clapham Common and Rush Common had
been secured as a result of this review.



The Events team had worked with Licensing to ensure a condition was now
required for ingress and egress plans, and for security staff to be trained on the
safety of women and young people. Stewards were required for large events.



There had been limited opportunities for job opportunities linked to events in
2020 and 2021, but efforts were in place to improve this in 2022 and beyond.
There was a programme for young people in the local area to gain work
experience at events held in Brockwell Park, with Lambeth Made and Elevate
finding suitable candidates. There was a focus on jobs associated with events
more widely, not just on-site, such as with promoters and organisers. This
programme would be a pilot in 2022, with the aim of increasing the offer in future

Page 3
years.
Members of the Committee thanked officers and Commission Members for their efforts,
both during the Commission and in building on the recommendations.
RESOLVED:
1. That the Committee welcomes the response to the Commission report and the
action plan.
2. That job opportunities relating to events be maximised, particularly in
disadvantaged areas such as Tulse Hill.
3. That the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on events continue to be reviewed,
and that the appropriateness of the framework be considered.
4. That the Committee requests that the Council prioritise personal safety in parks,
both during events and normal use, in light of the murder of Sarah Everard and
continuing youth violence.
5. That the Council listens and engages with key stakeholders to minimise and
mitigate against potential negative impacts from events.

4

Work Programme
Members suggested the following areas for potential future scrutiny:
 A holistic item on the Council’s work in addressing the cost of living crisis,
particularly for the borough’s most vulnerable residents, including fuel poverty,
fare rises, National Insurance increases and evictions. This should also include
the work between the Council and other bodies such as credit unions, private
sector landlords, central government (particularly the DWP).


A review/update of the waste and leisure contracts after they had been in place
for one year.



Registrars, following reports of people being unable to book ceremonies.

Members requested data on evictions in order to assess the effectiveness of the
Council’s policies and strategies.
RESOLVED: That, subject to the comments above, the work programme and action log
(Appendix 1) be noted.
5

Skills and Employment Strategy - One Year On
The Chair expressed concern at the absence of Cllr Jacqui Dyer, the Cabinet member
responsible for employment and skills, and in her absence that neither of the coDirectors for Sustainable Growth & Opportunity were present
Alison May, Assistant Director, Skills and Employment, introduced the report, stating
that:
 The Strategy was published in November 2020, formed part of the Economic
Resilience Strategy, and aimed to address both the impact of Covid-19 and the

Page 4
long-term economic challenges facing the borough.


There were multiple sources of funding for Skills and Employment, with
significant amounts of Neighbourhood Community Infrastructure Levy (NCIL)
being used this year.



The long-term challenges of the Strategy included maximising opportunities and
addressing inequalities in the labour market.

The Committee then heard from witnesses.
Grace English, co-CEO, High Trees, addressed the Committee, raising the following
points:
 High Trees was a Community Development Trust based in Tulse Hill which
provided a range of integrated services across welfare, children and young
people, and employment and training. It had a contract with the Council worth
approximately £300,000 per year to provide employment and skills support for
500 learners.


A range of accredited and non-accredited courses were provided, including
ESOL, basic IT courses and courses to support people into work.



These courses formed a key part of engagement with residents, as people often
attended a course and then accessed further support from High Trees. It would
be significantly more difficult to provide such a wide range of support without the
adult education offer.



High Trees worked with other services across the community to ensure residents
could access the most appropriate support.

Giovanni Dyke, who had participated in an employment programme run by Lambeth
Made, then addressed the Committee, stating that:
 He had attended a summer course on e-commerce, where he created a website
to sell clothes and accessories. It had taught him how to establish and run a
business, which had helped him to get a job as a content creator.


During the programme he found a part-time job, and Lambeth Made had been
flexible to ensure he could fit his studies around work.



Giovanni had found out about the programme through the Lambeth Made
Instagram account.



After the course finished, Lambeth Made continued to support him, such as by
having a post-programme interview. He would recommend the programme as it
had helped him progress in his desired career.

Officers and witnesses then provided the following information in response to questions
from Members:
 Training providers were assessed and evaluated at least three times per year.
KPIs, and data such as attendance and learner outcomes were used to ensure
value for money was achieved. As well as a self-assessment from the provider,
learners were also asked for feedback. The quality of teaching and learning was
assessed both formally and informally, and CPD was provided for tutors and

Page 5
support staff.


The main benchmark for skills and employment programmes was the number of
learners entering work, although different courses had different target cohorts,
and therefore different expectations of outcomes. Many people who were
furthest from employment would need more support or multiple courses before
being ready to start work.



There had been cases where funding to providers had been stopped as a result
of performance reviews.



At its most recent self-assessment, the Adult Education team had judged its
performance to be ‘good’ rather than ‘outstanding’ due to pockets of weaker
performance such as in-work training. This was mostly due to Covid-19 and a
plan was in place to address this.



Steps 2 Success, a programme exclusively for care leavers, was one of the bestperforming programmes. Participants had to be ready to enter long-term
employment, and received one-to-one support from an employment consultant
that continued for six months after the end of the programme. The programme
had strong links particularly with the Civil Service, with 11 participants having
received job offers within the last year.



A major reason for the worse performance in apprenticeships was the reluctance
for businesses, particularly small businesses, to take on the risk of an
apprenticeship at a time of significant uncertainty. Apprenticeship levy funding
was being transferred to participating businesses to make apprenticeships more
appealing.



Recent migrants often first accessed ESOL courses, and would then find out
about other services, such as around employment and welfare advice. Providers
such as High Trees would signpost residents to other services when appropriate
and had good relationships with organisations across the borough.



The entire Employment and Skills Programme was currently being evaluated,
and officers would provide the specifications of the review to Committee
Members.



The data on the employment rate of Black residents was concerning. Analysis
was needed on the current programme offer and outcomes, as well as
information on the sectors that employed the largest numbers of Black residents.
This would be monitored by the Skills and Employment Board.



Youth Hubs were funded by the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP), with
stipulations on their operation, so the majority of referrals came from Job
Centres, rather than the Council.



The programme with Business Improvement Districts (BIDs) had been
unsuccessful, and officers had worked to assess why. The programme had
started in February 2020, had to be paused due to lockdown and even after
resuming was affected by the uncertainty and subsequent lockdowns. The
programme was currently closed, but would be remodelled with a view to
relaunch in the future.



Some industries, such as hospitality, had issues of people having unrealistic
views of the types of jobs available and a perception that it was not an area with

Page 6
long-term employment options.


Officers worked with children’s centres to ensure learners had access to a creche
in order to enable parents to participate in programmes. The Connecting
Communities programme had a budget to provide childcare for lone parents.



All programmes had outcomes-based KPIs, including the percentage of
participants entering employment. Different programmes would have different
targets; the rapid response programme for people who lost their job during the
pandemic would expect higher numbers of people finding jobs than an ESOL
course. Officers could provide data on the percentage of participants entering
employment by individual programme to the Committee.



There was a need to strengthen links between the Employment and Skills team
and schools, both mainstream and special schools. A new Careers Strategy was
in development which would cover primary school through to adulthood and
would complement the Skills and Employment Strategy.



Community engagement and communications were a key focus, particularly in
relation to engaging with young people. Officers used social media to publicise
new programmes, as well as attending Youth Hubs, schools, and working with
the Youth Offending Service.

RESOLVED:
1. That the Committee be provided with the full evaluation of the Skills and
Employment Programme.
2. That the findings of the review of the South London BID Recruitment Service be
shared with the Committee and be used to inform future, more strategic
programmes.
3. That vulnerable groups, particularly Black, Asian and Multi-Ethnic people, at risk
of falling out of employment be identified with a view of helping them return to
work, including the aftercare provided after the end of programmes.
4. That programmes be designed with flexibility, particularly for parents and carers,
such as the use of flexible hours, subsidised childcare and the consideration of a
four-day week pilot.
5. That the work between schools and Employment and Skills continue, and that the
Careers Strategy be shared with the Committee.
6. That social media messaging and promotion of programmes, particularly those
aimed at young people, be continued and improved.
7. That the role of Youth Hubs be reviewed for their effectiveness in helping young
people into work.
8. That the value for money of grants to external organisations be properly
assessed, with clear benchmarks for each programme.
9. That care leavers continue to be prioritised in being prepared for work,
considering the additional challenges faced.
10. That as far as possible, migrants be identified to ensure they can be wellinformed of their rights and the support available in a systematic manner.

Page 7

The meeting ended at 9.00 pm
CHAIR
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Thursday 24 March 2022
Date of Despatch: Wednesday 23 February 2022
Contact for Enquiries: Maria Burton
Tel: 020 7926 8703
E-mail: mburton2@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 9

Agenda Item 3

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 24 MARCH 2022

Report title: 2021 Safer Lambeth Partnership Scrutiny Report
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Jobs, Skills and Community Safety: Councillor Jacqui Dyer
Report Authorised by: Fiona Connelly, Acting Strategic Director of Children’s Services and
Executive Director Adult Social Care
Contact for enquiries: Trevor East, Community Safety Partnership Manager;
TEast@lambeth.gov.uk, and Anthony Lewis, Assistant Director, Community Safety;
ALewis3@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
This report has been developed in response to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s request for the
statutory crime and disorder annual scrutiny meeting in March 2022.
It contains an overview of the Safer Lambeth Partnership, at both the strategic and operational level. It
outlines performance against key indicators across 2021 and then provides a detailed outline of key
priority areas and the outcomes achieved this year with regards to:
 Violence Against Young People (Lambeth Made Safer for Young People)
 Counter terrorism (Prevent and Protect)
 Violence Against Women and Girls
 Anti-Social Behaviour
 Substance Misuse Services
In addition, an appendix has been provided giving detailed breakdowns of:
 An update on the recommendations/actions from the March 2021 scrutiny meeting
 Structure of the Safer Lambeth Partnership governance
 Structure of the Lambeth Made Safer programme governance

Finance summary
There are no capital or revenue implications as a direct result of this report.

Recommendations
1.

To note the report.

Page 10
1.
1.1

CONTEXT
Introduction
This report contains a wide summary of information about the activity and results of the Safer
Lambeth Partnership over 2020-21. Given the impact that Covid-19 has continued to have on
society, where possible the scope of this report has been extended to the end of 2021 in order to
provide an understanding of how the Partnership (which represents multiple organisations and is
addressing a range of crime and disorder issues) has reacted to maintain services throughout the
pandemic.

1.2

The report gives a breakdown of the statutory structure of the partnership through the Executive
and the sub-groups that deliver against the key priorities.

1.3

It then outlines the organisational shape of the main statutory partners and the respective
adaptations made to service provision to counter the impact of Covid-19.

1.4

The report then identifies the top-level crime results in Lambeth which have been significantly
affected by the Covid-19 pandemic and the implementation and release of lockdowns across the
year.

1.5

The three main long-term priorities of the partnership (reducing violence against young people,
tackling violence against women and girls, and Counter Terrorism) are detailed in the subsequent
sections of the report.

1.6

Finally, a detailed overview of the Partnership’s work to tackle anti-social behaviour is contained at
the end, highlighting the significant work that has taken place over the last 12 months.

1.7

Strategic Context – The Safer Lambeth Partnership
The Safer Lambeth Partnership (SLP) is the statutory ‘community safety partnership’ (CSP) for the
London Borough of Lambeth.

1.8

The Partnership brings together the key statutory public bodies with community, voluntary and
private sector partners for the purpose of reducing crime and disorder in Lambeth as part of the
wider agenda of enabling sustainable growth and development, increasing community resilience,
promoting care and independence, and making Lambeth a place where people want to live, work
and invest by being passionate amount equality, strengthening diversity and delivering inclusion.

1.9

The core members of the Partnership are the five ‘responsible authorities’ that have a statutory
duty under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to maintain a CSP for the borough and to collaborate
in identifying the priorities for reducing crime, anti-social behaviour, substance misuse and
reoffending. The partners are jointly responsible for the work of the Partnership and members
should have sufficient authority to make decisions and allocate resources.

1.10 The five ‘responsible authorities’ are:
a.
the Council;
b.
the Police;
c.
the London Fire Brigade;
d.
the local Clinical Commissioning Group; and,
e.
the Probation Service.
1.11 The Partnership has a reciprocal duty to co-operate with the London Mayor in their role of police
and crime commissioner and the Partnership have representation from MOPAC (Mayor’s Office for
Policing and Crime) by agreement as ‘Advisory Members’ (who are non-voting) to the Executive.

Page 11
1.12 The Safer Lambeth Partnership is a formally constituted body co-chaired by the Chief Executive of
Lambeth Council and the Borough Commander from the Metropolitan Police Service. In this
capacity the Co-Chairs also chair the Executive Board of the Partnership (known as the Safer
Lambeth Partnership Executive).
1.13 The Partnership’s Executive meets on a quarterly basis with an AGM prior to the meeting that
takes place in July. The AGM provides the opportunity to formally elect the Chair or Co-Chairs and
co-opt new members into the Executive.
1.14 As well as the ‘responsible authorities’, the Partnership’s Executive includes:
a.
Co-opted councillors, including the Member holding the portfolio that encompasses
community safety and the spokesperson(s) for crime, community or public safety appointed
by the opposition group(s) represented on the Council;
b.
Representatives from the local community, including the Chairs of the Police Independent
Advisory Group (IAG), Lambeth’s Safer Neighbourhood Board, Safer Neighbourhood Panel
Wards and Business Crime Reduction Partnership;
c.
Representation from MOPAC; and,
d.
The Council’s Executive and/or Strategic Directors with the responsibility for safeguarding
(adults and children and young people), the Youth Justice Service (YJS), public
realm/physical environment, housing and community safety, all as ‘Advisory Members’.
1.15 Meetings of the Partnership’s Executive are ‘Private’ in that all meetings, agendas, papers and
minutes are private in line with the confidentiality required for the range of topics discussed.
1.16 The Executive is held to account in the following ways:
a.
Cooperation with the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Crime and Disorder). This group of
elected councillors will review, scrutinise, report and make recommendations with regards to
the strategies developed and programmes implemented by the ‘responsible authorities’
and/or the co-opted bodies that aim to reduce crime, anti-social behaviour, substance misuse
or re-offending in Lambeth;
b.
Establishing community engagement onto the Partnership’s Executive having co-opted the
senior representatives from the IAG, Safer Neighbourhood Board, Safer Neighbourhood
Ward Panels and the Business Crime Reduction Partnership onto the board;
c.
By the Opposition spokesperson(s) for crime, community and/or public safety issues being
able to attend and speak at the Executive; and,
d.
Through an annual engagement event to be held in the course of the year which residents
and the public can access to engage with the Partnership, it’s members and/or any of its
decision-making bodies.
Governance
1.17 The current governance for the Partnership can be seen in Appendix 2, which indicates the two
levels of decision making:
a.
The Partnership’s Executive is responsible for the strategic leadership and direction of the
Partnership;
b.
Feeding into the Executive are five strategic partnerships, each responsible for the ‘day to
day’ operational management and delivery against action plans and to meet performance
targets against the priorities adopted by the Executive through the development of the annual
Partnership Plan:
i.
Lambeth Made Safer Violence Against Women & Girls Strategy Project Board –
Responsible for overseeing the development of the Lambeth Made Safer – Violence
Against Women and Girls (VAWG) strategy;

Page 12
ii.
iii.
iv.

v.

Lambeth Made Safer Strategy Board – Responsible for the development and
implementation of the Lambeth Made Safer for Young People strategy;
Contest Board - Provides a governance vehicle for all local work carried out as part of
CONTEST, the government’s Counter Terrorism strategy;
Partnership Delivery Group (PDG) is the working group for the implementation of the
Strategic Assessment. Still in development, the PDG will cover areas that sit outside of
the existing long-term borough priorities (Making Lambeth Safer for Young People,
Counter-Terrorism and Violence Against Women and Girls), particularly Anti-Social
Behaviour (ASB), Modern Slavery, Burglary, Theft, Robbery and Hate Crime; and,
Engage and Involve, when fully active will aim to build on community resilience, build
on shared community intelligence and develop shared responses.

1.18 The Youth Justice Partnership Board (YJPB) is the statutory Board set up under the Crime and
Disorder Act and accountable to the Chief Executive to oversee Youth Justice Services in
Lambeth. Updates from the Board are provided to the Executive on an annual basis.
Reflecting on 2021
1.19 The report identifies that Lambeth remains in the top 10 offending boroughs with regards to Total
Notifiable Offences (TNO) which is an amalgamation of all crime types recorded during a specific
time frame. While Lambeth was placed 9th in 2019, the imposing of lockdowns to counter the
spread of Covid-19 across the UK and subsequent release from these measures had a significant
impact on crime rates and the type of crime being reported.
1.20 For example, the spike in the reporting of ASB during the initial Spring lockdown of 2020 resulted
in with more people staying at home with less tolerance for any noise within their immediate
surroundings.
1.21 The Metropolitan Police received over 9,741 phone calls reporting ASB during 2021 – which is a
decrease on the previous year. Unlike 2020, the Met received their highest number of calls in
January 2021 (1,085), which was during a period of national lockdown. There was a slight change
from last year with the “summer peak” starting in the spring months (most likely aligned to the
release from lockdown), whilst dropping off in July and August. Additional data relating to ASB and
how the Partnership responded can be found in section 2.154.
1.22 However, consideration should be given towards the population of Lambeth, acknowledging that
there is a population churn of 44% each year, meaning a large number of the borough’s residents
have no ties to where they live or possible regard for the communities around them, and may mean
they have no immediate concern for how their (ant-social) behaviour may have an impact on those
close by.
1.23 Lambeth also includes a stretch of the South Bank, which while bringing tourists to the borough
and subsequent financial investment, also attracts groups or individuals intent on committing crime
in the area. Waterloo Station is also located in this area and has been the most used station of the
last 16 years1. It was the fourth most used station in 2020-21 with 12.2 million entries and exits
which was 86% lower than the previous year; with Covid-19 measures no longer in place it can
only be expected that this figure will increase, in turn having a similar effect on crime rates in the
area (and therefore the borough), too.

1

Source: Office of Rail and Road, Estimates of station usage 2020-21

Page 13
1.24 The South Bank, along with Clapham, Brixton and Streatham has a thriving night-time economy
which also attracts people from outside the borough again increasing the potential for a range of
crime types to take place.
1.25 Another crime type that was influenced by Covid-19 was VAWG, and as anticipated, the main
offence category was domestic abuse. In 2020 there were 3514 domestic abuse offences recorded
by Police in Lambeth. This was an increase of 5% compared to the 3355 recorded in 2019. While
this is not a significant difference over the year, July to September 2020 recorded 19% more
domestic abuse offences than the same period in 2019, with August recording a 28% increase and
September a 23% increase, demonstrating significantly higher reporting of offences as restrictions
were lifted.

1.26 In 2020 there were 5587 domestic abuse incidents2 recorded by Police in Lambeth. This
represented an increase of 8% compared to the 5197 recorded in 20193.
1.27 There was a 7% increase in domestic abuse incidents reported to the Police over the period of the
first social restrictions compared to the same period in 2019, but this rose by 14% increase once
restrictions had been lifted (July to September 2020). This was highest in August 2020 when there
was an increase of 23% compared to August 2019.

2

A Domestic incident is when police are called and the incident involves intimate partners or family members, but no offence is
alleged to have been committed.
3 London’s Metropolitan police service received an increased number of calls-for-service for domestic incidents following the
lockdown, largely driven by third-party calls; this is likely because people were spending more time at home during this period.

Page 14
1.28 However, it has been suggested that there has been a gradual increase in police recorded
domestic abuse-related offences over recent years as the Police have improved their recording of
these offences; therefore it cannot be determined whether this increase can be directly attributed to
the coronavirus pandemic.
1.29 Either way, key lessons were learned from the early stages of the pandemic (which conversely
were used to manage services accordingly during further periods of lockdown), including:
a.
There was a significant increase in high risk4 cases
b.
More referrals were made to the Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC)5 on
professional judgement;
c.
There was significantly higher reporting of offences to Police and referrals to the MARAC as
restrictions were lifted;
d.
There was a decrease in referrals to support services, and in particular, self-referrals, during
the first national lockdown which increased as restrictions were lifted and levelled out over
the year;
e.
The complexity of cases increased;
f.
Perpetrators used Covid-19 and the social restrictions to further their abuse
g.
There was improved engagement and partnership working and some benefits to remote and
flexible working for clients;
h.
There was an increase in children known to specialist services but no significant difference in
safeguarding concerns where domestic abuse was a presenting need;
i.
There was an increase in safeguarding adults concerns where domestic abuse was recorded
as a category of abuse;
j.
Housing saw a significant increase in demand, including for those experiencing domestic
abuse; and,
k.
There was more focus on domestic abuse in the public eye and nationally a greater thirdparty reporting of crime and calls to helplines.
1.30 To address these trends, the Lambeth Made Safer VAWG Strategy 2021-27 has been codeveloped across the Partnership to ensure there is a clear understanding as to how each
respective partner has a responsibility to encourage reporting of this crime and to provide
appropriate support for victims / survivors.
1.31 Operationally, Lambeth continues to commission three distinctive VAWG-focussed services,
details of which are shared in the report (section 2.87) while the partnerships developed by the
Council’s VAWG team continue to increase awareness of the issue and drive change in the
borough.
1.32 With regards to the Partnership’s Executive, the board was due to meet four times during 2021.
However, the April meeting was cancelled to review how the Executive would be developed over
the coming financial year, including amending the structure and content of the Executive meetings
to ensure there was greater input from partners (i.e. the meetings do not become reliant on
updates raised through the Council). Meetings now have regular updates from all partners with
regards to projects that may be of interest to the Partnership (especially where the other partners
can help deliver on shared objectives) while constructive conversations have taken place around
subjects such as the unification of the Probation Service, the borough’s VAWG strategy and the
Summer Violence and Policing Strategy.

4
5

Those victims and survivors assessed as being at highest risk of serious harm or homicide.

A MARAC is a meeting where information is shared on the highest risk domestic abuse cases between representatives of local
police, health, child protection, housing practitioners, Independent Domestic Violence Advisors (IDVAs), probation and other
specialists from the statutory and voluntary sectors.

Page 15
1.33 The cancellation of the April meeting meant the Strategic Assessment of crime and disorder in the
borough (covering the period April 2017 – August 2020) was not formally approved until the
meeting in July 2021. That said, the Assessment has been published on the Council’s website and
in addition to the longer-term strategic priorities of the Partnership (i.e. Violence Against Young
People, Counter-Terrorism and VAWG), the Assessment identifies the need to prioritise how the
Partnership addresses Drugs and Gangs, Violence Against the person, Weapon Related Offences,
Hate Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour.
1.34 The next step was going to be the development of the Partnership Plan, a high-level document that
identifies how the Partnership will collaborate to tackle each of the priority areas. The Plan was due
to be completed following the formal approval of the Assessment and then shared publicly to
ensure the priorities and agreed actions reflected the needs of residents and local partners.
1.35 However, due to organisational changes across the service, the annual Partnership Plan remains
in draft and the opportunity for a large public-facing engagement meeting / workshop were
prevented from taking place due to the Covid-19 lockdown implemented over the recent winter
months. However, coordinated work continues to take place across the Partnership to address the
priorities recognised in the Assessment.
Next Steps: Re-fresh
1.36 The recent organisational change and delay in co-developing the Partnership Plan provides the
Partnership’s Executive with the opportunity to refresh how the current governance can drive the
reduction of crime reduction in Lambeth.
1.37 This includes the existing draft Plan being formally approved by the Executive on an interim basis
during the early 2022-23 financial year, with the following months intent on year achieving the
following outcomes:
a.
Producing a refreshed Strategic Assessment of Crime and Disorder in the borough;
b.
Co-developing a longer-term Crime Reduction Strategy for the borough, including
engagement with local communities and business owners; and,
c.
Co-developing a Partnership Plan for 2023-24 which identifies how the respective partners
and local providers can deliver on the outcomes and objectives identified through the Crime
Reduction Strategy.
1.38 All of these key documents will be owned by the Safer Lambeth Partnership Executive, and once in
place, a framework will be developed to measure the impact of the Partnership on addressing the
respective crime and disorder priorities.
1.39 It should also be noted that a Strategic Assessment will take place on an annual basis, in turn
revising the annual Partnership Plan to ensure strategically the high-level activities of each partner
are relevant to the needs of the borough. If required, amendments to the over-arching Crime
Reduction Strategy will also be made.
1.40 Importantly, these documents will also provide the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with an
effective platform from which to monitor the progress being made by the Executive and the wider
Partnership each year against the identified priorities.

Operational Context
Within Lambeth Council – Community Safety
1.41 Community Safety is a partnership-based service within Children’s services that provides specialist
support and delivery in key areas for the wider council and Safer Lambeth Partnership.

Page 16
1.42 It is currently structured around the key elements of tackling youth violence, counter terrorism and
the wider intelligence and partnership work to support crime reduction across Lambeth. This work
is highlighted in the appropriate sections throughout.
1.43 Since implementing the restructure in 2019-20, it has become apparent that the service needs to
undergo a wider transformation to deliver on the Council’s aspirations for community safety and
crime reduction, particularly the delivery of the Lambeth Made Safer (LMS) strategy to reduce
violence against young people. The planned transformation of the service has been delayed to due
to changes in senior management at several levels. With the appointment of an interim Director
and permanent Assistant Director the restructure process has now been reviewed with a broader
scope and the restructure process has started. The key drivers for the restructure process aim to:
a.
Ensure the service has sufficient analytical capacity to be intelligence and evidence led;
b.
Leads of the development of the borough Contextual Safeguarding model with key partners,
to ensure that the principle of this approach is embedded throughout the delivery of
interventions to protect vulnerable children and young people from harm;
c.
Maximise the potential of the Lambeth Made Safer programme and the commissioning and
delivery of services to reduce the risk of serious youth violence (SYV);
d.
Ensure that opportunities to deliver holistic interventions the VAWG (Violence Against
Women And Girls), Safer Lambeth and Lambeth Made Safer programmes are capitalised
upon, minimising duplication and silo working; and,
e.
Increase capacity and focus for community engagement and joint working across the service,
including both Lambeth Made Community (LMC) and other avenues to put residents at the
heart of our crime reduction work.
1.44 Anti-social behaviour and noise sit within the Public Protection, Assurance and Regulatory
Services (PPARS) team within the Environment division as part of the Resident’s Services
Directorate. It is responsible for low level crime and disorder such as anti-social behaviour and
neighbourhood-based issues. It also has responsibility for trading standards, licensing and food
health and safety, Emergency Planning and Business Continuity and combines those functions to
keep Lambeth streets and vulnerable people safe. This includes our out of hours noise service and
the Council’s main Covid-19 enforcement function.
External Funding for Crime Reduction
1.45 Several of our services are funded through MOPAC grant funding. The London Crime Prevention
Funding (LCPF) will be maintained at the current rate of £681,996, for the next three financial
years from 2022-23 until 2024-25, subject to the annual confirmation of MOPAC’s budget. This will
realign the Fund with the current Mayoral term. This totals as £2,045,988 over the three-year
funding period that we will use to fund our Integrated Offender Management (IOM) service, the
Beth Centre for female offenders, specific Community Safety posts and to address the shortfall in
our violence against women work. In addition, the Beth Centre is being funded to act as the hub for
the South London Alliance (SLA) for female offending work, working across Lambeth, Croydon,
Southwark, Sutton, Wandsworth, and Lewisham to deliver services for female offenders.
1.46 Reflecting on achievements from 2020-21, Lambeth’s IOM is a good example of a coordinated
multi-agency response to reduce crime. The most persistent and problematic offenders are
identified and managed jointly by partner agencies working together to offer advanced
rehabilitative / resettlement support and ensure swift enforcement action is taken should reoffending occur.
1.47 With the re-unification of the Probation Service in June 2021, Lambeth’s contract for the provision
of Lambeth’s IOM arrangements transferred from the London Community Rehabilitation Company
to the Probation Service. There was no disruption to service delivery and the day-to-day running of

Page 17
the scheme remains the same. In May 2019 an IOM working group, coordinated by MOPAC and
comprised of stakeholders and practitioners from the major agencies currently involved in IOM
delivery, was established to develop an improved IOM model for London with the aims of:
a.
Responding to the increase in violence by focusing on persistent, violent offenders;
b.
Balancing this with maintaining a focus on burglary and robbery; and,
c.
Fulfilling the Police and Crime Plan commitment for greater consistency across London and to
measure effectiveness.
1.48 The subsequent adjusts to the IOM cohort eligibility criteria to enable a focus on those persistent
offenders who also pose at least a medium risk of violent reoffending have been successfully
implemented in Lambeth from January 2021. Lambeth was well placed to respond to the changes,
and already included within its IOM arrangements much of the ‘Best Practice for Local
Implementation’ specified in the new framework, such as the presence of a local IOM coordinator.
1.49 As part of the new London framework, MOPAC are funding the pilot of an integrated pan-London
IT platform for IOM, which will enhance the efficiency of joint working and provide analytical
capability to evaluate outcomes, needs and interventions. This London wide provision, funded by
MOPAC for one year, was launched from November 2021. The data and learning provided will
inform our future commissioning arrangements.
1.50 Performance is measured against a range of outcomes and outputs and monitored through
quarterly performance reports and contract review meetings. In 2020/21, Lambeth’s IOM scheme
worked with 182 individuals (up from 173 in 2019/20), and achieved the following headline
outcomes:
a.
36% proven reoffending rate (target 61% or below and down from 41% in 2019/20)6
b.
84.07% of IOM offenders engaged with Lambeth’s commissioned Priority Offender
Management Service (target 80% and up from 79% in 2019/20)
c.
93% of IOM offenders with an identified housing need were assisted (target 70% and up
from 88%)
d.
86% of IOM offenders with a substance misuse need attended an initial drug/alcohol
treatment appointment (target 60% and up from 71%)
e.
Average of 6 partnership agencies in attendance at monthly IOM Panel meetings (target
minimum 4 per panel meeting)
1.51

Lambeth has secured the same financial envelope of the London Crime Prevention Fund for the
next three years. This was not confirmed until January 2022 and so contracts for our services will
be extended to allow robust analysis of need and learning to inform recommissioning to respond
to policy and best practice developments.

1.52 Another good example of partnership working is that of the South London Alliance (SLA). The
Council has received combined MOPAC and Ministry of Justice (MoJ) co-commissioning funding to
continue the operation of the SLA’s Whole Systems Approach to Female Offending Programme
until 30 September 2022 (the original contract with MOPAC commenced on 1 July 2018). Lambeth
co-commissions the SLA with MOPAC and this is delivered by Women in Prison (WiP), now as
part of the Pan-London support service for women in touch with the criminal justice system which
launched on 26 June 2021.
1.53 In addition to the original six south London boroughs of Lambeth, Southwark, Wandsworth,
Lewisham, Croydon and Sutton, SLA provision has been extended to the boroughs of Bromley and
Merton. The service offers a whole system approach to supporting women including early
intervention, triage, resettlement and increasing women’s centre provision. It also integrates the
6

Measured using IDIOM Data, as reported in annual MOPAC LCPF returns

Page 18
work of the Beth Centre, which has been supporting Lambeth women in contact, or at risk of being
in contact, with the criminal justice system since 2014. This is funded through added investment
from the council, including £113,000 from the local London Crime Prevention Fund allocation and
£120,000 Public Health investment ringfenced to Lambeth delivery and Lambeth residents only.
1.54 To ensure that women benefit from the wider package of gender specific support available, WIP
sub-contract provision to a number of specialist providers, including:
a.
Housing for Women (Housing Co-ordinator)
b.
Hibiscus (support for foreign national women)
c.
Clean Break (drama workshops)
d.
Working Chance (employment support)
e.
Birth Champions (pregnant women)
1.55 For 2020/21 we also secured a Substance Misuse Through the Gate (SMTTG) Advocate, funded
by Section 31 local authority grant for additional drug treatment, crime and harm reduction activity,
delivered by WiP.
1.56 Outcomes and outputs for the service are monitored through quarterly reports and an SLA Delivery
Group as part of the performance management framework. During 2020-21, despite the challenges
caused by the Covid-19 pandemic, the Beth Centre and hubs remained operational across all
boroughs, and the services continued to offer a blended service delivery model of virtual and inperson appointments and workshops. The SLA achieved the following key outputs, demonstrating
improvements from the previous year: 277 women engaged in one-to-one support (up from 174 in
2019-20); 549 accessed women’s centre provision (down from 674 in 2019-20 due to the
pandemic); 75% of women felt safer from domestic abuse (up from 68%); 68% of women reported
improved housing outcomes (up from 61%); 66% improved health and wellbeing (up from 59%);
59% increased confidence in gaining employment (up from 54%); and 55% improved financial
management (up from 50%).
1.57 The success of the provision has been recognised through the decision of the MoJ and MOPAC to
roll out a new pan-London service based on the model delivered through the SLA. We are working
with partners to ensure there is continued capacity for women in Lambeth and that we incorporate
learning and funding opportunities to build on this highly successful holistic support model.
1.58 The London Violence Reduction Unit (VRU) has provided £200,000 of funding to help mitigate
violence in the borough. We have used that funding to provide universal provision in all primary
and secondary schools and to fund our outreach team of youth workers based within the Youth
Justice Service that have been an essential part of our critical incident and Covid-19 response.
Funding will be maintained at the current rate of £200,000 for 2022-23, subject to the annual
confirmation of MOPAC’s budget and Home Office funding. Unlike the MOPAC LCPF fund, this is
not currently being offered for a three-year period as the VRU await confirmation from the Home
Office in respect of funding for 2022-23 and the subsequent two years. The VRU are unable to
commit beyond 12 months until they get clarity from the Home office. Once the Home Office
funding is confirmed the VRU have offered to extend the duration of the funding, to support longer
term delivery of initiatives. For 2022-23 this budget will continue to support the borough’s Youth
Outreach offer and a new school’s outreach service will be commissioned with schools and
Education to meet identified needs (including VAWG) and will have a focus on the transition of
pupils between primary and secondary school.
1.59 The Council’s work on Prevent is funded directly through Home Office grants which enables the
employment of council staff to develop and deliver the programme and external projects to help

Page 19
mitigate radicalisation and extremism. These are outlined in more detail in the Prevent section and
consist primarily of school and community-based projects.
1.60 The Council has also been successful in securing funding from Round 3 of the Home Office’s Safer
Streets Fund. Lambeth was one of only three pots of funding agreed for London with feedback
emphasising the strength of our bid. The aim of this fund is to improve the safety of public places
for all, with a particular focus on reducing crimes related to VAWG and improving women and girls’
feelings of safety in public places. In Lambeth this work will focus on the two areas identified as
having the greatest number of VAWG offences: Brixton and Clapham. It will provide the resources
to install additional light columns and CCTV cameras, as well as rapid response CCTV cameras
that we can deploy to other areas in response to intelligence and concerns. More detail on this is
provided in the VAWG section of the report.

Lambeth Police
1.61 Frontline Policing in London is delivered through the 12 Basic Command Unit (BCU) model
introduced in 2019. In this model Lambeth Borough and Southwark Borough’s form the Central
South BCU. The current Senior Leadership command structure is as per the below organogram:

BCU Commander
Ch Supt Colin Wingrove

HQ
Supt Rachel Walmsley
Ch Insp Pete McGarry
Ch Insp Louise Sargent

Response

Neighbourhoods

Investigation

Safeguarding

Supt Anil Puri

Supt Dan Ivey

Det Supt Neerav Patel

Det Supt Clair Kelland

Ch Insp Hannah Hayes

Ch Insp Annmarie Cowley

Ch Insp Nial O'Neill

Ch Inspector Steve Boswell

Det Ch Insp Dan Smith
Det Ch Insp Amanda
Mawhinney

Det Ch Insp Lucy O'Connor

Det Ch Insp Tim Mustoe

Page 20
BCU Commander
Ch Supt Colin Wingrove

HQ

Ch Insp Pete McGarry

Leadership support

Supt Rachel Walmsley

Ch Insp Louise Sargent

Professional Standards

Ch Insp Richard White

Response

Ch Insp Hannah Hayes (Southwark)

Supt Anil Puri

Ch Insp Nial O'Neill (Lambeth)

Neighbourhoods

Ch Insp Annmarie Cowley (Partnerships)

Supt Dan Ivey

Ch Insp Steve Boswell (SNTs)

Carer Development Lead (HR)

24/7 respons to emergency calls
BCU patrols
Investigation of volume crime

Community engagement and partnership
Schools and youth engagement
Licensing
Anti-social behaviour
Counter-terrorism

Investigation

Det Ch Insp Dan Smith (Proactive Teams)

Investigation of serious or complex crime

Det Supt Neerav Patel

Det Ch Insp Amanda Mawhinney
(Investigations)

Proactive policing

Safeguarding

Det Ch Insp Lucy O'Connor

Domestic abuse

Gangs
Offender management

Hate crime

Det Supt Clair Kelland

Sexual offending
Vulnerable children and adults

Det Ch Insp Tim Mustoe

MASH

1.62

In Lambeth policing is underpinned by our values of Professionalism, Integrity, Courage and
Compassion, and your officers and staff strive to live by these values every day. Since February
2020 Chief Superintendent Colin Wingrove has been the BCU Commander for Central South,
responsible for policing in Lambeth and Southwark Boroughs during some of the most testing
times our communities have ever faced, and challenging times for policing.

1.63

Since the last report new members of the BCU Senior Leadership Team have joined and new
posts have been created in Response, Investigations, Professionalism, and Neighbourhoods. All
have strong operational and strategic leadership experience. The close working relationship with
the Local Authority and our key local partners and stakeholders has continued in what we view as
a very strong local partnership.

1.64

The impact of the Coronavirus (Covid-19) Global Pandemic continued throughout 2021. This has
placed exceptional demand on policing as it has in every area and aspect of life. We have seen
demand rise on policing services, and whilst crime remains lower than pre-pandemic levels, we
have seen the tragic consequences of knives and guns on our streets. We have also continued to
see a significant number of calls to the police involving people suffering with mental health
conditions, drug dependence, other forms of vulnerability.

1.65

Since 2020 we have continued work to rebuild trust and confidence, developing local approaches
whilst also supporting the wider MPS through the Deputy Commissioners Delivery Group in line
with The Mayors Action Plan, and MPS (Metropolitan Police Service) Engagement plan. Working
to improve trust and confidence, in particular with Black communities remains a key operational
priority for the Met (Metropolitan Police), and for police in Lambeth. We will work closely with all
our communities, Lambeth Council and other partners to improve trust and confidence, as well as
play our part in tackling the underlying causes of violent crime in order to keep people safe.

1.66

During 2021 greater focus has also been on tackling Violence Against Women and Girls and
rebuilding and restoring trust and confidence with women. The murder of Sarah Everard, a
Lambeth resident, shocked and disturbed us all, and brought shame on policing. The policing at
the Clapham Common Vigil was also criticised leading to an independent review by HMICFRS.
Whilst it found police officers acted under challenging circumstances in a measured and
proportionate way, HMICFRS also reported that some things the Met could have done better.

Page 21
Recently the appalling actions of some officers in Charing Cross has further damaged public trust
and confidence. The Met, and in Lambeth we fully acknowledge the work that must be done and
continue in order to restore and rebuild trust and confidence. In 2022 we will be working hard to
further target the men who are violent – in all its forms - towards women; listening to more local
women and responding to feedback; and remain committed to ensure sexism, misogyny,
homophobia and racism have no place in Central South, Lambeth, and the Met.
1.67

A Community Reference Group has met locally since last year to help test and shape our local
approach and has informed Project Vigilant and Walk and Talk initiatives. The Baroness Casey
Review fieldwork has started, and Commander Rachel Williams leads on Restoring Trust. In
Lambeth we will fully support this work and seek to be at the forefront of positive changes. Det
Supt Claire Kelland is our VAWG lead, and more detail of our local approach is later in this
report.

1.68

During 2021 Policing in London saw further growth in police officer numbers. In Central South
1558 Police Officers which represents the highest number since the BCU merger. The new
Brixton Town Centre team was launched in December 2021 and this year we see growth in
Dedicated Ward Officers. These increases helping to tackle violence, increase public
engagement and address local resident priorities.

1.69

Recruitment continues with the Degree Apprenticeships for Police Officers and the first cohorts
are already patrolling our streets. In 2021 in Lambeth we will be supporting the Met recruitment
plan through engagement, events, and working closely with our partners and community
organisations. Our local Outreach team are working with community organisations, schools and
colleges attending events, and supporting local applicants through the recruitment process.

1.70

We know that we are most effective when we police with the support of the public, working
together to tackle those causing the most harm. Stop and search powers save lives and are
important to keep our communities safe, helping us identify criminality and take dangerous
weapons and drugs off our streets.

1.71

We understand it can be an intrusive tactic and causes concern, therefore it is important for trust
and confidence within our communities that every interaction between our officers and the public
is conducted respectfully and with courtesy.

1.72

We are aware that there is disproportionality across ethnicity, gender and age in the use of stop
and search. We also know disproportionality exists in the different crime types which tend to
affect different groups more than others and it remains a tragic truth that knife crime and street
violence in London, disproportionately affects boys and young men, particularly of AfricanCaribbean heritage, both in terms of being victims and perpetrators. Equally, areas of London
with higher crime levels, particularly violent crime, often tend to be home to more diverse
communities, both resident and transient.

1.73

While we will continue to use data and intelligence to target and put more resources into areas
with higher levels of violence and other serious crime, using a range of tactics to tackle violence
of which stop and search is just one element. Stop and search is highly effective at removing
dangerous weapons and drugs from the streets and bringing violent offenders to justice.

1.74

That said we do not underestimate the impact that the use of stop and search has on some
individuals and that it continues to cause significant concern particularly Black communities. We
absolutely acknowledge there is a gap in confidence here, but also know that most Londoners
agree that we should use stop and search and are confident in our use of it.

1.75

We are listening and responding to the feedback the public give us. We are also working within
the Lambeth Made Safe strategy, Lambeth’s Independent Advisory Group, Lambeth Made
Community Forums, and Black Thrive to shape how we use our powers, our deployments,
training, and our communication and engagement with residents and young people.

Page 22
Stop and Search comparison 2020 v 2021

Lambeth
Stop & Search Volume
S60 Authorisations
S60 Volume
Positive Outcome Rate
Drug Searches
Weapons Searches

2020

2021

16407
20
110 (0.7%)
22.3%
9593 (58.4%
4008 (24.4%)

11908
TBC
115 (0.9%)
25.5%
7013 (58.9%)
3277 (27.5%)

Summary of the key BCU departments
BCU HQ Strand (Superintendent Rachel Walmsley):
1.76 Although not public facing, the BCU HQ is the unit that coordinates the BCU wide activity. This
year we have seen a new Chief Inspector for Professional Standards. Lou Sargent who has been
working on a number of new approaches to improve the professionalism and training of officers.
Also creating a new small Continuous Improvement Team and an Organisational Learning Hub to
further drive improvement in what we do and the way we do it. Additionally a new Chief Inspector
Career Development Lead has been appointed by Human Resources and their role is to support
Black Asian and Multiple Ethnic Heritage officers and staff and improve progression and retention.
Response Strand (Superintendent Anil Puri):
1.77 The response strand is the primary strand tasked with servicing the BCUs significant call demand.
They are regularly confronted with the full range of policing issues, from dealing with challenging
and violent individuals through to supporting the vulnerable, as well as policing events and major
incidents. The response teams on the BCU regularly deal with significant critical incidents and
demonstrate an excellent capability and proficiency in this area. As well as responding to the
reported demand, a key area of work is the proactive identification of perpetrators and crime in
action and the identification of individual safeguarding concerns. Officers are now more focussed
on the wider needs of vulnerable individuals and how to access the support available from within
the BCU and through our partners, to better meet the public’s need.
1.78 Under the BCU, response officers now carry out their own crime investigations and this has
provided a better victim experience more often now dealing with the same reporting officer, as well
as allowing for the upskilling of officers in investigative techniques. The investigative process has
been augmented by the deployment of detective sergeants assigned to each team to improve the
service provided to the victim.
Neighbourhood and Partnership Policing (Superintendent Dan Ivey):
1.79 The Neighbourhood Policing is led by Superintendent Dan Ivey, supported by Chief Inspector
Annmarie Cowley (Partnerships) and Ch Inspector Steve Boswell (Neighbourhoods). Inspector
Aaron Barnes is the Safer Neighbourhood Team Inspector; Inspector Dave Laurie is the
Partnership and Prevention Hub Inspector; Inspector Pippa Wilson is the Schools and Youth
Inspector; and A/Inspector Becky Perkins the new Brixton Town Centre Team lead.
1.80 We were delighted to launch the new Brixton town centre policing team in December – a significant
investment of additional officers, supporting our existing dedicated ward officers. Under the
leadership of a new Inspector, we have an additional 3 Sergeants and 21 constables, completely
focused on keeping people and businesses in and around Brixton safe. They aim to improve the
accessibility and visibility of Brixton officers at the busiest times, focusing on long term problem
solving, crime prevention and public safety in partnership with all our local stakeholders.
We know that our communities want to see and speak to more local officers as they conduct foot patrols,
and this initiative will give them just that The breadth of activity across the Safer Neighbourhood
Wards teams has focussed on the key priorities that matter most to the residents for Lambeth, in
line with wider Community Safety Partnership and the MPS priorities.

Page 23
1.81 Central to this work is building Trust and Confidence. In particular with Black communities, and
women. This is linked to work streams, initiatives and partnership work around Violence against
Women and Girls and Stop and Search.
1.82 Combatting serious youth violence and violence generally is clearly a significant priority and
concern for residents. We have been supporting the Lambeth Made Safer Strategy, and Lambeth
Made Community Forums in additional to existing Safer Neighbourhood Ward Panels with help set
local priorities and joint actions to address resident concerns.
1.83 Targeting the drivers of such crime including the drugs market and working across partners to
address underlying causes remains a key area of work. From a neighbourhood policing aspect
there is a renewed focus on combatting drug related crime in our communities and identifying and
supporting vulnerable individuals who are exploited by criminal networks. Building trust and
confidence with residents is also a key priority in order to listen and respond to residents, and for
the public to have confidence by supports policing and partner efforts.
1.84 In support of the general proactive activity across the BCU, neighbourhood teams are focussed on
dealing with a wide range of local problems and examples of work include drugs warrants, closure
orders and the use of judicial restrictions such as Criminal Behaviour Orders and Gang Injunctions
to combat persistent recidivist offenders and protect our communities. Throughout, we work closely
with our partners to problem solve and ensure individuals within our communities who are
identified as vulnerable to exploitation are supported and safeguarded where appropriate.
1.85 During 2021 we have worked closely with the Lambeth Independent Advisory Group (IAG) who
continue to act as “Critical Friends” providing advice, challenge and insight that is included in our
decision making and approach. Pastor Lorraine Jones and Umar Mahmood remain in as chair and
deputy. The IAG aims to improve communication between the police and the community and help
to forge a greater mutual understanding and improving trust and confidence in the MPS.
1.86 Over the course of the year, the IAG leadership has built on the organisation’s previous work and
has a wide-ranging membership. They have provided invaluable independent advice to the police
on a range of issues and community concerns. These include the police response to the murder of
Sarah Everard, the ongoing pandemic, the use of stop and search, use of force, and approach to
violence against women and girls. They have also advised on the response to some of the tragic
incidents seen in Lambeth in the past year.
1.87 IAG members regularly talk to groups of new recruits and has also participated in providing
community inputs to the Territorial Support Group and Violent Crime Taskforce prior to their
deployments in Lambeth. Recently IAG members have taken part in the induction of new Senior
Leadership Team members and other officers. IAG members have also supported in the
recruitment process of the new Brixton Town Centre Team leader and continue to provide
feedback and advice as the team develops.
1.88 The IAG has proved invaluable to improving police and community relations and whilst there is still
significant distrust in some areas, the MPS is determined to be a more open organisation and the
role of the IAG is key to this. Please refer to Appendix 3 for a summary of achievements over 2021
as provided by Deputy Chair, Umar Mahmood.
1.89 In addition to the IAG and our work with our statutory partners, there is a wide range of community
and representative groups that we work closely with. Each ward has a Safer Neighbourhood Ward
panel of community members who meet with their local police to discuss and express concerns
and work with their local team to combat crime and disorder and to boost local relationships.
1.90 Lambeth currently consists of 21 Ward Panels. Since March 2020, Covid-19 restrictions have led
to most meeting virtually. It is a testament to their durability and the management of the Ward
Chairs that most have continued to meet and provide input regarding local policing priorities.

Page 24
1.91 Each panel sets at least three priorities with the local police team. In 2021 the Ward Panel
Handbook was developed and implemented. Amongst other changes and clarifications, it required
each panel to set one priority to tackle violence in the ward.
1.92 Enlarging the representation of attendees remains a challenge. Lambeth Police have a Ward
Panel Improvement Plan which seeks to recruit underrepresented groups and to link the Ward
Panels with other active committees such as Tenants and Residents Associations, social and
business groups as well as other organisations involved in partnership with the police. The
particularisms of each ward mean that some have wider representation and attendance than
others.
1.93 We are also represented on the Lambeth Made Community Forums which are a new initiative to
engage residents, partners and organisations address the underlying causes of crime. These are
currently focused on wards with higher crime and lower confidence levels. The BCU Commander
has attended several of these forums to support and promote participation and engagement.
1.94 Youth engagement is a central focus of our activity with our schools and youth engagement
officers working closely with our secondary and junior schools and local partners to help safeguard
our young people.
1.95 We have Safer Schools Police Officers so that each secondary school has a named police officer
who works closely with schools to safeguard children, provide inputs on areas such as online
abuse and knife crime, and conduct patrols outside school and walking routes. We also have
officers who focus on primary schools, again supporting safeguarding leads, youth engagement
and safety focussed inputs.
1.96 We have supported a wide range of innovative activities have been undertaken between police
and community groups. For example Stop and Search public workshops led by Lambeth Young
Advisors and Fight for Change; Lambeth Summer Camps; Youth Club Security Initiative (e.g.
Alford House benefitted from a police-led project to install improved security and safety provision).
1.97 Additionally, the MPS has a vibrant and active Volunteer Police Cadets programme with just over
200 cadets of various ages and from across the BCU taking part. Ages of the cadets range from
10-18 years old and include a mixture of boys and girls, 85% of whom are from a Black Asian and
Minority Ethnic background and all cadets live within Lambeth and Southwark. A number of our
cadets go on to join the organisation.
1.98 Activities include educational classroom-based lessons around police procedures and weekly
sports and fitness sessions. Outside of these sessions, they volunteer their own time working
alongside Police in their communities, recovering discarded knifes in parks during weapons
sweeps on estates and in open spaces, crime prevention leafleting, while also assisting with
marshalling local park runs and events such as London Marathon, Notting Hill Carnival, Ride 100,
Swim Serpentine and many other significant events. They have assisted engagement events such
as the Kickoff@3 football tournament held at The Warren Metropolitan Police Sports Club and
supporting successful test purchasing operations around knives and alcohol with Lambeth Trading
Standards team. They are recognised year on year for their efforts receiving grants and awards
from the Jack Petchey Foundation and take part in the Duke of Edinburgh Award.
Local Investigations (Detective Superintendent Neerav Patel):
1.99 Local Investigations (CID) is based at Walworth and includes the Gangs, Offender Management
and Jigsaw (Sex Offender) functions. Also the Violence Suppression Unit and Drugs Focus Desk.
There is a Burglary, Robbery Investigation Team (BRIT) to investigate these two priority offences
and develop professional expertise and focus. Serious youth violence, robbery and organised
criminal gangs remain a priority and bringing these functions into one strand supports the
emphasis placed on preventing serious crime and gang related violence. This has allowed for the
greater exploitation of information and intelligence as well as a wider safeguarding perspective for
individuals and has assisted in delivering a BCU-wide reduction in serious youth violence.

Page 25
1.100 The Local Investigations Lead is also the Lambeth Made Safe Disrupt & Deter work stream lead,
one of six commitments under LMS. Disrupt & Deter aims to make Lambeth one of the safest
places in London for children, teenagers and young adults by taking a multi-agency approach to
prevent violence. Disrupt & Deter focusses on five priorities; Improving trust and confidence in
police actions with a focus on stop and search, enabling safe and crime-free transport, tackling
exploitation, stopping access to weapons and disrupting the drugs market. Disrupt & Deter is the
only LMS commitment led by a local senior Police Officer and is a product of collaboration with
work-stream leads appointed from across the BCU, MPS and from Lambeth Council. The workstream benefits from membership of the Deputy Leader of the Council, Cllr Jacqui Dyer and Black
Thrive, supporting innovation, transparency and alignment to the needs of local people. Disrupt &
Deter has been operational for just over a year and has contributed and supported some hugely
important work across the borough, such as regular joint weapon sweeps recovering dozens of
knives from residential areas, responding to community intelligence recovering firearms from
abandoned vehicles, multiagency operations at transport hubs and in violence hotspots. MPS
Specialist Crime deployments to target county lines and oversight of Stop & Search improvement
action plans, involving local people to continuously improve.
1.101 In the last year we have sought to further improve our response to Gang violence and criminality.
The MPS has reviewed and strengthened the approach to urban street gangs, with a renewed
focus on the highest harm gangs prioritised as Organised Crime Groups (OCG), with Lambeth
currently having the highest number than any other borough. The new approach brings with it a
Senior Responsible Officer (Detective Superintendent) and Lead Responsible Officer (Detective
Inspector) to provide oversight and direction of activity in respect of each OCG, which will have its
own multi-agency Four-P plan (Pursue, Prevent, Protect & Prepare). This structure ensures a far
more holistic approach to all of the complex factors involved in disrupting harmful gang activity,
while responding to the safeguarding and protection needs of those vulnerable to gang related
crime. The multi-agency response enables service delivery from the right area of expertise by
working across policing, council services and third sector partners.
1.102 Central South BCU, Lambeth Police always seeks new and innovative approaches to keep our
residents safe. An example developed in 2021 is Project Nomad is a fundamentally new approach
to the use of CCTV in open space violence hot-spots. High-performance, overt CCTV units affixed
to lampposts in high-harm areas across the borough, supporting the proactive and reactive policing
response to incidents of violence. Initiated and first trialled in Lambeth under Operation Ulex,
Project Nomad has achieved significant reductions, in hotspot areas but most notably has enabled
the identification and apprehension of suspects involved in knife crime, robbery, serious violence
and VAWG. Project Nomad enables officers to remotely access camera technology, enhancing
dynamic decision making and risk management to protect the public. Based on the success of the
pilot in Lambeth, Project Nomad is now being rolled out by the MPS across London, enabling
Community Safety Partnerships across the capital to use the same technology and methodology to
protect the public.
1.103 Across offender management teams, colocation of units within both the Local Authority and
National Probation Service continues to promote a positive working relationship and maintains the
required integral partnership working targeted on high harm and high reoffending subjects. The
combined police Lambeth and Southwark YOTS (Youth Offending Team) team and singular IOM
team overseen by a sergeant for each. This has been very positive with Heads of Service and has
enhanced the capability of both units with teams being easily flexed in response to demand.
Public Protection (Detective Superintendent Clair Kelland):
1.104 Public protection covers a range of serious and complex crimes that often affect the most
vulnerable in a community. It is about protecting those adults and children who are at risk from
harm. Risk analysis is vital in public protection, both in identifying victims and apprehending
offenders. The term public protection strongly defines the MPS’s work alongside our partners in
this area and has already been adopted by the majority of police forces.
1.105 Our new plan encompasses the 13 strands of public protection work the met undertakes that you
will be familiar with: Abuse and Neglect of Vulnerable Adults; Child Abuse; Domestic Abuse,
Stalking and Harassment; Exploitation (CCE, CSE and Modern Slavery); Harmful practices; Hate

Page 26
Crime; Mental Health, Drug and Alcohol Dependency and Suicide Prevention; Missing People;
Online child sex abuse and exploitation; Rape, Sexual Offences and Sex Workers; Registered Sex
Offenders; Vulnerability to Being Drawn into Terrorism (Prevent).
1.106 Our Public Protect lead is also our VAWG Lead. The Police VAWG strategy is focused on targeting
perpetrators, ensuring procedural justice and working in partnership to improve safety and feelings
of safety for women and girls who live and work in the local community. The strategy has three
main pillars of activity.
1.107 Pillar one addresses VAWG offending in public spaces. By taking an intelligence led approach to
public space VAWG offending, we aim to identify persistent perpetrators and focus
on geographical hotspots. We have supported both local authorities in securing additional safer
street funding which is being utilised to design out crime through improved lighting and better
CCTV coverage.
1.108 In addition we are working with licensed premises to help nightlife spaces understand and respond
to sexual offending through specialist training, either via organisations like ‘A good night out’ or via
the support of police officers.
1.109 We are the first BCU to secure MOPAC funding to launch ‘Operation Vigilant’ a proactive operation
to target VAWG perpetrators utilising a mixture of plain clothed and uniform officers who are
deployed to night time economy VAWG hotspot public spaces at peak offending times. We have
taken this good practice from Thames Valley Police, who successfully reduced public space sexual
offending by 30% over a six-month period.
1.110 The second pillar addresses private space VAWG offending, such as domestic abuse and sexual
offending where the victim-survivor and perpetrator are known to each other as well as child sexual
abuse and exploitation. We have heavily invested in the learning from Operation Bluestone, an
academic study which seeks to evolve the operating model for the investigation of serious sexual
assaults. The recommendations focus on the need to change the narrative from victim credibility to
perpetrator focused investigations. At an operational level, our staff have attended training
sessions facilitated by Dr Patrick Tidmarsh around this ‘whole story approach’ and are now
adopting this perpetrator focus into all investigations.
1.111 In addition, all front-line staff have benefited from the DA Matters training facilitated by Safe Lives.
This is a bespoke cultural change programme, aimed at developing an understanding of coercive
and controlling behaviour and the tactics utilised by perpetrators to isolate and undermine victimsurvivors.
1.112 The third pillar seeks to improve our internal culture. We are mindful that creating a culture where
misogyny and sexism have no hiding place is a critical issue and is not only intrinsically linked to
staff welfare and wellbeing but to how we interact with and support communities. We want staff to
recognise abusive behaviour and have created mechanisms which allow them to safely report it.
We have a strong Network of Women which engages with and supports female staff along with a
growing HeForShe network.
1.113 We continue to conduct sessions with all staff, encouraging them to recognise unacceptable
behaviour and be active bystanders.
1.114 Central to all three pillars is our work with partners and the local community. We are committed to
attending community meetings and panels with local councillors, providing residents with the
opportunity to engage with police and feedback concerns. We take a lead role in the VAWG
strategy boards which bring together a broad group of experts, practitioners and stakeholders to
identify what is needed to tackle Violence Against Women and Girls in Central South BCU.
1.115 In Public Protection there continue to be multi-skilled investigation teams that deal with the entire
range of demand and better meets the needs of the victim. The Public Protection strand delivers
on a wide range of demands including dealing with mental health, missing persons and Level 1
Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) referrals. There is also an enhanced research function that

Page 27
supports our referrals and investigations teams with their caseload. A dedicated OCSAE (online
child sexual abuse & exploitation) team has also been established and has improved the response
to this type of offending improving our service to vulnerable victims and the early identification and
protection of vulnerable children as well as arrest and prosecution of high harm offenders.
1.116 The BCU Public Protection Structure is shown in Appendix 4.

Health – NHS South East London Clinical Commissioning Group
1.117 From 1st April 2020 NHS Lambeth CCG (Clinical Commissioning Group) merged with the five other
south east London CCGs (Bexley, Bromley, Greenwich, Lewisham and Southwark) to form the
South East London CCG. The new South East London CCG works together with other NHS and
with Local Authority partners within the South East London Integrated Care system partnership:
‘Our Healthier South East London’. An important part of this arrangement is the ongoing
development of individual borough or Place-Based working and in Lambeth this is through the
Lambeth Together partnership.
1.118 Alongside this and building on a number of years of effective joint working arrangements the CCG
and the Council have established a shared Directorate team, led by the Strategic Director,
Integrated Health and Care, which brings together CCG and Council Commissioning for health and
Children’s Services, Adult Social Care and the Public Health teams, co-located in the Civic Centre.
1.119 The CCG works closely with our 41 Lambeth Member GP Practices, and we are committed to
working with a wide range of local valued local partners and stakeholders in the way we work
including local government and NHS partners, schools, colleges and universities, the police,
Healthwatch Lambeth, voluntary and community organisations and local people.
1.120 The majority of people using NHS services in Lambeth will mainly use primary and community
health services. We work with all our local care service providers to improve the quality and
experience of care and to deliver improved outcomes. Services are commissioned from:
a.
GP practices, pharmacists, opticians and dentists;
b.
Community health services (provided by Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation
Trust), such as district and school nursing, health visiting, specialist child health,
therapy services and care for older people;
c.
The London Ambulance Service (LAS); and,
d.
Voluntary and third sector care providers.
1.121 When local people require more specialist care, we mainly commission locally from:
a.
Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust, King’s College Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust and St George’s University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust to
provide inpatient, outpatient, day and emergency hospital care; and,
b.
South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust to provide mental health and
addictions services.
1.122 We know that no single organisation can tackle the health and wellbeing challenges we face in
Lambeth alone. With a complex and changing pattern of health needs, growing demand for
services and limited resources, we consider the only way forward is for the NHS, the Council, the
voluntary and community sector, and patients and the public to work across the borough, and
across the wider south east London region, to ensure that innovation is shared and that we make
the best possible use of our resources. We are committed to ensuring that effective partnerships
are central to how we work to improve health and care and involve local people.

Page 28
1.123 Lambeth Together is our local care partnership, bringing together the great things we are already
doing and identifying other opportunities in support of our collective Lambeth Together mission to
improve health and wellbeing and reduce inequality for people in Lambeth.
1.124 In doing so we aim to achieve the following key aims, that:
a.
Health and wellbeing are improving for all, and improving fastest for those with the
poorest health and wellbeing;
b.
People are able to reach their full potential and feel good about themselves;
c.
Everyone feels valued and has choices about their health and wellbeing; and,
d.
People are safe from harm.
1.125 Lambeth Together partners have recently agreed a refreshed Pledge, in particular setting out our
shared commitment to reducing health inequalities. You can see our Pledge as articulated by the
Lambeth Together leadership group7.
1.126 The criticality of this mission has been reinforced by the impact and learning we have developed in
the last twelve months in responding to the Coronavirus pandemic and the clear spotlight this has
placed on those health and wider inequalities that existed even before the pandemic within our
diverse and relatively deprived communities.
1.127 Lambeth Together partners include the CCG, Lambeth Council, Guy’s and St Thomas’, King’s
College Hospital and South London and the Maudsley Foundation Trusts (within King’s Health
Partners Academic Health Sciences Centre), Lambeth GP Practices, Lambeth Healthwatch, Black
Thrive, third sector providers and with local community representatives.
1.128 Lambeth Together is:
a.
A way of working, a culture that unites us;
b.
The way we organise services around people and places; and,
c.
How we work together as a whole system.
1.129 Within this system we operate through a number of ‘Delivery Alliances’ to address health
improvement programmes for specific populations and people including:
a.
Neighbourhood Based Care and Wellbeing, for adults and the elderly;
b.
Living Well Network, for those living with mental health conditions; and,
c.
Children and Young People.
1.130 Safeguarding is an important aspect of our work and along with NHS Trusts we have contributed
fully to the Lambeth Safeguarding Children Partnership and the Lambeth Safeguarding Adults
Board, working with partners across a broad range of key priorities to support and protect the most
vulnerable and at risk within our communities. The Strategic Director for Integrated Health and
Care has chaired the Lambeth Safeguarding Children Partnership over 2020 and 2021, working
alongside the Strategic Director from the Council’s Children’s Services and the senior lead from the
Metropolitan Police.
1.131 The Lambeth Safeguarding Adults Board has had a review of governance, specifically with the
end of the successful term of the present Independent Chair, Siân Walker, the recruitment of a new
Independent Chair, Anu Singh, who led her first Board meeting in April 2021. The CCG remains an
engaged member including in the wider partnership development and with now contributing to the
budget of the Board.
7

https://lambethtogether.net/lambeth-together-starts-2022-with-a-pledge-to-improve-health-and-wellbeing-for-all/

Page 29
1.132 Local urgent care services work to support those who require care and support at times of crisis,
injury and harm. Local NHS providers work jointly with the Youth Violence Intervention
Programmes provided by Redthread and Oasis operating in hospital emergency departments and
in partnership with the major trauma network. Commissioned by NHS England, these innovative
services aim to reduce serious youth violence and has improved the support available to young
victims of violence.

1.133 Work is progressing across the Lambeth Children and Young People’s Partnership to ensure
Lambeth is one of the best places in the world for our children and young people to grow up.
Through the Children’s and Young People’s Partnership we have signed up to and are now on the
programme journey to become a Child Friendly Borough as part of the UNICEF Child’s Rights
Model.
1.134 This has also helped to shape the direction in which the Children and Young People Delivery
Alliance has come together to focus on three areas of transformation, which are: emotional and
mental health for young people; community health; and early years.
1.135 The Alliance work has gained momentum towards the end of 2021-22 and is now heading into the
new financial year in a strong, re-launched position. We recognise that to support children and
young people we need to deliver services that have early intervention and trauma support at the
heart. There are closer links with the work being delivered under the Lambeth Made Safer for
Young People Strategy, enabling us to work with the council and other partners to reduce the
impact of violence on young people.
1.136 The Lambeth Living Well Network Alliance is progressing our transformation programme to
provide more personalised support for individuals in the community, to reduce the potential for
mental health crisis as well as providing timely crisis intervention.
1.137 Improving, experience and outcomes for our African and Caribbean communities is a key
component of this, given continuing evidence of disproportionate hospital admission following
Mental Health Act assessments - and approximately 60% of patients on Community Treatment
Orders – suggesting there’s increased risk of breakdown in care arrangements for people from our
black and minority ethnic communities.
1.138 Actions being implemented to address this include expanding access to community reablement to
provide practical assistance to enable more people live independently in the community and
minimise potential crisis. Alongside this we have also working together with Black Thrive and
service users to co-produce an action learning pilot for a culturally appropriate peer support and
advocacy service to facilitate better engagement and provision of better care and support that is
tailored to service users and their carers needs and incorporates better crisis planning.
1.139 Our dedicated Crisis Outreach Team, which is accessed through the Lambeth Single Point of
Access for Mental Health, continues to provide urgent assessment within four hours for those
struggling in the community, and we have recently extended the service to six days-a-week as part
of our overall plan to move to have a twenty-four-hour, seven days-a-week community offer.
1.140 The South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust have also been working together with
Guys’ and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust to improve timely and safe management of patients
presenting in crisis at St Thomas’ emergency department and reduce breach of four hour wait time
targets. This has involved ensuring Psychiatric Liaison Services have appropriate capacity and

Page 30
review of local protocols to expedite identification of an inpatient psychiatric bed if admission for
assessment and treatment is warranted.
1.141 We continue to work with Lambeth GPs, Community Pharmacies and commissioned local services
to ensure we deliver a holistic approach in treating and supporting individuals with substance
misuse issues. The South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust led Drug and Alcohol
Treatment Consortium provides drug and alcohol treatment as well as a range of other health
interventions at Lorraine Hewitt House.
1.142 Service Users can also access a wide range of Recovery Support at The Harbour including
relapse prevention, education training and employment support as well as social activities including
yoga and arts. Residents can also access treatment and support from 30 GP Practices across the
borough.
1.143 The Treatment Consortium operates an open-door policy and is the first point of access for
individual assessments for opioid substitution treatments (OST), testing for blood-borne viruses,
harm minimisation interventions and a wide range of psycho-social interventions (peer support,
housing/benefits advice). This extends wider to the supervised consumption of OST and needle
exchange services delivered in over 40 community pharmacies. Inpatient detoxication and
rehabilitation services were delivered within Lambeth by Equinox Brook Drive up until August 2021.
1.144 Equinox Brook Drive service was the only inpatient detox (IPD) service for substance misuse in
London up until September 2021 when GSTT (Guy’s & St. Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust)
established a unit for complex patients. In August 2021, the Care Quality Commission (CQC)
suspended care provision at the Brook Drive service due to safety concerns. Since the CQC
notification, Lambeth acting as both host borough and as a commissioner for the Lambeth
Integrated Treatment Consortium has worked with Brook Drive and the Office for Health
Improvement and Disparities (OHID – formerly Public Health England) which is responsible for
system wide assurance to support the implementation of the required CQC standards so that the
Brook Drive IPD provision could reopen.
1.145 Unfortunately, Equinox Brook Drive informed that they intended to close their IPD service and
deregister with the CQC and use the site for new provision funded by the Ministry of Justice. When
it reopens it will be for adult males leaving prison on licence who are subject to intensive
supervision and who have complex needs. Commissioners have not yet received a timetable for
this. The commissioning team have requested more background information, including any
particular issues of impact on services or other local provision and are linking in with Council
colleagues in Public Protection and Community Safety to keep them informed.
1.146 Lambeth and the Integrated Treatment Consortium will continue to purchase IPD from providers
outside of London – in line with all other London Boroughs. Commissioners will continue to work
with OHID on a strategy aimed at creating IPD provision in London.
1.147 For young people with substance misuse issues, Brook DASH (Drugs, Alcohol Support and Health)
also deliver harm minimisation interventions, peer support programmes and drug and alcohol
awareness and advice.
1.148 Since the first national lockdown in March 2020, treatment providers and support services have
proven to be flexible in adapting to the restrictions on face-to-face contact and social distancing
guidelines by incorporating telephone consultations and Zoom meetings into their service
provision. During the pandemic, we were also focusing on the development of new in-reach

Page 31
models to be able to provide support and targeted joined-up help for people with multiple complex
difficulties.
1.149 A Covid-19 impact review was undertaken to evaluate the impact of Covid on equity of access and
alternate methos of delivery. The review found:
a.
No significant impact but presentations were impacted during the lock down periods as
shown by the quarterly data;
b.
The number retained in treatment increased slightly;
c.
Waiting times were also impacted slightly;
d.
With respect to the exits, although the numbers show they were impacted, the proportions
have not changed show planned exits improved slightly;
e.
The ethnicity, gender and age of clients appears to remain the same;
f.
Less clients had housing issues which may have been due to roll out of accommodation
support during Covid-19 but mental health identified doubled;
g.
Employment for Substance Misuse clients improved; and,
h.
Although limited data at tie of review both national and local data is beginning to show that
alcohol dependence worsened.
1.150 In addition to the Covid Homeless Response Group and its continuation of the Rough Sleeping
Grant work for those with Substance Misuse issues fed into the group and worked with Supported
Housing and other colleague in developing additional service in Hotels and Hostels.
1.151 A joint thematic inspection of community-based drug treatment and recovery work with probation
service users was undertaken in the week beginning 8 March 2021, by HM Inspectorate of
Probation (HMIP) and the CQC. Overall, the visit went well, and was constructive. Briefing and
roundtable events ensured everyone had access to information they may have needed prior to
interviews and all agencies and staff found this extremely useful. Positive feedback included:
a.
Impressed with services and service offer (including during Covid-19 impact);
b.
Impressed with Integrated Offender Management (IOM) model; and,
c.
Many of the areas for improvement are acknowledged as national issues/areas for
improvement and not issues solely related to Lambeth.
1.152 HMIP made some recommendations focused on improving working arrangements between the
Probation Service and treatment providers. The Local Authority and Probation Service have now
strengthened relationships and pathways as suggested by the visit and have successfully applied
for Public Health England (PHE) Section 32 funding for developing joint work in targeting those in
the criminal justice system with Substance Misuse issues.
1.153 It has been reported that nationally the pandemic has created conditions for more people to drink
more heavily and more often than usual, leaving many people struggling to cope and at risk of
serious alcohol harm. ONS figures show a 20% increase in alcohol-specific deaths in 2020
(compared to the same period in 2019) and a 58.6% increase in people reporting drinking at
increasing or higher-risk levels.
1.154 Alcohol Awareness Week took place from 15th - 21st November and we used this opportunity to
encourage Lambeth residents to start thinking and talking about their own or a loved one’s
drinking.
1.155 Lambeth promoted the Drink Coach Alcohol Test8 to Lambeth residents to help them assess how
risky their drinking might be. Our Lambeth GPs helped communicate this by sending out a text
8

https://drinkcoach.org.uk/lambeth-alcohol-test

Page 32
message, which was extremely successful, contributing to a high level of activity in November with
a spike during Alcohol Awareness Week. This included: 1542 visits to the site; 1300 unique visits
(up 488% from previous period); and 522 audits completed (up 587%). Almost 1 in 5 test takers
took further steps including reading more about the impact of their drinking, finding support near
them or downloading the DrinkCoach app.
1.156 Services teamed up with the Lambeth Health and Wellbeing Bus on Monday 15th November in
Streatham with our Lambeth alcohol treatment providers to offer advice and support about alcohol
use.

\
1.157 For the period between 10 – 26 August 2021 Lambeth saw an increase in drug incident overdoses
with 48 individuals in reported drug incidents with overall ten deaths (please refer to Appendix 5).
This was found to be due to contaminated heroin. LB Lambeth had reacted swiftly on 6 August
after providers contacted us with soft intelligence reports and we instigated a series of actions
including calling for Professional Information Network (PIN) meeting to collate information,
provision through providers and other networks of Harm Reduction information.
1.158 Public Health Lambeth has undertaken a Drug Related Death Review with all PIN members and
other stakeholders. We also participated in a nation-wide review of learning with OHID. Both
reviews were to assess local and national responses and identify lessons learned. These are
currently being considered in consultation with relevant partners for agreement.
1.159 Following the Drug Alert in August about contaminated heroin, there has been a concerted effort to
increase the availability of take-home naloxone – to prevent and reduce the amount of accidental
overdose fatalities - to relevant partners such as Lambeth hostels, with regular training sessions
provided by the Integrated Treatment Consortium and led by the Lambeth Service User Council.
This now not only includes the Naloxone injection but also the new Naloxone nasal devices, which
are simpler both to use and be trained on.

London Fire Brigade
1.160 London Fire Brigade (LFB) for the borough of Lambeth has a Borough Commander (Norman
Perry) and is served by four land stations and one river station:
a.
Brixton Fire Station – Station Commander John Parker;
b.
Clapham & Lambeth Fire Stations – Station Commander Matthew Hayward;
c.
Lambeth River Station – Station Commander Emma Carr; and,
d.
West Norwood Fire Station – Station Commander Gary Melia.

Page 33
1.161 Each of the Commanders have operations remits not only to serve the borough, but also PanLondon to attend incidents. In addition to these operational commitments, the Brigade is heavily
engaged with prevention work within the borough, which includes:
Fire Safety – working with our colleagues on the built environment and the challenges we are faced
with. This includes the issues with High Rise buildings and the collection of data to ensure crews
and the public are kept as safe as possible. Crews are also undertaking Fire Safety audits to shops
with dwellings above; which are premises that historically and statistically have raised concerns for
the LFB for issues with fire separation and/or unauthorised sleeping arrangements.
Community Engagement – working with our colleagues on the built environment and the
challenges we are faced with. This includes the issues with High Rise buildings and the collection
of data to ensure crews and the public are kept as safe as possible. Crews are also undertaking
Fire Safety audits to shops with dwellings above; which are premises that historically and
statistically have raised concerns for the LFB for issues with fire separation and/or unauthorised
sleeping.
1.162 In 2020 we attended 4143 AFAs (automatic fire alarm) compared to 2021 where we attended
4233, a minimal increase of 2%.
1.163 In 2020 we attended 500 accidental secondary fires compared to 450 in 2021, a decrease of 10%.
There were 54 deliberate secondary fires in 2020 and 47 in 2021, a decrease of 13%.
1.164 In 2020 we attended 64 deliberate primary fires compared to 56 in 2021, a decrease of 13%; these
were mostly smoking and naked flame related. There were 540 accidental primary fires in 2020
compared to 555 in 2021. Primarily these fires follow the national trend of being cooking, smoking
and matches/candle related.
1.165 In 2020 we attended 3062 special services compared to 3427 in 2021, an increase of 12%. The
majority of special services attended were mostly around: effecting entry to property; lift release;
making the scene safe following an RTC (Road Traffic Collision); water leaks within buildings; and
‘service not required’. In 2020 we attended 41 attempted suicides and 52 in 2021, an increase of
27%. In 2020 there were four suicides and in 2021 five, an increase of 25%.
1.166 In the fiscal year of 2020-21, we completed 737 HFSVs (Home Fire Safety Visits) of which 533
were P1 (priority, vulnerable residents). To date in the fiscal year of 2021-22 we have completed
980 HFSVs), of which 682 are P1.
1.167 Community Engagement – this area includes Home Fire Safety Visits and working with and
recognising vulnerable people in the borough to raise awareness of fire safety in the home. With
the forthcoming implementation of the Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP), the LFB are
looking to engage far wider into the community to see where/what/how we can improve. We are
also undertaking an Independent Internal Cultural review on the LFB aimed at improving our
service both internally and externally and ensuring a safe and respectful working environment for
all.
1.168 Youth Engagement - With the lifting of Covid restrictions, Cadets are once again taking place at
Clapham Fire Station on a weekly basis.
1.169 Areas of concern are the built environment and how we gather information retrospectively on
buildings and how they should behave in a fire. Lambeth Council have worked closely with the LFB

Page 34
on trying to ensure the safety of their residents through monthly meetings and a collaborative and
transparent approach towards fire safety.

Probation Service
1.170 The Probation Service (PS) is a statutory criminal justice service that supervises all eligible
offenders both in custody and in the community. We are responsible for sentence management in
both England and Wales, along with Accredited Programmes, Unpaid Work, and Structured
Interventions.
1.171 The unification of services during June 2021 means the Probation Service PS is now responsible
for all sentence management for community supervision orders and prison licences in both
England and Wales. This simplifies delivery, making it easier for those who Probation work with,
and giving Probation greater control of resources to be able to deliver reform.
1.172 We have also unified the delivery, increasing effective service user desistance and rehabilitation.
The unified Probation Service has managed and delivered Accredited Programmes, Structured
Interventions, Unpaid Work and Senior Attendance Centres across London whilst continuing to
deliver sentence management in custody and the community.
1.173 Probation Services were successful in joint bids for a specialist “through the gate” worker for prison
releases with substance misuse problems which is working very well reducing the number of on
the day relapses into drug use.
1.174 The joint bids were also successful in securing funding Private Rented Scheme housing support
workers specifically working with those leaving custody and known to Probation who do not fit the
criteria for local authority housing.
1.175 The unification has changed the way in the Commissioned Rehabilitation Services (CRS) are being
commissioned and provided across London which has simplified the referral pathways to access
the services across London increasing the number of referrals and delivery of targeted
interventions.
1.176 In Sentence Management our focus is on strengthening the probation practitioner’s relationship
with people on probation, using the right key skills, activities and behaviours to achieve the most
effective outcomes and enable offenders to make positive changes to their lives. This includes
more consistent management and delivery of sentence plans, better assessment and management
of risk, more balanced caseloads and an improved case allocation process to support this.
1.177 For Unpaid Work, Accredited Programmes and Structured Interventions we aim to make
placements and programmes available locally, with a thorough assessment and induction process,
regular reviews of active cases and ongoing professional development for staff delivering
interventions.
1.178 Other interventions that meet rehabilitative and resettlement needs are delivered by (CRS)
providers with cases managed according to the risk, need and sentence type.
1.179 For resettlement, we have an enhanced pre-release system. A community responsible officer leads
on all the pre-release activities, undertaking a comprehensive assessment and developing a
sentence plan aligned to need, risk, and victim issues. This applies to offenders prior to release
during the final phase of prison, through to transition, and post-release.

Page 35
1.180 The Probation Service Lambeth is split into different teams as shown in the organogram in
Appendix 6. The interventions team is London wide.
1.181 The Head of Service is responsible for leading the delivery unit in operational delivery and
contributing corporately to national operational delivery and priorities. They represent the PS in
local strategic partnerships and ensure appropriate representation within wider partnership
frameworks including:
a.
To ensure that staff can efficiently and effectively meet the requirements of the PS’ contract
with the partnership agencies and the Community safety partnership; and,
b.
To support local commissioning, including joint commissioning and procurement processes
and contract management
1.182 The Head of Service is responsible for the various functions across the division, including the line
management of Senior Probation officers. They oversee the MAPPA (Multi-Agency Public
Protection Arrangements) locally in conjunction with other responsible authorities, including the
chairing of MAPPA level 3 meetings and senior management authorisation or involvement on
offenders where necessary (e.g. authorising the recall of offenders to prison).
1.183 The Senior Probation Officers (SPOs) are responsible for managing Probation Officers and
Probation Service Officers with accountability for the quality delivery of good practice. They also
have specific leads within their portfolio for statutory responsibilities to representing the PS as
appropriate to the role (e.g. Local Crime and Reduction Partnership, Supporting People and
internal and external partners supporting the operational delivery).
1.184 To support the transition from youth to adult services in the criminal justice system a PS Probation
Officer is seconded to the Youth Justice Service. The co-location of units within both the Local
Authority and PS continues to promote a positive working relationship and maintains the required
integral partnership working targeted on high harm and high reoffending subjects.
Service Performance over 2021
1.185 The Probation Service is measured against National Standards introduced with unification in June
2021, therefore it is not possible to give a like-for-like measure on performance for 2020.
1.186 However, the focus has been on:
a.
Initial appointments for new court orders and those released from custody. We have
achieved an average of 95% of initial appointments seen within the expected time frame,
although we have seen a slight dip due to the increase in court sentencing;
b.
Timely Assessments: The is a focus on all offenders having a timely assessment both in the
community and in custody to direct the appropriate sentence planning;
c.
Enforcement: There is high performance levels for both recalling to custody and those
breaching community orders; and,
d.
Delivery of accredited programmes: We were able to adapt a significant proportion of our
non-accredited interventions to remote delivery and we have continued to support Service
Users. The delivery of interventions to higher risk individuals with delivery of the Domestic
Abuse and violence reduction programmes has been a priority with in person group work
programmes now running.
1.187 There has also been an increase into Level 2/3 MAPPA meetings, with the borough now having an
extra day per month for the increase in cases supporting the multi-agency management. A
snapshot of the cases reviewed are broken down in Appendix 7, while Appendix 8 indicates the
diversity of the caseload supported by the Service; please note that the figures change daily.

Page 36
Community Rehabilitation Services Providers
1.188 As part of the new unified Probation Service there will be a range of services available from
specialist external providers to meet key areas of rehabilitative services. The collective title for
these contracts is Commissioned Rehabilitative Services (CRS):
a.
Accommodation;
b.
Employment, Training and Education (ETE);
c.
Personal Wellbeing (PWB); and,
d.
Women’s Services.
1.189 Providers will work closely with Probation Practitioners and Community Integration teams to ensure
that the best outcomes are achieved for people on probation. The accommodation, ETE
(Education, Training and Employment) and PWB (Personal Wellbeing) providers provide services
across the London region whereas Women’s is a service which has been co-commissioned with
MOPAC.
1.190 Accommodation – St Mungo’s: St. Mungo’s provide support sourcing appropriate
accommodation, to adult male participants serving a custodial sentence or those within the
community.
1.191 St Mungo’s will work with People in Prison and their delivery partner Single Homeless Project
(SHP) will work with People on Probation.
1.192 St Mungo’s and SHP will provide a link to statutory and existing provision, enabling People on
Probation to overcome practical barriers and build skills to enable them to secure and maintain
settled accommodation. This will ultimately result in People on Probation securing and keeping
suitable accommodation or sustaining existing accommodation where it is suitable. Additional
barriers such as financial, behavioural, physical, mental or offence-type related will also be
successfully removed allowing People on Probation the opportunity to sustain and obtain suitable
and safe accommodation.
1.193 Employment, Training & Education – Maximus: To deliver interventions to support in
maintaining existing employment or sourcing appropriate training or education and to develop skills
to obtain employment, to People on Probation who have recently left prison and are on licence or
PSS and those on Community Orders with a Rehabilitation Activity Requirement. Maximus
services are tailored to the assessed individual needs of 18+ Male People on Probation.
1.194 Their Contract Manager will work closely with PS Managers to understand and plan for any
anticipated fluctuations in volumes or changes in People on Probation cohorts, supported by their
central MI team. All elements of their delivery can be scaled up or down to deal with higher or
lower volumes, including:
a.
One-to-one support;
b.
Group work;
c.
Digital support; and,
d.
Intensive support.
1.195 Women’s Services: The Women’s contract in London differs from the other CRS contracts as it is
co-commissioned with MOPAC. Suppliers delivering the service are Advance Minerva and Women
in Prison (WiP).
1.196 The Women's specific service is intended to ensure that the interventions are responsive to the
specific needs and characteristics of women. The service will be delivered in an environment which
is safe and suitable for women and by staff who are trained in trauma-informed and trauma-

Page 37
responsive approaches, and also in women-only group(s) and/or with the option for woman
member of the Supplier Personnel. Services are available for female users, irrespective of risk
level or complexity level.
Women’s Services for London (South)
1.197 Women in Prison (WiP) only support women living or returning to the following London boroughs:
Bromley, Croydon, Lambeth, Lewisham, Merton, Southwark, Sutton, Wandsworth.
1.198 The aim is to deliver a holistic service for women which secures improved outcomes in relation to
the following rehabilitative needs:
a.
Accommodation;
b.
ETE;
c.
Dependency and Recovery;
d.
Finance, Benefits and Debt;
e.
Emotional Wellbeing;
f.
Family and Significant Others;
g.
Lifestyle and Associates; and,
h.
Social Inclusion (including mentoring).
1.199 A range of approaches are used including direct delivery of interventions, support and advocacy,
and advice and guidance. Interventions need to be tailored to reflect the complexity of an individual
woman’s needs and to recognise and respond to barriers (including child-care commitments, social
isolation, religion, language and other cultural barriers, sexual orientation, domestic abuse,
involvement with the sex industry, childhood sexual & physical abuse, controlling coercive
relationships, substance dependency and lack of self-esteem) to achieving personal change.
Personal Wellbeing – Catch 22
1.200 Personal Wellbeing Services will be delivered to adult male People on Probation as part of a
Rehabilitation Activity Requirement (RAR), and to those on licence or Post Sentence Supervision.
1.201 Personal Wellbeing will be a fully integrated, holistic, cohesive service consisting of four key areas:
a.
Lifestyle and Associates;
b.
Social Inclusion;
c.
Family and Significant others; and,
d.
Emotional Wellbeing.
1.202 The Personal Wellbeing Service provides both mobile and flexible delivery, with the service being
provided through Personal Wellbeing Advisors/Coaches supported by peer mentors,
complementing other existing community services and integrating People on Probation into local
provision.
1.203 Delivery may be on a one-to-one basis or in a group setting. People on Probation may be referred
to a single service category or a combination of categories. Services will be differentiated by
complexity and clearly aligned to outcomes specified by Probation Practitioners. Each referral will
include an assessed level of complexity – low, medium, high – as well as at least one category
outcome, with delivery methods revolving around:
a.
Support & Advocacy;
b.
Support and Empowerment;
c.
Advice, Guidance and Information;
d.
Designing and Deliver; and,
e.
Mentoring.

Page 38
CFO (co-financing organisation)
1.204 CFO is a dedicated co-financing organisation. CFO3 is the name of the current programme and
targets offenders who have difficulty accessing current mainstream services.
1.205 Through the use of CFO Activity Hubs, safe spaces are provided for ex-offenders to build a
healthier, more stable and fulfilling life. Linking community engagement activities with key support,
the hubs provide a safe space to learn, develop new skills and meet new people.
1.206 Activity Hub participants are referred by CFO3 prime providers, the Probation Service, Prison
Education Framework (PEF) providers, prison-based staff, as well as by self-referral. Referrals will
be focused on those individuals not successfully engaging with statutory activity or those who need
additional support. Provision offered at the Hubs is delivered by CFO provider staff and primarily
focusses on delivery which will enhance resettlement services.
1.207 CRS are helpful where People on Probation have priority needs linked to their offending and which
are the focus of RAR activity or the Licence period and where regular engagement with the
probation practitioner is needed in relation to progress towards outcomes. CRS can be used for
RAR days/ Licence appointments and sessions are enforceable.
1.208 PS also works with AIR Network who deliver a full ‘through the gate and beyond’ programme which
includes meeting individuals and developing an individual support plan, tackling the immediate
practical blockages and the intensive longer-term mentoring to change behaviours, attitudes,
relationships and ultimately lives.
1.209 The joint NHS and HMPPS (Her Majesty’s Prison and Probation Service) OPD (Offender
Personality Disorder) pathway are a co-delivered and co-financed pathway of connected services
for people in contact with the Criminal Justice System (CJS) who are high risk, and likely to satisfy
a diagnosis of ‘personality disorder’. The pathway revolves around managing or reducing the risk
of future serious harm, increasing psychological wellbeing whilst providing a network of connected
services in both Prison (Brixton) and the Probation Office. This includes HerStory House, which is
a specialist supported accommodation, specifically designed for women with multiple and complex
needs who have offended.
1.210 The drug services in the area are provided through the Lambeth Drug and Alcohol treatment
consortium comprising of Phoenix Futures, the South London and Maudsley Foundation (SLaM)
and Lambeth local authority providing a range of drug and alcohol treatment services including
support Court requested assessments for Drug Rehabilitation Requirements.

2.

2.1

PROPOSAL AND REASONS
Year in Review Performance
Total Notifiable Offences – London Context
Lambeth has often been ranked in the top 10 worse offending boroughs for Total Notifiable
Offences (TNO); it was ranked 6th in 2020 and was 9th in 2019. Looking at the chart below it is
clear that several other boroughs have experienced increases in TNO over the past two years
which can be attributed to the implementation of lockdown measures having a negative effect on
partnership work and targeted police operations that had previously combined to reduce crime
prior to the pandemic. Restrictive measures not only reduce opportunities to commit an offence,
but once lifted or eased can cause a spike in offence rates as those underlying factors that push
someone to violence and remain present throughout lockdown where they can fester, are suddenly
released.

Page 39

2.2

Total Notifiable Offences – Lambeth
The average monthly Total Notifiable Offences (TNO) is 2765 offences. Over the 12 months to
December 2021, TNO had increased by 3.48% compared to the previous 12 months.

2.3

Looking at the graph below you can see the impact of the Covid-19 related lockdowns had on TNO
in the borough. 2019 shows a fair reflection of TNO in the borough, peaking in the summer periods
as more people are out of their homes. However, the implementation of lockdown and the
subsequent release both skew the figures / patterns usually observed.

2.4

For example, during the first lockdown in April 2020, TNO reduced to 1895 offences for the month,
compared to in April 2019 (2930) and below the three-year average (2765). The same can be
observed when further lockdowns were implemented in January 2021 (2026 offences) and
December 2022 (2450 offences).

2.5

However, as lockdown eases, as expected, TNO rates increase but even the peak of October 2021
(3118) did not reach the July 2019 figures (3285).

Page 40

2.6

The Table below again shows the impact of the Covid-19 lockdown, particularly when comparing the
month of February in 2020 (pre-lockdown) to February 2021 when the country was in another period
of lockdown measures.

Total Notifiable Offences Monthly Comparison
Month
February
March
April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December
January
Total

2020
2685
2518
1895
2284
2488
2902
2973
2888
2701
2577
2221
2026
30158

2021
2073
2575
2525
2693
2919
2926
2893
3084
3118
2872
2450
2645
32773

% Change
-23%
2%
33%
18%
17%
1%
-3%
7%
15%
11%
10%
31%
9%

Page 41
2.7

2.8

The majority of wards experienced a decline in offending from 2020 to 2021, although wards
including Ferndale, Clapham Town and Clapham Common experienced higher increases mainly
due to the night-time economy in the areas and/or proximity to transport routes / hubs. However,
Bishop’s Ward remains the highest area for TNO due to the high level of footfall along the South
Bank area and around London Waterloo Station.

Ward

12 months from
February 2020

12 months from
February 2021

% Change

Bishop's
Coldharbour
Ferndale
Clapham Town
Oval
Larkhall
Herne Hill
St Leonard's
Brixton Hill
Prince's
Tulse Hill
Vassall
Stockwell
Gipsy Hill
Knight's Hill
Clapham Common
Streatham Hill
Thurlow Park
Streatham Wells
Streatham South
Thornton
Total

2856
2657
1751
1606
1773
1500
1495
1637
1460
1297
1187
1237
1185
1055
1071
989
1117
1006
1122
934
671
29606

3572
2881
2016
1865
1803
1577
1571
1530
1517
1411
1298
1180
1178
1168
1143
1131
1075
1065
1055
988
621
31645

25%
8%
15%
16%
2%
5%
5%
-7%
4%
9%
9%
-5%
-1%
11%
7%
14%
-4%
6%
-6%
6%
-7%
7%

Violence Against the Person (2019 -2021)
Violence Against the Person (VAP) includes a range of offences from minor offences such as
harassment and common assault, to serious offences such as homicide, actual bodily harm and
grievous bodily harm.

Page 42

2.9

On average, 771 VAP offences are recorded each month, rates increasing by 8.66% in the 12
months to December 2021, compared to the previous 12 months.

2.10 As with other crime types, Covid-19 has had an impact. During periods of lockdown recorded VAP
offences have reduced to 636 in April 2020 and 563 in February 2021. However, the build-up of
tensions during these periods results in higher-than-average levels of VAP offences being
recorded (e.g. 880 offences in August 2020 and 958 in June 2021).
2.11 From a pan-London perspective, Lambeth is the 4th worse borough for VAP offences, experiencing
a similar increase in offence rates to other boroughs in the top 10.

Violence Against the Person
Borough
Croydon
Westminster
Newham
Lambeth
Tower Hamlets
Ealing
Greenwich
Enfield
Brent
Southwark
Total

12 months
from
February
2020
10810
8607
9125
8843
8629
8909
8284
8521
8859
8182
88769

12 months from
February 2021

% Change

11543
10766
10104
9776
9720
9653
9304
9231
9158
8544
97799

7%
25%
11%
11%
13%
8%
12%
8%
3%
4%
10%

Page 43
Possession of Weapons (2019- 2021)
2.12 On average, 32.5 offences were recorded as Possessions of Weapons each month over the period
2019 – 2021 with almost have being recorded as Possession of Article with Blade or Point and just
under 10% of the overall count being recorded as Possession of Firearm with Intent.
2.13 While other crime types have been heavily influenced by the imposing and subsequent release of
the various periods of lockdown, the lowest records for this offence are seen in November 2019
when 17 offences were recorded. However, 2019 also the highest month for Possession of
Weapons being recorded in March (50).
2.14 That said, recorded incidents of Possession of Weapons did drop in April 2020 (27), December
2020 (22 )and December 2021 (22) indicating that the lockdowns did have an effect – as did the
release from lockdown, especially during early 2021 when February recorded 44 incidents
compared to 27 in January.

2.15 On average, 32.5 offences were recorded as Possessions of Weapons each month over the period
2019 – 2021 with almost have being recorded as Possession of Article with Blade or Point and just
under 10% of the overall count being recorded as Possession of Firearm with Intent.
2.16 While other crime types have been heavily influenced by the imposing and subsequent release of
the various periods of lockdown, the lowest records for this offence are seen in November 2019
when 17 offences were recorded. However, 2019 also the highest month for Possession of
Weapons being recorded in March (50).
2.17 That said, recorded incidents of Possession of Weapons did drop in April 2020 (27), December
2020 (22 )and December 2021 (22) indicating that the lockdowns did have an effect – as did the
release from lockdown, especially during early 2021 when February recorded 44 incidents
compared to 27 in January.

Page 44
2.18 Compared to other London borough’s, although Lambeth is the worst borough, the increase in
recorded incidents of Possession of Weapons only increased by 4% to the previous year.

Possession of Weapons
Borough
Lambeth
Croydon
Westminster
Lewisham
Southwark
Newham
Hackney
Greenwich
Tower Hamlets
Brent
Total

12 months from
February 2020
360
366
283
278
344
340
319
248
271
266
3075

12 months from February
2021
376
326
322
293
291
270
266
254
232
225
2855

%
Change
4%
-11%
14%
5%
-15%
-21%
-17%
2%
-14%
-15%
-7%

Drug Offences (2019-2021)

2.19 During the period 2019 – 2021 there were an average of 196 drug offences recorded each month,
peaking in May 2020 (314) when the first Covid-19 lockdown was in effect. This can be attributed
to an increase in demand for the use of recreational drugs to alleviate the boredom of being
consistently indoors, while it was easier for the police to observe and arrest dealers as people
could be approached as to why they were not indoors, which subsequently could lead to an arrest
for Possession of Drugs and/or Drug Trafficking (as can be seen in the two other graphs relating to
Drug Offences).

Page 45

2.20 With regards to Possession of Drugs, the monthly average number of recorded offences was 179
over the three-year period, increasing to 300 in May 2020.
2.21 Meanwhile, Drug Trafficking offences average at 17 per month over the 2019-21 period, spiking at 29
in June 2020 as lockdown eased and those involved in dealing believed they could move more easily.
A similar spike was observed in the autumn of 2021 when Drug Trafficking offences increased from
10 in September to 31 in November, before dropping to 21 offences in December as the lockdown to
reduce the impact of the Omicron variant was imposed.

Page 46

2.22 Although Lambeth is in the top ten boroughs in London for recorded Drug Offences, there was a
reduction in offences over the twelve-month period.
Drug Offences
Borough
Westminster
Tower Hamlets
Newham
Croydon
Southwark
Lambeth
Brent
Greenwich
Ealing
Barking and
Dagenham
Total

12 months from
February 2020

12 months from
February 2021

% Change

3277
3117
2983
2738
2364
2405
2320
1996
2280

2967
2440
2316
2272
2271
2263
1935
1755
1642

-9%
-22%
-22%
-17%
-4%
-6%
-17%
-12%
-28%

1658

1621

-2%

25138

21482

-15%

Page 47
Robbery (2019 – 2021)
2.23 The crime of robbery involves (1) the taking of the property of another (2) from their person or in
their presence (3) by violence, intimidation or threat (4) with the intent to deprive them of it
permanently.

2.24 12 months to December 2021, Robbery rates had increased by 8.86% compared to the previous
12 months. This can be attributed to the winter 2020 lockdown being fully implemented while in
December 2021 the nation was entering a further, albeit less restrictive lockdown period.
2.25 There were an average 104 total robberies during the period 2019-2021, peaking in November
2019 (158) and dropping to 40 in May 2020 in line with the Covid-19 lockdown and less people
leaving their homes. Indeed, the same impact of lockdown can be seen during January 2021 when
56 robberies were recorded. However, as lockdown eased during 2021 the rates of robbery rose to
a three-year high to 161 recorded incidents over August and September.
2.26 When reviewing robbery of business property, during the 12 months to December 2021, this type
of robbery increased by 15.28% compared to the previous 12 months, most likely the result of the
less restrictive lockdown imposed during December 2021 compared to that of winter 2020.
2.27 With an average 7.5 robbery of business property offences recorded in the borough over the 201921 period, the rate remains below the December 2019 peak of 17 recorded offences.
2.28 The majority of robbery offences recorded are categorised as Robbery of Personal Property. In the
12 months to December 2021, Robbery of Personal Property rates increased 8.45% compared to
the previous 12 months. There were an average 96 Robbery of Personal Property per month
recorded in the 3-year period, peaking in August 2021 (157 – as more people were taking
advantage of the good weather and reduced Covid-19 lockdown restrictions) and 150 in November
2019 (when more people would have been out socialising in the lead-up to the festive period).

Page 48
Robbery Offences
Borough
Westminster
Hackney
Lambeth
Haringey
Newham
Southwark
Camden
Tower
Hamlets
Islington
Enfield
Total

12 months from February
2020
1851
1518
1087
1409
1494
1437
1143

12 months from February
2021
2392
1411
1268
1243
1230
1149
1091

%
Change
29%
-7%
17%
-12%
-18%
-20%
-5%

954

1033

8%

1118
1013
13024

982
897
12696

-12%
-11%
-3%

2.29 Lambeth has experienced an increase of 17% in the period February 2020 – January 2022,
making it the third highest borough for robbery offences in London. Westminster has experienced
at 29% increase, which demonstrates how areas with a high footfall and tourism (like Lambeth has)
can lead to this type of acquisitive crime.
Burglary Jan (2019 – Dec 2021)
2.30 Burglary consists of entering a building or part of a building as a trespasser intent to commit theft,
grievous bodily harm or criminal damage; or having entered as a trespasser, stealing or
inflicting/attempting to inflict grievous bodily harm.

Page 49
2.31 12 months to December 2021, Burglary rates had decreased by 14.19% compared to the previous
12 months.
2.32 There were an average 222 total burglaries during the period 2019-2021, peaking in March 2019
(339) and dropping to 136 in February 2021 in line with the Covid-19 lockdown. Indeed, for all of
2021 the burglary rate has remained under the three-year average.
2.33 Delving into the burglary category in more detail, during the 12 months to December 2021,
Burglary on Business and Community had reduced by 26.11% compared to the previous 12
months, most likely the result of the lockdown imposed during December 2021 to slow the spread
of the Omicron variant of Covid-19.
2.34 Meanwhile, in the 12 months to December 2021, Burglary rates on residential properties had
reduced by 10.5% compared to the previous 12 months. There were an average 171 burglaries on
residential properties per month in the 3-year period, peaking at 262 in March 2019 and again in
July 2019 (227) and September 2020 (225) as more people would be out of their homes (the latter
possibly being linked to when children returned to school with less parents / carers working from
home).
2.35 From a pan-London perspective, with burglary rates decreasing by 9%, Lambeth is 7th in the top 10
boroughs for burglary.

Burglary Offences
Borough
Southwark
Tower
Hamlets
Hackney
Barnet
Westminster
Wandsworth
Lambeth
Haringey
Enfield
Lewisham
Total

12 months from February
2020
2452

12 months from February
2021
2519

%
Change
3%

2677

2507

-6%

2583
2707
2781
2265
2490
2057
2333
2410
24755

2500
2447
2377
2283
2262
2254
2159
2108
23416

-3%
-10%
-15%
1%
-9%
10%
-7%
-13%
-5%

Lambeth Made Safer - Lambeth’s Violence Against Young People Strategy
2.36 The Lambeth Made Safer Strategy was launched in December 2020 and now in its second year of
delivery. It builds on the commitment made by Lambeth Partners in 2018 to tackling violence
affecting young people through the development and implementation of the Preventing Serious
Youth Violence Programme.
2.37 Lambeth Made Safer (LMS) aims to realise the long-term ambition of ensuring young people,
families and communities do not suffer the tragic consequences of violence against young people
by ‘making Lambeth one of the safest places in London for children, teenagers and young adults.
2.38 The strategy, informed by a comprehensive public health needs assessment published in 2019,
identifies a range of risk factors for violence against young people. Risk factors are grouped by

Page 50
theme i.e., individual, peer, family, community/environment, and highlight the importance of data
and intelligence to both understand the scale of issues locally; and monitor the difference we are
making to mitigate risk and increase protective measures where necessary. Alongside other
national research and guidance, the strategy continues to develop the intelligence picture via
information sharing, collaborative working with statutory partners; and keeping abreast of public
data. National research demonstrates that there is no golden bullet solution to this challenge, but
that the most impactful solutions need to ensure that provisions for early years interventions, as
well as emotional and wellbeing programmes and diversionary for young people are incorporated.
2.39 There have been changes to the previous governance and delivery structure for this area of work,
with the programme oversee by the Lambeth Made Safer Strategy board and delivery boards for
each of the workstreams. The revised structure is illustrated in Appendix 9.
2.40 With reference to Appendix 9, the key changes to the structure can be summarised as follows:
a.
The standing-down of the LMS Implementation board, with the inclusion of the LMS
workstream leads at the LMS Strategy Board. This change has been implemented in order to
streamline the governance for strategic leadership;
b.
The LMS workstream meetings and the LMS strategy board operate on rotating bi-monthly
basis, in order to ensure due focus and appropriate time is given to the project leads in
between meetings; and,
c.
The workstream aspect of the structure has developed into focused programme plans with
the delivery outputs against specific objectives within the LMS Strategy.
Programme Update 2021-22: Key achievements from the Lambeth Made Safer Programme
workstreams
2.41 Intervene Early and Prevent: This workstream has a specific focus on interventions to improve
children’s start to life, risk identification, trauma response and preventative responses. The
development of the Intervene Early and Prevent workstream has, and will continue to include the
four key elements of the revised early help delivery model, cited in the Early Help Streatham Pilot
Evaluation, 2019 as:
a.
Local early help contacts for each locality providing advice and consultation;
b.
Multi-agency panels, now referred to as the Locality Action Panel (LAPs), where local
partners could apply creative problem-solving methods to cases referred by services;
c.
A comprehensive toolkit consisting of new whole family assessment and planning tools; and,
d.
A dedicated training offer that responded to local needs.
2.42 Disrupt & Deter: This workstream has a specific focus on interventions to improve trust and
confidence in police actions, enable safe and crime free transport, tackle exploitation, reduce
access to weapons and disrupt the drugs market. In practice this has been delivered through:
a.
The development and launch of the stop and search improvement plan, detailing a range of
specific projects to improve community trust in police actions, the quality of stop and search
encounters and the cultural competence amongst new and existing officers;
b.
Regular dip sampling by supervisors of officers’ stop & search body worn video;
c.
Stop and search engagement events have been delivered with young people, through the
Independent Advisory Group (IAG), Community Monitoring Group (CMG), Lambeth &
Southwark Young Advisors and the Coldharbour Ecosystem Consortium;
d.
Co-production of training/awareness workshops with young people in collaboration with
Black Thrive Partnership, looking at the wider impact of stop and search on the individual
and the community;
e.
Successful intelligence-led sweeps alongside Public Protection for dangerous weapons; and,
f.
Launch of Multi-Agency 4P Plans to disrupt the activity of the top 12 Gangs across Lambeth.

Page 51
2.43 Safe Spaces: This workstream has a specific focus on interventions to develop housing to
respond to local needs, ensure our environment, parks and public spaces are safe and free of
crime, tackle homelessness within 18–25-year-old young people and improve the quality of the
environment on our housing estates. This has been delivered through:
a.
Completion of the first roll out of locality-based engagement programmes, including a range
of environmental and estate improvements in Tulse Hill;
b.
Revitalised 6 neglected spaces and working with grass root / community organisations to
connect groups to spaces and deliver activities that mitigate violence against young people;
c.
Mobilised an intensive-level floating support service for 25 Care Leavers through Single
Homeless Project;
d.
Overhaul and redesign the transition pathway to independent living, in order to improve how
the needs of each young person are accounted for;
e.
Mobilising a mid-level floating support service for 20 Care Leavers via Settle;
f.
Implementation of a Joint Protocol with Metropolitan Police Partners to tackle Unlicensed
Music Events (UMEs); and,
g.
Completion of Rush Common (Crime hotspot) pilot to deter anti-social behaviour / crime.
2.44 Educate & Train: This workstream has a specific focus on interventions to help children and
young people meet or exceed educational standards, sustain safe and healthy relationships,
secure and maintain employment, access, and sustain participation in an inclusive learning
environment and nurture their talents, gifts, and skills. In practice this has been delivered through:
a.
Delivery of creative drama, Healthy Relationships workshops;
b.
Delivery of the Raising the Game and Somos Lambeth programmes to improve aspiration
levels and educational attainment Black Caribbean and Portuguese speaking students
respectively;
c.
Implementation of routine termly meetings between Educational Psychologist and school
SENCOs, to ensure teachers have the knowledge they need to identify speech and language
issues;
d.
Delivery of a varied training offer on sexual violence/gender equality in the relationships and
sex education (RSE) curriculum. The offer has further developed to include webinars/training
for sexual violence/gender equality with VAWG;
e.
Establishment of the Primary Fair Access Panel (FAP). Secondary FAP well established with
permanent exclusions currently down to 1 in the current year to date and 5 last year. Down
from 43 at its peak;
f.
Delivery of the Building Safer Futures programme which commenced in December 2021 at
St. Martin-in-the-Fields High School;
g.
Successful launch of Youth Hubs programme with 4 operational branches at Streatham,
Stockwell, West Norwood, and Clapham (Lambeth College); and,
h.
Delivery of The I AM Programme which aims to improve access to apprenticeships, colleges,
and Russell group universities.
2.45 Respond & Support: This workstream has a specific focus on interventions to ensure there is a
swift and coordinated response is provided to serious incidents of violence against young people,
appropriate advocacy, and support to victims, targeted and specialist support to prevent offending
and reoffending and work with perpetrators to ensure the risks they may pose to themselves, or
others are addressed. This has been delivered through:
a.
The completion of a revised critical incident protocol for serious crimes - setting out the
response from the local authority and partners where appropriate, manage community
impact and support victims and witnesses accordingly;

Page 52
b.

c.
d.
e.

Comprehensive review of existing panels in relation to structure, terms of reference and
interdependencies with other panels; has led to the creation of the Multi-Agency Violence &
Exploitation (MAVE) panel launched in October 2021;
Recruitment and deployment of outreach workers to work in partnership with police, public
protection, Early Help, and community safety to target hotspots;
Recruitment for victim advocate to support access, contribution, and participation from young
people in Council’s services and programmes; and,
Launch of the summer violence prevention programme: small grants awarded to local
organizations to deliver diversionary and engaging activities for young people from Jul-Oct
2021 in the 7 high risk areas for incidents of serious youth violence.

2.46 Engage & Involve: This workstream has a specific focus on interventions to create a shared
approach and culture to community collaboration, build community resilience, share community
intelligence, and develop shared responses with communities to address and lessen the impact of
serious youth violence incidents; and increase community awareness of the services we offer. This
has been delivered through:
a.
Completion of an innovative and youth-centred plan to engage young people and involve
them in our work to limit the impact of serious youth violence; and,
b.
Development of the multi-channel engagement approach to improve engagement with the
intended audience.
Lambeth Made Community
2.47 Many of the core components of the Engage & Involve workstream are delivered through the
Lambeth Made Community (LMC) programme, in that it is directly relevant to the aim of building
community resilience, sharing intelligence, and developing shared responses. LMC is a councillor
led initiative which seeks to engage with residents by giving them a forum to explore issues
affecting their community’s safety, and resilience, so that these issues can be addressed in an
accountable manner. Although LMC is a distinct programme it is a key foundation to the
community engagement and interaction with residents that underpins Lambeth Made Safer.
2.48 LMCs are delivered through a ward-level model, which builds upon the pilot programme
undertaken in 2019-20 in the 5 wards identified as high risk in relation to violent offending and
community safety. Since October 2021, LMCs have been held in Coldharbour Ward, Streatham
Ward, and Tulse Hill Ward. Working with colleagues in Neighbourhoods, we have secure
resources to ensure that LMC can expand to all wards during 2022- 23.
2.49 In addition to these forums, frequent reassurance exercises alongside Youth Justice, MPS, Public
Protection, and the wider Safer Lambeth Partnership were undertaken in Angell Town Estate and
Belinda Road in the aftermath of serious incidents with a fatality of a Lambeth resident. These
exercises will adopt the process used in the LMCs to take account of all issues and concerns
raised by residents, which later form the basis of a live action plan; and used to provide detailed
feedback to residents on the progress in the areas identified.

Counter Terrorism
Prevent
2.50 Prevent is one strand of the government’s counter-terrorism strategy, CONTEST, and aims to
reduce the threat to the UK from terrorism by stopping people becoming terrorists or supporting
terrorism. In the revised CONTEST strategy (June 2018), Prevent has three specific strategic
objectives:
a.
Tackle the causes of radicalisation and respond to the ideological challenge of terrorism;

Page 53
b.
c.

Safeguard and support those most at risk of radicalisation through early intervention,
identifying them and offering support; and,
Enable those who have already engaged in terrorism to disengage and rehabilitate.

2.51 Local authorities have a statutory duty to deliver a Prevent programme. Section 26 of the Counter
Terrorism and Security Act 2015 places an obligation on specified authorities including local
authorities to have “due regard to the need to prevent people from being drawn into terrorism”. This
is known as the Prevent Duty.
2.52 In addition to the statutory requirement to deliver a Prevent programme, which is mandatory for all
English local authorities, Lambeth is assessed by the Home Office to be a Prevent Priority Area
which faces a heightened level of risk.
2.53 The threat level from terrorism at the time of writing is SUBSTANTIAL meaning an attack in the UK
is considered likely. While this remains at the same level as the last scrutiny report in March 2021,
the threat level was raised to SEVERE in November 2021 following two terrorist incidents in the UK
and reduced in February 2022. The borough’s iconic sites and crowded places remain potential
targets for attack by self-initiated lone actor terrorists – Lambeth was struck by a terrorist attack in
February 2020 and a further four terrorist attacks have occurred on Lambeth’s borders since 2017.
2.54 The most significant threat remains a Lambeth resident becoming radicalised and engaging in a
self-initiated low-complexity terrorist attack on the borough. The tragic murder of Sir David Amess
MP in Essex in October 2021 highlighted the impact such an attack, which remain difficult to
predict and prevent. While Islamism-inspired extremism is considered the most likely ideological
inspiration for such an attack, the borough has also seen an increase in reports of Extreme-Right
Wing graffiti in 2021.
2.55 It is also highly likely self-radicalisation is occurring online, and this issue remains a continuing
threat due to the readily accessible nature of extremist content. The police Counter Terrorism Local
Profile, our own risk assessments and our casework suggest this was the main route into
radicalisation for Lambeth residents in 2021-22. However, concerns still remain about other routes,
including the influence of family members or friends already involved in extremism; the influence of
fellow inmates in prison; and the impact of mental ill-health.
2.56 The local Prevent response to these routes continues to be based on ensuring frontline staff in
social care and education settings are aware of the risks and know what to do if they are
concerned; building resilience and critical thinking skills in young people who are most at risk of
online radicalisation; supporting communities to better understand local Prevent delivery and the
risks facing the borough; and working in partnership with other agencies and the police to manage
the risk posed by, and to, vulnerable individuals.
Prevent Action Plan 2021-22
2.57 Statutory guidance issued by the Home Office to local authorities mandates the development of a
Prevent Action Plan developed against an assessment of local risk. In Lambeth, this plan is
overseen by the CONTEST Sub-Group, which is chaired by the Chief Executive, and by a Prevent
Partnership Group comprised of other local bodies with statutory Prevent responsibilities, chaired
by the Prevent Programme Manager.
2.58 The Prevent Action Plan was updated in August 2021 and shared with the CONTEST Sub-Group.
It continues to have four thematic targets which actions work towards:
a.
Safeguard those at risk of being drawn into terrorism;
b.
Increase resilience to radicalisation in Lambeth’s young people;

Page 54
c.
d.

Engage with communities to build their involvement with Prevent; and,
Work in partnership to manage risk and share best practice.

2.59 The plan also includes an overview of the broad responsibilities of the local authority and relevant
specified local Prevent partners to meet the Prevent duty which is discussed quarterly at the
Prevent Partnership Meeting.
2.60 Safeguarding those at risk – As in 2020-21, this strand of work has focused on delivering
effective multi-agency safeguarding casework through the Channel process, and on ensuring staff
are trained to play a role in that process.
a.
The Lambeth Channel panel has continued to run online, meeting each month as per
statutory guidance. Attendance from partners has been good and online meetings have
continued to allow easier access for individual case practitioners. Case numbers have been
lower than previous years, likely as a result of fewer referrals being made during the Covid19 pandemic;
b.
The Prevent team continue to be engaged in the MASH (Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub)
process and are also a named agency in the new MARAC information sharing process. A
quality assurance review of referrals of young people (including care leavers up to 25 years
old) completed between March-September 2021 during preparation for an Ofsted visit
showed good coordination between Children’s Services and Prevent in line with existing
referral pathways;
c.
Prevent training for staff has been updated and delivered online through the Lambeth
Safeguarding Children’s Partnership and briefings to teams in Children’s Services and Adult
Social Care. A Prevent page created on the Children’s Services Practice Hub includes links
to online training and a best practice guide for social workers, and follow-up training for the
IRH (Integrated Referral Hub) and EDT (Emergency Duty Team) will be delivered in 2022-23
to ensure Prevent-related cases continue to be dealt with effectively; and,
d.
The team has continued to engage with the PS MAPPA (Probation Service Multi-Agency
Public Protection Arrangements) process for all Terrorism Act offenders and offenders of
extremist concern released on to the borough.
2.61 Increasing resilience in young people – This strand of work has continued to support education
settings to meet their statutory Prevent duties, as well as managing Lambeth’s Home Office-funded
projects. Full training and project participation figures for the 2021-22 year are not yet available, so
as with previous reports, the figures for training and projects cover the previous year.
a.
The Prevent Education Officer (PEO) trained 590 people in education settings between April
2020 and March 2021, a significant drop on the numbers reached in the previous year. This
was a result of the restrictions put in place in response to the Covid-19 pandemic, as well as
the PEO being redeployed to support ‘track and trace’ and the critical safeguarding team as
staff shortages caused by Covid-19 absences impacted on the council;
b.
The PEO also continued to provide audit advice to help settings fulfil their ‘Prevent Duty’
requirements, as well as working alongside police and social care colleagues to advise on
safeguarding concerns, risk-assess these concerns and then help manage cases involving
school-aged individuals;
c.
Prevent projects reached 5,586 young people in the borough during this period, an increase
of 15% on 2019-20. This was due to sessions moving online as a result of the closure of
schools in response to the Covid-19 pandemic, so while the numbers have increased, it is
worth highlighting that the individual engagement may not have had the same impact as inperson sessions;
d.
These projects included:

Page 55
i.

e.

2,849 young people reached by workshops addressing the ways in which
extremists/gangs try to recruit young people and how young people can stand up to
this process;
ii.
304 young people reached by workshops using theatre techniques and discussion to
help young people develop the awareness and knowledge to challenge racism and
extreme views;
iii.
2,421 young people reached by sessions developing young people’s critical thinking
skills and understanding of stereotyping;
iv.
12 teachers trained in using a Philosophy for Children approach to develop their skills
to deliver lessons which discuss extremism, terrorism, and identify issues with young
people; and,
The PEO also played an important role in the authority’s response to terrorist incidents in
2021-22, engaging with partners in line with the Terrorist Incident Policy.

2.62 Engaging with communities – This strand of work has focused on delivering the newly
established community Prevent Advisory Group (PAG) and maintaining contact with communities
during the Covid19 pandemic.
a.
The Prevent Project Officer (PPO) has continued to develop their engagement with
communities during 2021-22, developing a new Community Engagement Strategy to guide
this work. This has included initial ‘getting to know you’ meetings with settings and offering
Prevent briefings. Despite the lack of significant lockdowns in 2021-22, much of this
engagement has remained remote;
b.
The PPO has also continued to engage with the Clapham Common PSE Forum and other
LGBT+ venues to address hate crime risks and worked with the PEO to deliver a number of
stalls during National Hate Crime Awareness Week. The PPO also continued to disseminate
information to communities in the wake of terrorist incidents such as the Liverpool Women’s
Hospital bomb attack and the Colleyville synagogue hostage-taking in January 2022;
c.
The Lambeth PAG (made up of representatives from faith communities, education settings,
and VCS groups) continued to meet quarterly. These meetings have provided community
members with a briefing on the threat level to Lambeth and an overview of Prevent delivery,
provided a forum for discussion on issues such as media coverage of attacks, and also
allowed the group to meet the Independent Reviewer of Prevent to discuss their views on the
programme; and,
d.
The Prevent team has also funded a project (alongside the London Boroughs of Croydon,
Lewisham and Southwark) to host an online portal providing advice and support for parents
on digital issues. This has also included a programme of free online events addressing online
extremism and safety, misinformation, online gaming and more, as well as a personalised
support function. Over 200 Lambeth parents have engaged with the service to date, and
many more have been signposted towards the online portal, with the final evaluation to be
completed in March-April 2022.
2.63 Working in partnership and managing risk – This strand of work has continued to focus on
ensuring Prevent has effective governance structures, works to actions developed in line with local
risk assessments, and is working closely with partners to manage risk.
a.
There has been ongoing oversight of the Prevent programme by the CONTEST Sub-Group,
and the newly established Prevent Partnership has met each quarter to review the Prevent
Action Plan and receive updates from the DfE (Department for Education), NHS, HMP
Brixton, and Probation Service, as well as Counter Terrorism (CT) and local policing;
b.
The Prevent Programme Manager has continued to attend the monthly Police Security
Review Meeting and all MAPPA (Multi-Agency Public Protection Arrangements) panels for
Lambeth residents convicted of TACT offences or of extremist concern, taking away actions
to help manage risks identified;

Page 56
c.

d.

The Prevent team has provided submissions assessing local risk levels to the Prevent
Prioritisation process and Counter Terrorism Local Profile (CTLP) process. The Lambeth
Prevent Risk Assessment and Risk Register was also updated between August and October
2021 following the publication of the South Area CTLP by police in April 2021; and,
Partnership working as part of wider Prevent networks such as the London Prevent Network
(LPN), Prevent Tasking Advisory Group, and London Counter Terrorism Advisory Network is
ongoing, as is the PPO’s regular cluster meetings with other borough’s Prevent engagement
teams.

The Impact of Covid-19 on Prevent Delivery
2.64 The Covid-19 pandemic has continued to have a significant impact on Prevent delivery during
2021-22, particularly in the education and community engagement work strands. It has also
continued to have an impact on referral numbers, with queries from partners lower in Q1 than
usual and only beginning to recover to pre-pandemic numbers in September 2021.
2.65 The figures included above from 2020-21 highlight the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on
delivery in education settings, with the number of staff trained falling to lowest level for a number of
years. However, this has been addressed in 2021-22, with nearly 1,100 staff trained already this
financial year. In addition, the innovation in online delivery shown by project providers in 2020-21
saw the number of young people reached by Prevent-funded projects increase on the previous
year. This learning has also been taken into 2021-22 as providers have used it to respond to staff
shortages during the Omicron variant wave.
2.66 The Prevent team’s ability to engage with communities has also continued to be impacted by the
Covid-19 pandemic, as risk assessments have often suggested face to face meetings be
cancelled, particularly during the Omicron variant wave. The PPO has continued to develop on the
contingency plans developed in 2020-21, using virtual platforms to attend events and network, as
well as to run the PAG.
2.67 Finally, it has remained challenging for Prevent teams and our police partners to fully understand
the level of risk posed by terrorism as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. In April 2021, Counter
Terrorism Policing highlighted that “the easing of lockdown restrictions could provide a greater
opportunity for terrorists to operate”. Both Europol and the MPS have also highlighted the
radicalisation risks posed by the increase in time vulnerable people may be spending online during
2021. However, with no significant lockdowns in 2021-22 to date, it has become easier for
professionals to engage people vulnerable to radicalisation who might otherwise have been
isolated from support services during 2020-21.
Protect (Counter Terrorism)
2.68 Protect is part of the national counter-terrorism strategy, that focuses on physical and policy
improvements to make locations more secure.
2.69 Lambeth’s Protect work to date, takes form in the provision of security infrastructure and structural
improvements to the public realm, to reduce the vulnerability of public spaces from a vehicle as a
weapon (VAW) attack at identified key sites within the borough.
2.70 Historically these sites have been identified/ provided by the Counter Terrorist Security Advisor
(CTSA) from the Police and prioritised in terms of the maximum number of people protected (falling
under the termed heading “Crowded Spaces”). This advice ranked the South Bank as the top site
within the borough.

Page 57
2.71 Design and Build work has been in progress since 2019, to provide HVM (Hostile Vehicle
Mitigation) measures at 10 sites along the Thames riverside between Lambeth Pier and the OXO
Tower/ borough boundary. This also includes reinforcing and raising the height of the Lambeth Pier
Wall and the provision of the HVM granite wall on the north section of Bernie Spain Gardens.
Substantial completion is on track for the end of this financial year.
2.72 The securing of Windrush Square which started in February 2020 pre-pandemic, was delivered in
a two-phased approach (temporary and permanent). This provided 26 strategically placed concrete
blocks on the square to protect the site whilst the permanent scheme was developed. 126
permanent security bollards with bespoke heritage sleeves have been installed and the project
close down phase has started this week. Windrush Square also fell under the “Crowded Spaces”
heading.
2.73 The CTSA has provided Lambeth a new list of sites which is currently in desktop study phase,
confirming which locations already have proposals in place or already contained within our future
projects Within this list, some of the sites are ‘grey spaces’, i.e. areas outside venues or areas
between venues/attractions. Working with the BTP (British Transport Police) and TfL (Transport for
London), the mapping ‘grey spaces’ within high-risk areas across the borough will inform future
engagement work aimed at increasing awareness of the risk and improving coordination and
communication between stakeholders. An initial pilot engagement plan for the Vauxhall Cross area
remains in development, with a further four areas identified for future work.
2.74 Additional support continues to be provided to privately owned sites that come under the list to
fund and deliver their own protection on our highway with benefits for the freeholder, Lambeth and
their customers.
2.75 It should also be noted that some sites on the list would only become vulnerable during events and
therefore HVM may not be the (only) solution. We will seek guidance from the CTSA and the
Council’s RSES (Register of Security Engineers and Specialists) consultant for some of these
locations.

Violence Against Women and Girls
Strategic Overview
2.76 This section provides an overview of activities in 2021 and reported information for the financial
year 2020-21.
2.77 Addressing Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) remains one of the key priorities of the
Council, our elected members and partners. Lambeth is recognised as leading the way on
coordinating the response to VAWG.
2.78 In recognition of this, Lambeth Council has committed to maintaining funding for VAWG services at
the same or increased levels, despite significant financial pressures.
2.79 The Lambeth Made Safer VAWG Strategy 2021-27 was published on 18th October 2021 following
adoption by Cabinet on 4th October. This is our third VAWG strategy9 and has five new strategic
priorities: Specialist Support, Working Together, Community Response, Children and Young
People, and Reducing Harm from Perpetrators.
2.80 The refreshed strategy has been co-produced with victims and survivors, residents, practitioners,
and ‘critical friends’ from a wide range of specialist services. The co-production and consultation
9

You can access the full strategy at our webpage

Page 58
utilised the expertise of those who have accessed our specialist services and have lived
experience, as well as the wider community and practitioners from a wide range of specialist
services.
2.81 The strategy is aligned with national and regional VAWG strategies and outlines our vision, goals,
and commitments as a partnership to preventing and tackling all forms of VAWG over the next six
years.
2.82 A specially created animation10 explaining what VAWG is, the contents of the strategy and how
residents can be involved in delivery was launched at a virtual public event on 25th November
2021, coinciding with the International Day for the Elimination of Violence Against Women.
Governance
2.83 To support the delivery of the strategy, a VAWG Strategic Partnership Board has been established
and the first meeting was on 2nd November 2021. The Board brings together partners from across
key statutory and voluntary services to provide strategic overview to ensure a coordinated and
consistent response to VAWG.
2.84 Under the Board, there will be an operational Delivery Group, with responsibility for monitoring the
actions set out in the strategy and ensuring that emerging operational issues are resolved.
Members of the Delivery Group co-ordinate, deliver and evaluate impacts through regular and
robust performance management. Representatives will be from across key statutory sector
services and specialist VAWG VCS (Voluntary and Community Sector) organisations.
2.85 The VAWG Forum (practitioner led with a membership of over 350 specialist VAWG practitioners
from the statutory and voluntary sector) can escalate to the Delivery Group any operational issues
that are problematic and that cannot be resolved by one agency alone.
2.86 The Strategic Partnership Board will hold partners to account and report progress to the Safer
Lambeth Partnership Executive, the Lambeth Safeguarding Children’s Partnership and the
Lambeth Safeguarding Adults Board.
Commissioned specialist services
2.87 In 2020-21, we committed to fund three distinct services: refuge accommodation; the Gaia Centre;
and specialist support associated with Female Genital Mutilation (FGM)/cutting.
Refuges
2.88 We fund 52 refuge beds, which is the highest number of commissioned refuge beds in any London
borough and twice as many as the London average.
2.89 The provision of refuge beds is a service that is provided across England. It is commissioned and
funded, on the whole, by Local Authorities. What this means in practice is that a victim of domestic
abuse (and their children) should be able to access a refuge bed, subject to space being available,
anywhere in the country regardless of whether they have a local connection to the area.
2.90 The reason for this is that if a victim needs to leave their home and access emergency refuge
accommodation in the majority of cases it means that it is unsafe (due to the risk of future violence)
to remain in their home and/or in the local area. It is at the point of leaving an abusive relationship
that victims are often at the highest risk of future harm, which includes being killed. Often victims
and survivors need to leave their local area, and their connections (including schools) to stay safe.
10

You can watch the animation here

Page 59
2.91 There is a national refuge helpline run by Refuge, and most victims and survivors access refuge
beds via this route. Victims and survivors can also self-refer and can be referred by a support
service.
2.92 The demand for refuge beds is very high, and so in an emergency the victim/survivor will go to
wherever there is a vacancy. This could be anywhere in the country. This was recognised in the
new duties under Part 4 of the Domestic Abuse Act (2021). The Act places duties on tier one
authorities – in London this is the Greater London Authority (GLA) – to deliver support to victim and
survivors and their children in ‘relevant safe accommodation’. The duties include developing and
preparing needs assessment and strategy, (de)commissioning, monitoring and evaluating, and
convening a partnership board. Tier two authorities – such as the London boroughs – are obligated
to support tier one authorities in their duties.
2.93 The Council funds the support element for 52 refuge beds for women and their children and single
women, with support from the GLA as the tier one authority and they will be utilising the Part 4
funding to commission additional services that will benefit Lambeth women and children.
2.94 Due to the high level of demand our beds have high occupancy rates with very few voids. The
refuges are delivered by two providers, Solace Women’s Aid (SWA also sub-contract part of this to
Asha) and Refuge. Out of the 52 beds, 84% (44) of our refuge provision is for Black, Asian and
multi-ethnic women. The table below outlines the provision that is provided in Lambeth:

Refuge Provider

Project
Name

Bed
Spaces

Specialism

Solace Women’s Aid

Solas
Anois

10

Irish and Traveller women specialism (NB this is
the only refuge with this specialism in England).

Solace Women’s Aid
and Asha

Asha

19

South Asian women

8

Generic provision

15

Women of African or African Caribbean descent

Solace Women’s Aid
Refuge

Emmeline
House
Refuge

2.95 Over the last five years we have been successful in securing a number of additional funding
streams from central government and other grants. We have used these to top-up funding for the
Gaia Centre, our refuge beds and other work to sustain levels of provision.
2.96 In 2020-21 we supported 81 women in our refuge accommodation; a lower number than previous
years due to Covid-19 related social restrictions and the impact on moves. An additional 152
women and their children were turned away due to lack of capacity during this timeframe. While
those referred are provided with alternative refuge options and immediate support, this
demonstrates the high levels of demand. We have raised this issue at a regional level as the
demand is a concern that needs to be resolved nationally and the new Part 4 duties seek to
address this.
2.97 With Covid-19 and associated lockdowns during 2020-21, our refuge providers moved to virtual
working and were able to remain open and accepting referrals. Move on options for residents were
reduced due to the social restrictions but fewer victims and survivors were fleeing initially, though
referrals and moves stabilised over the year.

Page 60
The Gaia Centre
2.98 The Gaia Centre provides confidential, non-judgmental and independent support services for those
living in the London borough of Lambeth who are experiencing gender-based violence. A wide
range of support is provided at the Gaia Centre which includes advocacy for high-risk victims, a
sanctuary scheme to enable victims and survivors to safely remain in their homes and prevent
homelessness, a peer mentoring and volunteering scheme to improve health and wellbeing and
reduce isolation, and group and therapeutic work for victims and their children to increase
recovery. There is an Early Intervention Team who support girls over the age of 13 years who have
experienced VAWG and children aged 11+ who have been impacted by domestic abuse.
2.99 In 2020-21 the centre received a total of 1,156 new referrals. These were made up of 95% female
referrals and 5% male referrals, with a small number of non-binary clients. Of clients who engaged
with the service there were 904 related children. The outcomes for the service are extremely
positive, with 98% of victims and survivors stating increased feelings of safety, 98% of victims
noting an improvement in their quality of life, and 99% of victims and survivors feeling increased
confidence in accessing help and support.
2.100 Lambeth Housing continue to fund the Sanctuary Scheme, which is delivered through our
commissioned specialist service, the Gaia Centre. The scheme provides victims of domestic abuse
with enhanced security measures, enabling them to safely remain in their homes and prevent
homelessness. In 2020-21 we supported 124 victims and survivors through the Sanctuary
Scheme.
2.101 A consequence of the Covid-19 social restrictions was that there was a decrease in referrals to
support services, and in particular, self-referrals, during the first national lockdown. However,
referrals increased as restrictions were lifted and levelled out over the year, though there was an
increase in those cases assessed as being at high-risk of serious harm or homicide and the
complexity of cases increased.
2.102 Additional funding was provided to the Gaia Centre by Lambeth Council during the first lockdown
to purchase additional equipment to allow all staff to work remotely with the aim of ensuring full
capacity of staffing. The service was able to remain open and accepting referrals. Two additional
members of staff were funded to manage the increase in referrals and complexity of cases.
2.103 As social restrictions came in to force in March 2020 because of the Covid-19 pandemic, Lambeth
Council developed a strategic and operational approach to inform adaptations to our
commissioned services and our communications and interventions. We worked on a basis of five
expected trends:
a.
The main impact of Covid-19 social response measures would be on domestic abuse
b.
Existing domestic abuse would be highly likely to increase in risk, severity and frequency
c.
Survivors’ options for respite, keeping themselves safe and managing risk would decrease or
be impeded
d.
Survivors would need additional knowledge and support to safely access help
e.
Survivors’ help-seeking options would decrease.
2.104 These expectations formed the basis of our strategic approach and priority work strands and were
informed by existing evidence regarding the impact of external stressors on domestic abuse and
incorporating learning from other countries.
2.105 A data analysis of 2020 compared to 2019 in relation to domestic abuse supported our initial
assumptions and the actions taken during this period.

Page 61
Africa Advocacy Foundation (AAF)
2.106 The VAWG Strategy includes building on our work so far, across the partnership, on preventing
and responding to FGM/cutting. In 2020/21 we maintained funding for a specialist local FGM
provider, Africa Advocacy Foundation to undertake work in Lambeth. This has provided training to
110 Lambeth frontline professionals, the recruitment and training of 33 community champions who
have reached over 3100 community members, and 1:1 therapeutic support and case work to 150
women who have undergone FGM.
2.107 As social restrictions came in to force in March 2020 because of the Covid-19 pandemic, AAF
moved to providing online and telephone support. AAF were successful in securing funding to train
additional community champions to manage an increase in referrals and in ensuring the provision
of food and other essential household items to their most vulnerable clients.
Lambeth Early Action Partnership
2.108 In 2014, Lambeth was awarded £36 million from The Big Lottery to implement a ten-year
programme to bring about sustained change for local people. The programme is called "A Better
Start" and locally is called Lambeth Early Action Partnership (LEAP). The partnership is led by the
National Children’s Bureau. Lambeth Council are one of the key partners. One element of the
LEAP programme was to develop a work strand to provide domestic abuse support and
interventions to parents of children under four years old in the four LEAP wards (Coldharbour,
Stockwell, Tulse Hill and Vassal) within Lambeth11. To ensure integration with the Safer Lambeth
strategic VAWG approach, it was agreed that Lambeth Council VAWG Team would lead the
commissioning of this work strand; this includes dedicated case workers and a workforce
development offer.
2.109 The LEAP funded workforce development offer came to an end in March 2020 but was
mainstreamed into the Safer Communities wider delivery. The learning from this test and learn post
has informed the current offer of bespoke workforce development to Early Years settings in the
borough and the creation of a new strategic priority to address the needs of children and young
people.
Safer Communities work Domestic Homicides Reviews (DHR)
2.110 Two Lambeth Domestic Homicide Reviews were ongoing in 2021. The role of DHRs is to make
sure that any lessons are learned locally, and (in conjunction with other reviews) nationally, to
improve practice in order to prevent future homicides.
2.111 In 2018 the Safer Lambeth Partnership began the process of DHR 004 in relation to the murder of
“Elaine” in April 2018. The review was published in February 2021 and representatives attended
additional panel meetings to provide updates on actions taken to meet the recommendations,
reflect on the impact of the learning and its sustainability, and to agree the finalisation of the action
plan.
2.112 DHR 005 reviews the death of a Lambeth resident in December 2020. The process was initiated in
2020-21 and remains ongoing.
Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC)
2.113 The Lambeth Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC), which is led by the Council, is
a risk management meeting where professionals share information on high-risk cases of domestic
abuse and put in place a risk reduction plan. This is a significant element of our work and
Although Lambeth’s Ward boundaries are changing, LEAP will continue with in these geographical locations (i.e. within the
‘older’ boundaries).
11

Page 62
continues to deliver an effective coordinated response to victims who are at a high risk. In 2020-21
the MARAC supported and worked towards safeguarding 757 adult victims and their 738 children.
This represents a significant increase of 35% in victim referrals since the previous year.
2.114 The MARAC’s effectiveness is measured through the “repeat rate”. In 2020-21 30% of cases
discussed at Lambeth MARAC were repeat referrals, a decrease of 2% from the previous year.
Where there is a further incident of domestic abuse within a 12-month period, a case will be
referred back into the MARAC. Therefore, it can be shown that for 70% of the cases referred to
MARAC last year, there were no further incidents of domestic abuse.
2.115 SafeLives are the organisation responsible for the development and rigorous quality assurance of
MARACs across England and Wales. SafeLives have provided the current average repeat
victimisation rate for London, which stands at 25% and increases nationally to 28%. SafeLives
have highlighted that a mature MARAC, like Lambeth, is performing well if it maintains repeat
victimisation between 28-40%. This not only recognises that most victims/survivors experience
multiple incidents of domestic abuse, but also demonstrates that agencies in Lambeth are
recognising repeat incidents of domestic abuse and referring to MARAC.
2.116 Due to Covid-19 related social restrictions, the MARAC moved to virtual meetings and these have
remained in place for 2021. MARAC agencies have demonstrated excellent partnership working to
ensure victim/survivors and their children would continue to receive risk management measures
through the MARAC.
2.117 In April 2020 the MARAC moved to fortnightly meetings in response to increasing referral numbers
and this remained in place for 2021.
2.118 In 2021 the VAWG Project Officer has led on a MARAC development project alongside the
Business and Performance Improvement team to move the MARAC information sharing process
onto a digital case management system. Since April 2021 the MARAC has utilised Mosaic, a digital
case management system used by Lambeth Social Care, to process and store data. Data from
referrals is inputted into the system, which is then virtually shared with partners. Each partner then
uses the system to input their feedback which is then visible to all other partners. The Mosaic
system will enable the Safer Communities VAWG team to obtain much more in-depth data which
will lead to a deeper understanding of the cases the MARAC is discussing, intersectionality of
MARAC victims/survivors and any differences in outcomes. It will also help to inform future
MARAC development and ways to address sustainability and the growing increase in cases
discussed.
Lambeth Sexual Exploitation and Harm Panel (SEHP)
2.119 The VAWG team also manage the Lambeth Sexual Exploitation and Harm Panel (previously the
Lambeth Prostitution Group), a MARAC-style risk management partnership for women at high risk
of harm due to involvement in sex work/prostitution and/or sexual exploitation. In partnership with
representatives and in line with the new strategy consultation findings, there have been significant
developments with the SEHP in 2020-21. This includes a review of the Terms of Reference,
membership, frequency and case recording and the changes and current arrangements are being
independently evaluated by Fulfilling Lives.
2.120 The SEHP aims to address the safety and support needs of individuals discussed, identify trends
in support provision, and gaps in interventions to enable the prevention of harm, and to hold
perpetrators to account. A large number of harms are associated with involvement in sex
work/prostitution – to the individuals involved in it and to local communities in the area. Whilst sex

Page 63
work/prostitution does not necessarily create these problems, it often exacerbates them or places
those involved at greater risk of harm.
2.121 The panel consists of statutory and voluntary agencies and includes specialist VAWG services and
services specifically supporting sex workers/those involved in prostitution.
2.122 In 2020-21 19 cases were discussed at the SEHP, demonstrating the demand for a holistic multiagency response to support women at risk due to involvement in sex work/prostitution and/or
sexual exploitation.
2.123 This is a 46% decrease in cases discussed from the previous year. To combat the year-on-year
decrease in referrals and improve the effectiveness of the panel, the terms of reference of the
panel were reviewed and updated. This resulted in a change of referral criteria, clarification of the
aims and objectives of the panel and improved engagement with local agencies, leading to
Children’s Social Care (CSC) and South London and Maudsley becoming partner agencies. The
changes have helped to increase the number of cases referred to the panel, with an increase in
cases discussed in 2021.
2.124 Due to Covid-19 related social restrictions, the SEHP moved to virtual meetings for 2020-21.
Training
2.125 In 2020-21 750 Lambeth practitioners received training through our open training programme
which is an increase on the 716 trained in 2019-20.
2.126 In 2020-21 the VAWG team quickly adapted to Covid-19 restrictions moving the Lambeth open
training programme to an entirely online interactive format, and it has been running smoothly in this
way since.
2.127 The training programme consists of a range of courses covering all areas of VAWG. The core
courses provide an introductory overview of the most prevalent VAWG issues in the borough.
Additionally, we offer a range of courses delivered by, or co-facilitated with, specialist services
based on emerging themes and issues raised by practitioners, research and domestic homicide
reviews.
2.128 In 2021 we also developed a number of recorded webinars on topics such as MARAC, risk
assessment and safety planning, domestic abuse and the impact on children, economic abuse,
and Housing and domestic abuse. These allow practitioner to access learning flexibly and
increases the reach of our training programme. We have also developed month ‘reflective space’
sessions that are free and available to all practitioners working with Lambeth residents. These
sessions are themed each month but also allow practitioners to bring VAWG related issues and
cases to discuss with peers and specialists.
2.129 We measure the effectiveness of the training with a series of short questionnaires given at the end
of each training session as well as measuring short and long-term changes to practice.
2.130 To mark the International Day for the Elimination of Violence Against Women on 25 November and
the subsequent 16 days of activism, the Safer Communities Team held a public virtual event to
launch our new VAWG Strategy 2021-27 and the specially created animation. The event featured
talks from specialist services and statutory partners on the work currently underway and planned to
tackle all forms of VAWG.

Page 64
Domestic Abuse Employee Policy and Guidance
2.131 In 2019 Lambeth published a domestic homicide review into the death of Lambeth resident known
as ‘Sophia’ in which we committed to creating a workplace domestic abuse policy for Council
employees as well as sharing learning with organisations in the borough. In partnership with
Human Resources, specialist services and the Unions, the Safer Communities VAWG team
launched Lambeth Council’s first Domestic Abuse Employee Policy and Guidance in 2021.
2.132 The policy sets out the Council’s approach to its employees experiencing and perpetrating abuse
including its commitment to supporting victims and survivors and holding perpetrators to account. It
highlights our legal obligations and other relevant policies including the Code of Conduct. The
guidance compliments the policy by providing practical step by step advice on recognising
indicators of abuse, asking safely about abuse and responding appropriately for both victim and
survivors and perpetrators. It covers complex issues such as managing cases where victim and
survivors and perpetrators both work at the Council and providing Council services to employees
who have experienced or perpetrated abuse. There are sections for line managers and other
colleagues. There is a directory of specialist support and extensive suggestions for what the
Council can do to support employees. It considers the safety of children, adults at risk and
residents as well as employees.
2.133 We worked with Respect – specialists in working with domestic abuse perpetrators – to create and
deliver training for all HR colleagues and created a short webinar aimed at line managers and
available for all staff to raise awareness. This comes alongside a mandatory 1.5-hour
comprehensive domestic abuse awareness online training course available to all staff.
2.134 We are planning how to best disseminate learning and best practice with partners across the
borough.
Public spaces programme
2.135 The abduction and murder of Sarah Everard and subsequent vigil in March 2021 increased
resident disclosures and help-seeking particular around sexual harassment and sexual violence.
Our community based VAWG support service – the Gaia Centre – saw a 14% increase in referrals
from April-June 2021 compared to January-March 2021.
2.136 In 2021 Lambeth had the highest rate of rape and other sexual offences in London with a 5%
detection rate. Reports decreased during the first lockdown but increased as restrictions lifted to
higher rates than had been reported since recording began in 2017. March – June 2021 recorded
significant increases in all sexual offending as restrictions were lifted and our night-time economy
has started to reopen. 38% of our community VAWG provision cases are related to sexual
violence.
2.137 In 2021 we worked with Licencing and Lambeth Business Improvement Districts to offer Good
Night Out Campaign12 accreditation for venues in our main night time economy (NTE) areas. Good
Night Out Campaign are a specialist organisation who support nightlife spaces and organisations
to better understand, respond to, and prevent sexual harassment and assault, through specialist
training, policy support and an accreditation programme.
2.138 In response to an increase in disclosures from young people, we funded Rape Crisis South London
to deliver a series of online webinars to school staff on the key principles to responding to sexual
violence.

12

http://www.goodnightoutcampaign.org/

Page 65
2.139 We worked with Police to support implementation of their new Project Vigilant operation in 2021 to
ensure this was in line with the VAWG strategy and approach in Lambeth. In the Met’s Central
South Borough Command Unit, which covers Lambeth and Southwark boroughs, police are
trialling Project Vigilant, which has been developed from a successful Thames Valley Policing
operation. This involves teams patrolling busy night-time locations to identify and deter predatory
offending. These teams are made up of both uniformed officers and officers in plain clothes from
Public Protection and the Predatory Offender Unit who are working together in order to make the
area a hostile place for offenders.
2.140 In July 2021 the Safer Communities Team worked closely with Public Protection and Regulatory
Services (PPARS), the capital team and Police to submit an application to MOPAC for the Home
Office Safer Street Fund Round 3 and were successful in being chosen as their primary
submission. There were three lots of funding agreed for London: City of London Corporation:
£28,812.00, Lambeth Council: £544,385.62, Southwark Council: £353,661.00 and we were
awarded the full amount applied for.
2.141 The aim of this Fund is to improve the safety of public places for all, with a particular focus on
reducing Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) crimes and improving women and girls’
feelings of safety in public places. The Fund also aims to grow local capability and build the
evidence base of what works to tackle VAWG crimes and improve feelings of safety in public
places.
2.142 For this bid, we formed a Safe Spaces for Women and Girls sub-group which included
representatives from across the council, police, and local community organisations including Black
Thrive, our community-based specialist VAWG service the Gaia Centre and Lambeth AntiHarassment Campaign. This group informed the development of the bid and it aims to create a
systemic approach to take practical public realm action alongside improved two-way
communication with our residents on this issue.
2.143 The funding is enabling us to develop a communications campaign and a reporting route that will
be staffed with an officer who will respond to reports, build intelligence and task solutions based on
this intelligence. Two targeted public realm projects were initiated in 2021 to be delivered in
Clapham Common and Rush Common in Brixton. These public realm projects are focused on
increasing visibility using lighting, CCTV and environmental management, resulting in reduced
ability for perpetrators to ‘hide’ and increased safety and feelings of safety for women and girls
using these public spaces. By communicating these practical activities to residents, we aim to
improve intelligence, monitor impact of these works, increase reporting, deter perpetrators, and
develop the opportunity for future environmental improvements.
Future developments
2.144 South East London CCG has agreed to provide funding of £585k over three years to be directed
into the Lambeth Council Integrated Children’s Commissioning team to meet the identified needs in
the Primary Care response to patient’s experiences of domestic abuse. The funding will support
the commissioning of IRISi13 – a social enterprise established to promote and improve the
healthcare response to domestic abuse. This tailored and dedicated programme will include
Clinical Leads and Advocate Educators based in the Gaia Centre. The funding will also enable
recruitment of a MARAC liaison worker post hosted by GSTT to offer one single point of contact
with clinical knowledge and access to Health systems, to represent all Primary Care Networks
within MARAC process, following a successful small-scale pilot.

13

https://irisi.org/who-we-are/

Page 66
2.145 The contract will be held, overseen and monitored, by the Safer Communities team within
Integrated Children’s Commissioning to ensure the programme is embedded in wider strategic
oversight and delivery of the VAWG programme and strategy. This will also be supported by the
new Health and VAWG Working Group created in 2021 to bring together partners from across the
whole Health economy and Local Authority to identify gaps and opportunities to ensure a
coordinated and consistent response to VAWG.
2.146 We will be embedding our new VAWG Strategy and creating the annual action plan with input from
partners to inform the implementation of the strategy delivery and to ensure that this is focused and
allows for adaption to reflection and learning from the implementation period. This will ensure that
we are able to prioritise the creation of a panel of experts by experience, a survivors’ forum and a
young people’s forum, as well as solidifying collaboration with Lambeth Made Communities so that
residents and our communities are able to shape future plans.
2.147 We will be working with MOPAC and the GLA to implement their newly funded services to
maximise the offer in Lambeth while working with them to address concerns re longer-term
commissioning arrangements to ensure parity across London.

Anti-Social Behaviour
Public Protection, Assurance and Regulatory Services
2.148 Public Protection, Assurance and Regulatory Services (PPARS) includes:
a.
The Public Protection team, who deal with anti-social behaviour (ASB) across the borough,
and provide a responsive noise service to businesses and residents;
b.
The Intelligence and Analysis team whose work informs our deployment and approach;
c.
Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) which provides valuable support to proactive operations
and surveillance as well as post-incident evidence;
d.
The integrated Partnership Plus Police team; and,
e.
Trading Standards, who work to protect consumers and support compliant businesses.
2.149 These teams whose specific work in relation to the Safer Lambeth Partnership priorities of reducing
crime and disorder in Lambeth is highlighted within this report. They work alongside the other
teams in PPARS – Licensing and Street Trading, Private Sector Housing Regulation and
Enforcement, Food, Emergency Planning and Resilience, Technical Services and Health & Safety.
All the teams in PPARS aim to make the borough a safer, more compliant place for people to live,
work, study and visit.
Public Protection
2.150 Public Protection’s primary function is to identify and tackle ASB and noise nuisance. This involves
investigation, engagement and enforcement across a wide range of areas including unlicensed
music events, environmental crime, pollution, non-compliant licensed premises, unlicensed street
trading, street drinking, littering, begging, on-street gambling, highways contraventions, and
tackling SYV as well as assisting rough sleepers, and looking into issues of vulnerability. Public
Protection regularly undertake intelligence-led operations to tackle these issues across the
borough.
2.151 Public Protection chair and co-ordinate high profile multi-agency meetings such as the Vulnerable
Victims Panel and Partnership Tasking Group (PTG). Public Protection also represent Lambeth at
the Police Intelligence and Tasking Coordination meeting.
2.152 The team also undertake themed multi-partnership seasonal operations at night such as Autumn
Nights, to tackle individual problematic licensed premises and areas of concern. Autumn Nights

Page 67
and other seasonal operations involve partners from Lambeth Regulatory Service (Trading
Standards & Licensing), Lambeth Environmental Health, Metropolitan Police, Neighbouring Local
Authorities, and the Immigration Service.
2.153 This year Public Protection have continued our approach of focusing on service users’ experience
based on customer insight and demand data. This has continued to make it easier and faster for
residents to log complaints and get resolutions. Public Protection have designed new IT systems to
help improve the delivery of proactive intelligence-led interventions.
Dealing with Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB)
2.154 In 2021 there were 13,626 recorded ASB and noise nuisance investigations launched by the Public
Protection team. The vast majority of these related to acts directed at people, disregard for
community or personal wellbeing or the misuse of a public space. This represents an increase of
32.2% on the previous year (9,243) which we believe may be attributable to the more people
working from home coupled with the progressive easing of Covid-19 restrictions as significant
increases in reporting were noted during periods of lockdown. Improvements were also made to
the Council’s website to make it easier for residents to report issues relating to ASB, which may
also account for the increase in reports over 2021. It should also be noted that due to Covid-19
restrictions, the Public Protection service developed alternative operational arrangements, as we
were unable to undertake home visits to support Noise Nuisance investigations; however, we have
recently restarted home visits and reverted back to previous arrangements, again which may have
led to the increase in reporting over 2021.
ASB service breakdown for 2021

2.155 In 2019 & 2020 Coldharbour, Ferndale and Larkhall wards were heavily featured in the top 5 wards
for service requests:
Top 5 wards for service requests 2020

2.156 In 2021 Brixton Hill ward recorded the highest amount of service requests in recent times. Having
interrogated the data further, it appears that these figures have been skewed by a repeat
complainant who has contributed to a significant amount of the complaints received in this ward.

Page 68
Top 5 Wards for service requests 2021

2.157 During 2020 we saw a 300% increase in members enquiries with a large portion of these
complaints relating to various forms of noise nuisance. This figure has come down in 2021 but is
still higher than the pre-Covid levels.
2.158 In 2021 Public Protection went through a restructure to better align our services with the change in
demand and now operate a 7 day a week service, with the emphasis being on our Out-of-Hours
service delivery as the past 2 years has shown us that most of our challenges come from ASB
happening on evenings and weekends.
2.159 The Metropolitan Police also received over 9,741 phone calls reporting anti-social behaviour during
the same period – which is a decrease on the previous year. Unlike last year, the met received
their highest number of calls in Jan 21(1085), which was during a period of national lockdown.
There was a slight change from last year with the “summer peak” starting in spring months (most
likely aligned to the release from lockdown), whilst dropping off in July and August.
Monthly Breakdown:

2.160 ASB Nuisance’ makes up the most common form of ASB reported, and accounts for 93% of all
ASB reported and is defined as a person or group of people causing trouble, annoyance or
suffering to a community. ‘ASB Personal’ incidents (defined as a person targeting a specific
individual or group) reported to Police were proportionately lower but remained at a similar number
to those reported in 2020.
ASB type breakdown:

Type
ASB Environmental
ASB Nuisance
ASB Personal

Count
277
9086
378

Percentage
2.84%
93.28%
3.88%

Page 69
2.161 The public space protection order (PSPO) – which effectively ‘bans’ street gambling which is an
issue in the South Bank area - runs until October 2022. Due to the Covid-19 related drop in footfall
in this area there has been a marked drop in cases relating to / involving illegal gaming and related
modern slavery. Public Protection are currently working with partners from City of Westminster
Council and the Metropolitan Police to collate the evidence needed for a new application
submission. This PSPO will go out to consultation in the summer of 2022 with a renewal scheduled
for late autumn 2022.
2.162 There are also two other PSPO’s within Lambeth, for Legal Highs and Street Drinking. These
PSPO’s cover the entire borough and are used to tackle ASB in and around festival event
footprints and hot spot areas. The PSPO for Legal Highs expired last summer as due to Covid-19
we could not collate the required evidence base. Public Protection are currently working with
partners from the Metropolitan Police to collate the evidence needed for a new application
submission. The PSPO for Street Drinking is due to expire in autumn 2022 and Public Protection
are currently working with partners from the Metropolitan Police to collate the evidence needed for
a new application submission.
2.163 In anticipation of Covid-19 restrictions easing in 2021, the Public Protection team led on the
development of a strategic problem-solving approach to reduce crime and ASB on Lambeth
estates in line with the Lambeth Made Safer strategy workstreams, Safe Spaces and Disrupt and
Deter. This strategic approach included weekly weapon sweeps in identified hotspot areas and
regular intelligence-led joint enforcement operations. In total Public Protection and partners have
conducted approximately 49 weapon sweeps this year, recovering approximately 67 weapons that
could be attributed to serious youth violence. Public Protection were also instrumental in the
recovery of a scorpion sub-machine gun, shotgun, and ammunition from an abandoned vehicle on
a Lambeth estate.
2021 activities for Public Protection in relation to ASB are summarised below:
2.164 Jan – May
a.
Reclaim These Streets protest: Public Protection coordinated the authorities’ deployments in
relation to these protests at Clapham Common following the Murder of Sarah Everard;
b.
Crime and ASB audit carried out in partnership with the Police of all the businesses in
Knights Hill and Thurlow Park;
c.
Night of action focused on licensed premises, checking for compliance. Officers from Public
Protection, MPS, Partnership Plus, Trading Standards, Police licensing and Licensing
participated on the night;
d.
Public Protection focused activities on tackling gang related ASB & nuisance on Tulse Hill
Estate;
e.
Operation on ASB linked to betting shops in Streatham;
f.
Operation on street drinking in Streatham and Norwood;
g.
Easter Bank Holiday UME (Unlicensed Music Events) proactive deployments;
h.
Waterloo Robbery Theft & Snatch proactive partnership operations with MPS and BCU
partners;
i.
Public Protection coordinated weekly UME and PSPO engagement operations at Kennington
Park Extensions. Partners included London Borough of Southwark, Lambeth Parking,
Lambeth Parks and Lambeth Highways;
j.
Bank Holiday UME proactive deployments;
k.
Proactive deployments at UMEs on Moorlands Road, Somerleyton Estate and Corry Drive;
and,
l.
Bank Holiday Weekend UME Activity.

Page 70
2.165 June – December 2021 (This period saw a shift in activities due to Covid-19. Please see the
‘Covid-19’ section for more information. During this time the following ‘business as usual’ activities
were undertaken):
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.

Co-ordinated and led on the Council’s engagement on Afrikan Emancipation Day Reparations
/ Reparation Rebellion March and event in Brixton;
Co-ordinated and led on partnership-based Bank Holiday weekend deployment, to tackle
UMEs, ASB and Noise-related issues;
Co-ordinated and led on partnership-based approach to monitoring Extinction Rebellion (XR)
protests;
Co-ordinated Safer Workspaces engagement operations;
Co-ordinated and led on partnership-based monitoring of NTE venues screening matches
from the Euro 2020 (football) Championships;
Co-ordinated and led on partnership-based monitoring and PSPO enforcement at 8 festivals;
and,
Co-ordinated and led on partnership-based monitoring of rough sleeping hot spot areas,
conducting multiple engagement deployments, and clearing two known encampments.

Activity Tracker
2.166 In 2021 the Public Protection service developed an Activity Tracker - as recommended by the MPS
- to record all key operations, dates and activities we conducted over the course of the year. This
tracker allows us to plan our resources and deployments for the upcoming year effectively by
highlighting “red days” and is used to alert our partners to anniversaries of key events (e.g. those
linked to the murder of Sarah Everard).
2.167 During this financial year Public Protection has conducted over 110 operations/ activities boroughwide and the deployments have been analysed as follows:
a.
13 operations in line with Governments Roadmap out of lockdown (from 8 March), where
people in England saw restrictions start to lift and the government’s four-step roadmap offer
a route back to a more normal life whilst ensuring that businesses, residents’ and visitors
remained Covid safe;
b.
37 weapon sweeps in line with the Disrupt and Deter LMS workstream & the Summer
Violence Prevention Plan contributing to make estates, parks and open spaces safer and
helping to prevent serious youth violence;
c.
46 Operations in line with the LMS Safer Spaces workstream, including licensed events in
parks (festivals), Protests (anti-Vax and Reclaim These Streets) & Bank holiday UME
activity. Helping to reduce the impact of ASB and VAWG related complaints in and around
the foot print of said events/activities; and,
d.
14 operations linked to the Safe Spaces work streams, including UME and misuse of space
activities at Kennington Park Extensions, Unlicensed Events and the XR protests improving
the quality of life for residents and park users.
2.168 Public Protection was audited in 2020, and the recommendations outlined in the resulting report
have been adopted: IT systems and procedures continue to be developed in an effort to maximise
service delivery.
2.169 Public Protection restructured our service in 2021 in line with the recommendations of the 2020
noise audit and to provide service users with a better customer experience. We created new job
descriptions (from Public Protection Officers to ASB investigators) to focus on improving the quality
of our ASB investigations and outcomes for victims with a particular emphasis on reducing the risk to
victims and repeat victimisation.
2.170 Public Protection received approximately 12,162 service requests related to noise during 2021,
showing an increase of 39% from last year’s total of 8754, peaking in May and June where we

Page 71
received a combined total of approximately 1950 requests. There was a slight dip in July and
another rise in August (approximately 950 service requests).
Unlicensed Music Events (UMEs)
2.171 UMEs were identified as a strategic priority for the Safer Lambeth Partnership. The Metropolitan
Police Service (MPS) reported in 2020 that the Central South BCU recorded the highest number of
UMEs in London in the preceding 12 months and more than double that recorded in any other BCU.
Consequently, a dedicated workstream for reducing the volume and risks associated with UMEs
was incorporated in the Lambeth Made Safer Strategy, on which Public Protection leads.
2.172 Under the UME workstream a robust protocol was developed between Lambeth Public Protection
and the MPS Central South BCU prioritizing fast-time information sharing and rapid joint
intervention tasking around intelligence relating to planned UMEs. Following a successful trial
period in late 2020, the Lambeth UME protocol was fully adopted in early 2021 and endorsed by the
Metropolitan Police under operation Lakenvelder which revised the MPS policy to dealing with
UME’s. In every case where the Lambeth UME protocol has been activated, it has successfully
prevented a planned UME from taking place. This has been recognized as good practice by London
Councils and Lambeth has delivered several best practice sessions to Community Safety
Partnerships around London.
2.173 UMEs generally present a seasonal issue from April to August, peaking in the summer months
however since implementation of the Lambeth UME protocol there has been a marked reduction in
the number of UMEs in Lambeth.
2.174 UMEs present a significant challenge to the Safer Lambeth Partnership, as these unsanctioned
events are often linked to gang criminality, drugs supply, serious youth violence and human
trafficking through county lines. In addition to public safety concerns, UMEs often present safety
issues for police as well as council enforcement officers. Preventative measures are prioritized
wherever possible and following spontaneous UMEs; Public Protection follows up with joint
investigation to support post event enforcement and prevent the likelihood of any repetition. Public
Protection take officer safety very seriously and we work with partners to continuously look for new
ideas and strategies to identify best practices and improve safety.
2.175 UMEs have been added as a standing agenda item to the MPS Central South BCU daily
Pacesetters meeting attended by Public Protection, Community Safety, the Probation Service and
Community Safety colleagues from the London Borough of Southwark. The BCU Local Intelligence
Team proactively monitors social media for information on any upcoming events and joint
intervention visits are tasked at Pacesetters in line with the Lambeth UME protocol.
Lambeth PartnershipPlus team
2.176 The MPS PartnershipPlus scheme is a Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) scheme that is endorsed
by the Mayor’s Office for Police and Crime (MOPAC) and allows Local Authorities to purchase
Police Officers at a reduced rate, with the MPS absorbing pension and support costs.
2.177 Over the past year the Proactive Partnership Plus Team (P+ Team), have dealt with many aspects
of policing that would were non-BAU (Business as Usual) due to Covid-19 restrictions. The team
have moved with the changes in the guidance and issued large numbers of advice, warnings and
FPN’s due to the breaches following the 4E’s (Engage, Explain, Encourage and Enforce).
2.178 The daily duties of the team often include foot and mobile patrols around the borough proactively
looking for issues and criminality. The team currently have one Police Sergeant and three Police
Constables, and we have been on the forefront of dealing with some of the Borough’s most

Page 72
challenging issues. The team has led on an array of issues and are currently leading on
investigating and tackling different acts of criminality within the Brixton triangle (Brixton Station
Road/ Popes Road/ Atlantic Road) by way of issuing Criminal Behaviour Orders (CBOs) to
offenders post-conviction. We conduct regular visits to crime hotspot areas within the BCU where
crime and ASB take place through our powers to stop and search individuals and groups. We also
support Public Protection with weapon sweeps in these and hot spot areas.
2.179 As a team we have dealt with many serious ongoing issues, one being the ATM thefts in
Streatham. These suspects were targeting older members of the public at ATM’s withdrawing
cash. After a demanding investigation we narrowed down dates and times and were able to catch
suspects in the act. After a lengthy chase all involved were arrested and charged with theft and
fraud offences. A great result for the Borough and for the residents living in the area.
2.180 The P+ team have dealt with many aspects of ASB, nuisance and crime across Lambeth over the
past year. There have been some extremely challenging issues that have made the press. We are
proud of the professional manner in which they were dealt with and how we deal with things on a
daily basis.
2.181 In June 2021 there was a UME at Lambeth Walk where officers were injured during an attack from
members of the public who were fleeing the UME. There were large amounts of alcohol and drug
paraphernalia found inside the basement flat. The team dealt with the issue on a cohesive level
with Lambeth Licensing and Public Protection teams, whilst working with other police partners to
make the best case against the party organisers. This was a successful investigation and ended
with the premises being issued a closure notice by the court. The neighbours were at the end of
their tether and were more than thankful when the joint partners from Lambeth put a halt on the
illegal activities taking place.
2.182 This is just one example of the good and well managed work that does and can continue to take
place with the consistent relationship between the P+ team and the Local Authority.
2.183 The team have applied for and executed 7 warrants this year for drugs and prostitution offences.
All of which were a success and are currently awaiting their days in court. We also have two further
warrants awaiting to be heard at court. Due to the nature of some of these warrants, closures have
been sought and on four occasions we have applied for the closures for 3 months and have been
awarded for our efforts every time.
2.184 During the weekends when the night-time economy begins the P+ team extend their knowledge to
the Licensing Act 2003 where we deal with licensing matters across the BCU. We complete
licensing visits and interactions, give advice and guidance according to the Act and Covid-19
guidance where needed. We have held Covid-19 clinics for venues to attend and discuss what
they need to do in order to operate within the rules and regulations which the venues have said
they felt supported by us doing so.
2.185 The team have become well-known in the borough for the partnership work that we do and always
make time to stop and discuss any issues with the public and partners where necessary. We pride
ourselves on being the leaders in taking action and getting a good job done.
2.186 We work closely with our Licensing Team who this year alone have had four reviews bought to the
committee, 18 intervention meetings for serious issues undermining the Licensing Act and 29
formal meetings with venues on a stepped approach. This alongside the day-to-day business and
keeping the NTE safe in only reflected in the great working relationships we have as a team with all
of the venues across the BCU.

Page 73
Partnership Tasking Group (PTG)
2.187 A significant innovation led by Lambeth Public Protection Team in 2021 was the establishment of a
weekly multi-agency forum focused on tacking serious and chronic ASB and crime issues in the
borough which require a targeted partnership problem solving approach.
2.188 Early intervention is tasked and coordinated through the dynamic review of current and
corroborated shared intelligence, rapid deployment of joint operational resources, effective tactical
resolutions and relentless follow up and assessment to prevent recurrence.
2.189 The Joint Enforcement Tasking Group comprises of the Neighbourhood Policing Teams’ Inspector,
Brixton Town Centre Police Team Inspector, Heads of Service for Parking and Highways
Enforcement, Environmental Enforcement, Planning Enforcement, Community Safety and Housing
Tenancy Enforcement and is chaired by the Head of Public Protection. This forum provides a
weekly review of partnership operations and a dynamic, intelligence-led joint tasking process
through which the Safer Lambeth Partnership can better manage the threat, harm or risk
associated with neighbourhood crime and ASB.
2.190 The Joint Enforcement Tasking Group provides a means by which the Lambeth Council and
partners within the SLP can assure itself of proactivity in relation to long term, entrenched crime
and ASB problems in the borough. The purpose of the Joint Enforcement Tasking Group is to
deliver the SLP’s strategic objectives through tactical and operational multi-agency enforcement. It
is primarily concerned with the following:
a.
Hotspot tasking – high visibility patrols in identified crime and ASB hotspots to prevent crime
and ASB, provide community reassurance and disrupt and deter offenders. Joint patrols are
coordinated with police and Council Enforcement Teams and targeted to the temporal profile
for the areas of concern (i.e. maximizing visible patrols on peak days and at peak times for
offences);
b.
Supporting victims and targeting offenders – prioritising the reduction of repeat victimisation
by supporting and encouraging victims to report and substantiate allegations of crime and
ASB to enable perpetrators to be investigated and brought to justice using all available civil
and criminal enforcement powers. These include Fixed Penalty Notices, Community
Protection Notices and Criminal Behaviour Orders on conviction, Public Space Protection
Orders, ASB Closure Orders, providing evidence to support authorization of ASB Dispersal
Powers by police; and prosecution where necessary and proportionate;
c.
Coordination and delivery of high-profile multi-agency operations – including weapons
sweeps and targeted joint operations to tackle the source of the crime and ASB problems
highlighted; and,
d.
Deployment of and management of Rapid Deployable Cameras (RDC) – decision-making
process to ensure RDCs are in the best locations across Lambeth to suit the current crime
and ASB profile.
2.191 Referrals are made into the Joint Enforcement Tasking Group meeting by the Police, Lambeth’s
housing providers and the Council. These referrals are then assessed and prioritized for action. If
taken forward, a tactical plan is devised for a multi-agency approach to be agreed, actioned as
soon as practicable, and followed up to ensure a sustainable resolution.
2.192 Problems prioritised and robustly addressed in 2021 include violence against women and girls,
serious youth violence, disrupting open drugs markets, street sex work and sexual exploitation of
women as well all forms of ASB, including enviro-crime.

Page 74
2.193 Several specific problem-solving working group meetings have been set up to enable a focused
and integrated multi-agency partnership approach to address the most persistent and entrenched
ASB problems.
Supporting vulnerable victims of anti-social behaviour (Vulnerable Victims MARAC)
2.194 Lambeth Public Protection Team leads on a multi-agency approach to managing the threat, harm
or risk to vulnerable victims of ASB in Lambeth. The ASB Vulnerable Victims Multi Agency Risk
Assessment Conference (MARAC) is convened monthly, and chaired by the Head of Public
Protection, to ensure that identified vulnerable victims are assessed by relevant professionals and
are offered appropriate support wherever possible. Vulnerable victims who come to the attention of
the member organisations of the Safer Lambeth Partnership (for example, via repeated reports of
anti-social behaviour linked to one individual or address) or our housing providers operating in the
borough, are referred into this MARAC.
2.195 This Vulnerable Victims MARAC has been running since 2009 and was set up by PPARS to help
vulnerable adults in the community experiencing frequent anti-social behaviour but were not getting
the support they needed from services and are unable to help themselves due to their
vulnerabilities. These vulnerabilities can include - but are not limited to - physical disabilities,
mental health issues, chronic illness, learning disabilities and vulnerability associated with age.
These residents are often targeted and are considered high risk.
2.196 The MARAC panel is made up service managers from Public Protection, the Police, Housing,
Mental Health Services and Adult Social Care (ASC) , who meet once a month to share
information and agree an action plan to reduce the risk that these residents face. Some of the
issues that have arisen over the years include:
a.
Hate Crimes;
b.
Selling drugs;
c.
Financial/Sexual Exploitation;
d.
Cuckooing;
e.
Noise nuisance; and,
f.
Bullying/Harassment.
2.197 On average 2 new referrals are submitted to the panel each month. In the last year there have
been 18 new referrals. Although this total is significantly lower than in the years preceding the
Covid-19 pandemic, when more than 30 referrals were received the total for 2021 is the same as in
2020 (18 referrals). However, the effectiveness of the MARAC process may be indicated that none
of the cases reviewed by the Panel 2021 were subsequently referred again.
2.198 The highest number of referrals received in 2021 was 7, which originated from the Metropolitan
Police Service and clearly demonstrates the improved partnership working relationship forged with
our principal statutory community safety partners. Other referrals came from:
a.
Lambeth Housing Tenancy Enforcement Team and the London & Quadrant (L&Q) housing
association each referred 4 cases to the MARAC; and,
b.
Hyde Housing referred 3 cases, the Public Protection team referred 2 cases whilst the Gaia
Centre and Lambeth Leaseholders referred 1 case respectively.
2.199 MARAC leads are encouraged to promote the availability of coordinated support from
professionals via referral for Panel review. ASC, in addition to mental health support from the
South London and Maudsley Trust, consistently enable improved outcomes for our most
vulnerable residents as well as Lambeth Housing and registered social landlords making provision
for supported and sheltered accommodation to vulnerable adults.

Page 75
2.200 The Chair of the MARAC is a member of the Lambeth Housing Partnership Board and actively
promotes the role of the ASB Vulnerable Victims MARAC in combating ASB and reducing risk to
their residents at meetings of the Board.
2.201 The panel provides a consistent and reliable service to residents and ensures that the needs of
victims, and especially repeat victims are not overlooked, and coordinating appropriate support for
the responsible authority in each case referred. The overarching aim is to reduce the risk to the
adults and wherever possible enabling them to remain safe in their own homes. Where an
expedited accommodation move is necessary and unavoidable (e.g. when vulnerable adults are in
accommodation that is no longer suitable for their needs; their mental health may have
deteriorated; their mobility may have changed, or the property is unable to be sufficiently secure)
the MARAC can facilitate a move to more suitable accommodation.
Camera Surveillance Service (CCTV)
2.202 Lambeth’s Camera Surveillance Service is managed by Public Protection, Assurance & Regulatory
Services (PPARS) and operates a 24-hour, 7 day per week monitoring service from a control room
based at Shakespeare Road.
2.203 The control room monitors 540 cameras that are situated across the borough’s town centres on a
number of housing estates and main thoroughfares, capturing over 600 incidents per month, from
low-level anti-social behaviour to major crime. The key service objectives of the service are to:
a.
Assist in the detection of crime;
b.
Deter crime;
c.
Improve and provide reassurance in relation to public safety;
d.
Contribute to the prevention of public disorder;
e.
Provide evidence in criminal proceedings;
f.
Assist council officers undertake their duties across all services;
g.
Provide support to the Safer Lambeth Partnership; and,
h.
Comply fully with applicable Guidelines and legislative requirements.
2.204 Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) plays a key role as a deterrent, monitoring of high- and low-level
criminal activity throughout the borough (town centres, residential roads, and housing estates) and
capturing evidence for prosecution purposes. The service is linked to the Police by radio ensuring
that Police/ Council Officer response is prompt and Officers are fully briefed ahead of any
intervention. There is a “Grip and Pace” arrangement in place with the local Police, where images
can be shared from the suite directly to an observation desk located within Brixton Police Station.
2.205 The Service continues to prove itself to be an asset in the prevention of crime throughout the
borough; the Service is currently being reviewed to deliver infrastructure and operational
improvements to continue to meet the requirements of a growing, diverse and safe borough.
2.206 The Camera Surveillance Service from last year’s review, has now been granted agreed funding to
refresh the CCTV infrastructure and cameras across the borough. This outcome has been shared in
the report with key internal stakeholders that include:
a.
The HRA;
b.
Waste Enforcement;
c.
Parking Enforcement;
d.
Tenant Management Organisations (TMO) / Resident Management Organisations (RMO); and,
e.
Registered Social Landlords (RSLs).
2.207 Key changes will include the requirement to fully upgrade the system, Control Room and on street
camera infrastructure, as well as looking at the methodology of how we deliver images back to the

Page 76
Control Room (i.e., moving away from the traditional circuit arrangement to a varied approach
which allows the use wireless and 5G options).
2.208 The Service will build this in the tendering process and consider these options by looking at various
costs and phasing arrangements for the replacement/upgrade of the CCTV system. This process
has already started, and we have completed the tendering process and now awaiting approval to
agree the timelines and project delivery. Key stakeholders and partners will be consulted on the
new CCTV infrastructure and camera placement where appropriate and offer the opportunity to
purchase CCTV equipment at the same rate as Lambeth.
Regulatory Services
2.209 The service consists of the following key operational areas in relation to the prevention of ASB.
a.
Trading Standards; and,
b.
Commercial Licensing.
2.210 Trading Standards focuses on consumer protection issues ensuring that businesses meet their
duty of care, maintain expected operational standards and ensure that consumers do not fall prey
to rogue traders. This includes:
a. Triage of ongoing referrals received from Citizens Advice, Age Concern, the Trading Standards
email inbox and referrals from MPS with a focus on the most vulnerable victims (e.g. Over 70
years old and vulnerable and/or with Mental Health issues) and rogue traders/ doorstep crime;
b. Investigation of individual cases;
c. Working with National Trading Standards Scams Team to identify and support victims of mass
marketing fraud – current postal ‘snapshot’ survey of victims;
d. Working at a local level to roll out the ‘Responsible Retailers’ Scheme (knives retailers) endorsed
by MOPAC (see points 2.211-12 below);
e. Management of current outstanding prosecution cases to resolution
2.211 In 2019 London Trading standards and the Metropolitan Police launched the Responsible Retailer
Agreement on knife sales. It was envisaged that this initiative would help stem the tide of
increasing instances of knife crime across London.
2.212 The Responsible Retail Agreement urged businesses and their staff to:
a.
Understand the basic requirements for the safe storage of knives;
b.
Follow the ASSESS-CHALLENGE-CHECK process for selling age-restricted goods; and,
c.
Know when and how to contact police with suspicions of knife crime or where staff feel
threatened by customers.
2.213 Trading standards officers in conjunction with Public Protection Wardens sought to engage 79
businesses, reviewing their arraignments regarding the storage, display and sale of knives and
sharp implements with a view to signing up to the Responsible Knife Retailer Agreement.
2.214 The service had also focused on prosecutions that had been brought (but delayed due to
pandemic restrictions), regarding non-compliance in relation to knife sales via test purchasing. The
service has had 3 fruitful prosecution outcomes during the year, with the notable success of an
online knife retailer who had made an underage sale of a knife, that was subsequently utilised in
the murder of a young man; the retailer was fined and ordered to pay costs to the value of
£93,000.
2.215 The service will engage additional officers with a view to prioritising test purchasing and continuing
to sign up outlets to Responsible knife retailer agreements over the coming year.

Page 77
2.216 With regards to online fraud, this is an area that the team will review over the coming year and is
likely to involve raising awareness and updating the Trading Standards web pages with appropriate
signposting on how to report online fraud14.
2.217 However, it should be noted that Cyber Crime can be large scale with many victims spread over a
wide area and victims of such complaints tend to get referred to Action Fraud15, using its contact
centre or online reporting tool. Action Fraud is the central repository for reports of fraud and cyberdependent crime and feeds all data it receives into the National Fraud Intelligence Bureau (NFIB)
matches and analyses data and disseminate crimes that meet certain criteria to police forces for
investigation.
2.218 The focus of Commercial Licensing is to work with key partners (Responsible Authorities), to set
conditions to allow the safe and responsible delivery of licensable activity (including on and off
alcohol sales, late night refreshment and the management of Temporary Event Notices).
2.219 Over the past year, the service has been focused on direct negotiations with venues regarding
licence conditions, reaching acceptable negotiated positions in relation to operational models that
address any concerns in relation to a venue’s location.
2.220 This approach has allowed the service to develop a professional relationship with venues with a
view to ensuring compliance and where necessary continue to mitigate challenges via regular
communication; an example of this is where an issue has been identified, working with the venue
and partners such as the Police, the service provides the opportunity for businesses to consider
voluntarily adding conditions to licences via a variation as opposed to a full review.
2.221 The focus for the coming year, will be for the service to continue to build on the foundation of
regular engagement to support hospitality venues in their recovery from Covid-19 restrictions, while
ensuring the venues adopt best practice during their operation and dispersal to aid the prevention
of ASB.
Housing Services (Anti-Social Behaviour)
2.222 Management of anti-social behaviour (ASB) within Housing Services is primarily the responsibility
of the Tenancy Enforcement Team. The team consist of:

14
15

https://www.met.police.uk/advice/advice-and-information/fa/fraud/online-fraud/
https://www.actionfraud.police.uk/

Page 78
a.
b.
c.

d.

Head of Tenancy Enforcement: lead, manage and develop the service including line
managing the two senior tenancy enforcement officers;
Senior Tenancy Enforcement Officers: senior practitioners within the team, and line
manages the Tenancy Enforcement Officers and Assistant Tenancy Enforcement Officers;
Tenancy Enforcement Officers: casework manager - encourage compliance with tenancy
terms and conditions on estates. When necessary, take appropriate / proportionate
enforcement action to deal with breaches of tenancy including nuisance and anti-social
behaviour occurring within housing properties or estates, subletting and unauthorised
occupations, liaising with agencies and other departments as appropriate; and,
Assistant Tenancy Enforcement Officers: logs all service requests, emails, telephone
queries and reception queries; acknowledge all correspondence and make first contact with
the Notifying Person. On receipt of ASB cases review the allegations, provide an initial risk
assessment, and allocate casework to team members.

Performance
2.223 The table below provides an understanding of how the Tenancy Enforcement Team performed
across the borough from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 as against the previous year:

ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS
Cases received
Advice and assistance (self-help):
Written Warnings
Verbal warnings
Interview with perpetrators
Injunctions
Possession orders
Closure Orders

2020

2021

DIFFERENCE

1459

2550

+1091

2101

3669

+1651

974

2435

+1461

459

838

+379

58

134

+76

18

39

+21

0

2

+2

4

18

+14

2.224 Noise nuisance accounted for over 58% of all cases received. Due to Covid-19, there was a surge
in noise complaints – no detailed analysis has been undertaken, but it is presumed that as
residents were required to spend more time in their homes, this resulted in them being subject to
intrusions and circumstances that they would normally not have endured. Schools were closed so
children were also at home, causing perceived nuisance to the residents working from home.
2.225 Throughout the pandemic the out of hours noise service (PPARS) has not been carrying out
intrusive visits. Cases ordinarily investigated by PPARS, including those that would have been
considered statutory nuisance (as opposed to a tenancy breach) have been referred to the
Tenancy Enforcement Team. Many of these cases have created the increase in noise nuisance
cases received. Our ability to take enforcement action on time has been severely restricted by
Covid-19 related delays as:
a.
Courts were only dealing with extremely serious cases, creating a significant backlog, and

Page 79
b.

possession action / evictions were until recently suspended.

2.226 The management team has been strengthened. We have an additional Senior Tenancy
Enforcement Officer in the team, which has enhanced our response time to enquiries, improved
staff management and quality of service with continuous review.
2.227 The Team has embraced change as the dynamic of the service has changed. Officers can now
conduct investigations, door-to-door knocking exercises and home inspections virtually on Teams
video calls except for a few occasions when physical visits are required. The service has fully
adopted the noise reporting app with the link shared on Lambeth's website for our residents to use
when reporting noise nuisance.
Partnerships
2.228 To manage casework effectively, the team works closely with all members of the Safer Lambeth
Partnership, but primarily:
a.
The Area Housing Teams;
b.
Public Protection & Regulatory Service;
c.
Community Safety;
d.
Police;
e.
Social Services; and,
f.
Community Mental Health Team.
2.229 As part of the partnership approach adopted, the team attend and/or organise a variety of
meetings and case conferences to maximise the effectiveness of its response. These include the
PTG and the Vulnerable Victims MARAC.
2.230 The Tenancy Enforcement Team are also members of the ASB Operational Working Group (ASB
Help), which is a series of fortnightly meetings with Registered Social Landlords (RSLs), Police and
PPARS to highlight emerging ASB issues and co-ordinate regular activity in the areas of operation.
This meeting is considered important based on a significant increase in reports of ASB throughout
lockdown, the likelihood of continuing restrictions on the public and joint efforts to mitigate risks
linked to unlicensed music events.
Support for people with mental health problems
2.231 The Team also work closely with colleagues in ASC. For example, background checks on all
respondents (perpetrator) in ASB cases are undertaken to identify for vulnerability, safeguarding,
mental health, etc. When such a matter comes to light, the officer makes appropriate referrals,
seeks guidance and / or arranges case conferences as appropriate.
2.232 Any resident subject to ASB that is assessed as high risk and vulnerable is referred to the
Vulnerable Victims MARAC, a multi-agency meeting made up of Community Safety, Police,
Safeguarding Adults, Safeguarding Children, Victim Support, SLaM, PPARS and various RSLs.
2.233 If the Tenancy Enforcement Team is to take enforcement action against a tenant with a protected
characteristic which may impact on their behaviour, the Equalities Act 2010 dictates that landlords
take account of these characteristics and ensure all other options to remedy the ASB have been
considered before enforcement action, in particular possession action, is taken. As such, these
cases can be complex, protracted and misunderstood by those on the receiving end of the ASB.
An Equality assessment is carried out before legal action is considered against a vulnerable
resident.

Page 80
3.

FINANCE

3.1

There are no financial implications arising from this report.

4.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

There were no further Legal comments.

4.2

There were no further comments from Democratic Services.

5.

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1

Consultation and co-production are key to the work of the Safer Lambeth Partnership as has been
identified throughout the report.

6.

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

Crime and Disorder is a risk to the borough’s residents and businesses, in addition to those visiting
the area. The Safer Lambeth Partnership brings together the key statutory public bodies with
community, voluntary and private sector partners for the purpose of reducing crime and disorder,
anti-social behaviour, substance misuse and reoffending in Lambeth.

7.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT
The Safer Lambeth Partnership plan and strategy will be subject to a full EIA as it is developed during
2022-23.

8.

COMMUNITY SAFETY

8.1

This report outlines the role of the Community Safety team and our colleagues to deliver on the
strategic outcomes of the borough’s statutory Community Safety Partnership, the Safer Lambeth
Partnership.

9.

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Environmental
None.

9.2

9.3

9.4

Health
The report provides an indication of the range of support that is available to those involved in (a)
crime, including a specific update on how health services across the borough are catering for the
needs of our residents.
Corporate Parenting
The planned development of the Contextual Safeguarding model within Children’s Services will
continue to evolve the Council’s ability to reduce the risk and harm to young people include those to
whom the Council has a corporate parental responsibility.
Staffing and Accommodation
None.

Page 81

9.5

9.6

9.7

Responsible Procurement
Good Quality Jobs with Fair Pay and Decent Working Conditions
All contracts will pay the London Living wage as standard and be in line with the council’s approach
to Modern Slavery.
Quality Apprenticeships, targeted Employment for Lambeth residents and Lambeth Priority Group
Employment and training for young people at risk of violence has been identified as one of the
priorities of the Lambeth Made Safer strategy.
Reduce Emissions
Lambeth Council has a commitment to being Zero Carbon by 2030.

10. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 Not applicable.

Page 82
AUDIT TRAIL / CONSULTATION
Name/Position

Lambeth Directorate or
partner agency

Date
Sent

Date
Received

Deputy Leader, Deputy
Leader of the Council (Jobs,
Skills and Community Safety).

04.03.22

09.03.22

Metropolitan Police Service

04.03.22

11.03.22

London Fire Brigade

04.03.22

Chief Executive

04.03.22

10.03.22

Children’s Services and
Executive Director Adult
Social Care

04.03.22

07.03.22

Resident Services

04.03.22

Andrew Eyres, Strategic
Director

Strategic Director, Integrated
Health & Care, Lambeth
Council, NHS South East
London CCG (Lambeth)

04.03.22

Jeanette Young, Interim Director

Children’s Commissioning &
Community Safety

24.02.22

02.03.22

Legal and Governance

04.03.22

07.03.22

Finance and Investment

04.03.22

09.03.22

Legal and Governance

04.03.22

07.03.22

Probation Service

04.03.22

Councillor Jacqui Dyer, Cabinet
Member
Colin Wingrove, Borough
Commander
Norman Perry, Borough
Commander
Andrew Travers, Chief
Executive
Fiona Connelly, Acting Strategic
Director of Children’s
Services and Executive Director
Adult Social Care
Bayo Dosunmu, Strategic
Director

Jean-Marc Moocarme, Legal
Services
Mark Sage, Group Manager
(Children & Young People)
David Rose, Democratic
Services
Pippa Beeston, Head of Service:
Lambeth

Comment
s in para:
N/A

Section 1

N/A

N/A

N/A

Comments
in
document
N/A
Section 3

N/A

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

7 March 2022
11 March 2022
11 March 2022
No
No
N/A
N/A
Crime and Disorder Act 1998
Police and Justice Act 2007
Appendix 1: Recommendations/Actions from
Scrutiny Panel March 2021 - with updates

Page 83
Appendix 2: Safer Lambeth Partnership
Governance Structure
Appendix 3: Summary of Achievements by the
IAG in 2021
Appendix 4: BCU Public Protection Structure
Appendix 5: Data relating to the August 2021
drug incident overdoses
Appendix 6: Probation Service (Lambeth)
Organogram
Appendix 7: Snapshot of Offence Types
Covered at the Probation Service MAPPA
Appendix 8: Snapshot of Caseload Diversity
within the Probation Service (Lambeth)
Appendix 9: Lambeth Made Safer Governance
Structure
Appendix 10: Glossary of Acronyms

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 1: 23 March 2021: Crime and Disorder (Final – March 2022)

Item

2. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

That the committee expresses its concern regarding
the policing tactics in relation to the vigil held on
Clapham Common on 13th March 2021, which
resulted in escalating tensions and turned a peaceful
vigil into a violent protest

That a thorough and widely publicised process be
established to enable local organisations and
individuals to work effectively with the police,
especially regarding the needs of young people and
women, when seeking to organise future events
such as vigils or protests

-

Accepted

Response

At the time of the meeting
HMICFRS were conducting
their review of the policing of
the Vigil. This has now been
completed and report and
findings published here:
https://www.justiceinspectorate
s.gov.uk/hmicfrs/publications/a
n-inspection-of-themetropolitan-police-servicespolicing-of-a-vigil-held-incommemoration-of-saraheverard/
HMIC concluded that police
acted in a measured and
proportionate way in
challenging circumstances.
The process and information in
relation to events is publicised
by Lambeth Council (who will
link in with the Police) and by
The Met Police, who would
similarly link with Council
colleagues.
Both websites (below) contain
information, advice and

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

May 2021

Chief Supt
Colin
Wingrove
(MPS)

G

July 2021
(Closed
October
2021)

Chief Supt
Colin
Wingrove
(MPS)

Page 85

1. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

Recommendation / Action

Accepte
d/
Rejected

G

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepte
d/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

May 2021

Chief Supt
Colin
Wingrove
(MPS)

G

contact information. On the
Met website there is an online
form, and this then routes the
enquiry to the appropriate
team or borough.
https://eventlambeth.co.uk/org
anising/planning-your-event/

Page 86

https://www.met.police.uk/tua/t
ell-us-about/eo/af/eventsprocessions/
Where additional support is
required, this should be
flagged in the application
process.

3. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

To stress the importance of local policing and the
need for a more thorough information sharing
process between the BCU and any centralised Met
units deployed in Lambeth which places more weight
on the local knowledge and expertise of officers
based in the borough when it comes to decision
making, and to seek assurances from GLA Deputy
Mayor for Crime and policing on this point and how it
might be achieved

Accepted

The BCU already has a
process to work with
centralised units such as TSG
and the Violent Crime Task
Force to brief them and involve
community members in this
when they start their
deployments to the borough in
order to provide local context
and knowledge. Both TSG and
VCTF are now investing more
in community engagement with
local boroughs following this

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepte
d/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

May 2021

Chief Supt
Colin
Wingrove
(MPS)

G

best practice established in
Lambeth.

Accepted

To recommend additional training on equalities for
police working in Lambeth, following what is now
considered to be best practice in such training, to
ensure greater awareness of diversity issues,
especially with regards to women and BAME
communities

Page 87

4. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

Street Duties students under
the PEQF (Police Education
Qualification Framework)
scheme spend their orientation
week on the BCU. This
syllabus is heavily weighted to
exploring the diverse nature of
local communities. Community
representatives and residents
provide their perspective of
policing in the local context
and the students have an
opportunity to engage with the
speakers to further explore the
local complexities and
determine how they can best
support and promote diversity.
Additionally, we are discussing
with Lambeth Council how this
can be developed further.
Internally we have developed a
HeForShe network and
Network of Women (NoW) to
promote gender equality,
cultural awareness activities
(survey, task and finish group)
overseen by a Strategic

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepte
d/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

May 2021

Sophie
Taylor
(VAWG)

G

Inclusion, Diversity and
Equality Board (S.T.R.I.D.E)

Accepted

Page 88

5. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

That the Safer Lambeth Partnership does everything
possible to ensure continuing and long-term funding
for organisations working to end violence against
women and girls, with a focus on involving survivors
in shaping services and implementing a renewed
borough-wide strategy on Violence Against Women
and Girls. The committee also requests details of
how the police specifically are involved in developing
this strategy

The Safer Lambeth
Partnership is co-chaired
between the Lambeth Council
Chief Executive and Met
Police BCU Commander.
The VAWG strategy and plan
is currently being reviewed and
the aim is to have the new
Lambeth Made Safer Violence
Against Women and Girls
Strategy approved by July
2021. The strategy will cover
the period 2021 – 27,
demonstrating the long-term
commitment of the borough to
ensure Lambeth is a place
where every resident feels
safe and can meet their full
potential, free from violence or
abuse.
We want to ensure that every
victim and survivor of all forms
of VAWG can access
specialist support, and that we
recognise and respond to the
multiple barriers that may exist
for some.

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepte
d/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

We aim to create a truly
coordinated and flexible
community response, working
in partnership with all Lambeth
residents, communities and
practitioners in tackling and
preventing gender-based
violence through continued coproduction and consultation.

The police have been a key
partner in the development of
the new Lambeth Made Safer
Violence Against Women and
Girls Strategy. A Project Board
was created to provide
operational oversight of the
strategy development on
behalf of the Safer Lambeth
Partnership Executive, and the
Central South Basic Command
Unit were represented by the
Detective Superintendent Head of Public Protection. The

Page 89

In working together and in
partnership with people across
Lambeth, we can repair the
trauma and harm suffered by
those who have experienced
violence and abuse.

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepte
d/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

May 2021

Chief Supt
Colin
Wingrove
(MPS)

G

Board created and agreed the
key outcomes, actions
required to meet these
outcomes, governance for
delivering the strategy and the
commissioning intentions for
2021-2027.

Page 90

This outline and structure was
presented to the Safer
Lambeth Partnership
Executive, co-chaired by the
Borough Commander, and
they will provide final-sign off
of the strategy.
From a police operational
perspective, VAWG is
incorporated into the Release
from Lockdown Plan and
Summer Violence Reduction
Plan.

6. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

To call on the police to take steps to ensure, when
incidents concerning women’s safety occur, that
communications are appropriate and empowering
and not to advise them ‘not to go out alone’ for their
personal safety which leads to blaming the victims of
violence rather than the perpetrators. We note that
the commander thought the communication was
taken from a Met Framework. Could this be

Accepted

The advice provided by the
Met and local officers is in line
with the advice available of the
Met Website:
https://www.met.police.uk/cp/cr
ime-prevention/protectyourself-from-crime/

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepte
d/
Rejected

confirmed and the comments about empowering
communication be passed on to the Met.

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

May 2021

Chief Supt
Colin
Wingrove
(MPS)

G

Additionally, the Met is also
promoting advice via the Suzy
Lamplugh Trust as part of
Stalking Awareness Week (Apr
21).
https://www.suzylamplugh.org/
Pages/Category/personalsafety-advice

7. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

That the latest survey data on trust and confidence
in the police be shared with the committee showing
trends over a two-year period with as much detail as
possible (i.e. geographically relevant area)

8. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

That the police be urged to assess whether existing
practices are conducive to building and maintaining
trust and confidence, and consider what more might
be done to improve this (for example, work with the

Accepted

Accepted

Public Confidence and Victim
Satisfaction data is published
via MOPAC here:
https://www.london.gov.uk/wha
t-we-do/mayors-office-policingand-crime-mopac/data-andstatistics/confidencesatisfaction-data
The BCU has developed an
engagement plan in line with
the Met Engagement plan
devised by Commander Ali

Page 91

The source of the information
regarding advice apparently
provided to “not go out alone”
has not been established or
verified. In both websites
above advice provided is not
gender specific.

July 2021

Chief Supt
Colin
Wingrove
(MPS)

G

Item

Recommendation / Action
relevant Lambeth Made Safer work stream and
ensure all officers are aware of the importance of
this work stream)

Accepte
d/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Heydari; The Mayors Action
Plan; & local strategies
including Lambeth Made Safer
& Southwark Stands Together.

(Closed
October
2021)

The MPS and BCU is
reviewing effectiveness and
support for local Safer
Neighbourhood Ward panels
including refreshing priorities,
empowering local officers to
use data and statistics in a
meaningful way to drive action
and outcomes suited to local
communities. Details of
timelines and objectives will be

RAG
rating

Page 92

The BCU Commander has
now attended every Lambeth
Made Safer Community Forum
with the Cabinet Lead for Jobs,
Skills & Community Safety
demonstrating the level of
commitment to engaging with
residents and improve
community safety and address
underlying issues that
contribute to crime and ASB
including Environment; Health;
Employment; Education;
Inequalities.

Owner

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepte
d/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

shared with the Committee
when available.
Background information that
feeds into the BCU
engagement plan as
subsequently requested
(30.06.21) is below:




Page 93



Link to the Mayor’s
Action Plan:
https://www.london.gov
.uk/publications/actionplan-transparencyaccountability-andtrust-policing#actions
Southwark Stands
Together:
https://www.southwark.
gov.uk/engagementandconsultations/tacklingracial-inequalitiesracism-and-injusticesouthwark-standstogether
Lambeth Made Safer:
https://moderngov.lamb
eth.gov.uk/documents/s
122975/Appendix%20A
%20-

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepte
d/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

%20Lambeth%20Made
%20Safer%20Strategy
%20v19.pdf
Details of the Met Engagement
plan devised by Commander
Ali Heydari were shared in an
email in October 2021.

As part of the reinvigoration of
the Ward Panels, the
Metropolitan Police Service
has recently issued guidance
to the Ward panels on priority
setting. The guidance seems
to have been well received.
At present we do not have any
hard timelines for the
completion of the review.

Page 94

Update re: Safer
Neighbourhood Ward
Panels:
The review of the Safer
Neighbourhood Ward Panels
is part of the Mayor’s Action
Plan:
https://www.london.gov.uk/pub
lications/action-plantransparency-accountabilityand-trust-policing#actions.

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepte
d/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

May 2021

Rob Harper
(PPARS)

G

May 2021

Chief Supt
Colin
Wingrove
(MPS)

G

With this in mind, details of this
review process will be shared
with the OSC in due course.

To request data regarding interactions between
police and Public Protection officers and individuals
experiencing mental health crises, including the
outcome of those interactions

10. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

That further analysis is needed regarding the drugs
market in the borough, particularly with regards to
those who visit Lambeth from elsewhere to buy

Accepted

It should also be noted that
consultation is taking place
with partners from SLaM and
colleagues in Adult Social
Care to deliver mental health
awareness training to the
Public Protection team and to
review the current referral
process.
Accepted

This is an area being covered
by the Safer Lambeth
Partnership in the Strategic
Assessment and part of the

Page 95

9. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

The type of data that has been
requested currently does not
exist. However, Public
Protection officers are now
able to collect this information
by adding a Possible Mental
Health Problem (PMHP) tag to
all reports fed into the Uniform
database. This will enable the
team to record, review and
report on details of all
interactions.

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepte
d/
Rejected

cannabis, in order to ensure that police operations
such as stop and search target the right people

That the latest Lambeth stop and search data (to
include statistics on complaints received and details
of subsequent action taken) be shared with the

Accepted

Lambeth Made Safer Disrupt
and Deter work stream in order
to develop a better
understanding of drug markets
and associated violence. This
includes the nature of County
Lines Drugs supply from
Lambeth to other parts of the
country; The activities and
nature of Gang related drugcrime on the borough; and the
exploitation of young people
and propensity for violence.
Cannabis is not the only illegal
substance that contributes to
the gang related crime,
violence and exploitation of
young people associated with
the drugs market, Class A
drugs such as Cocaine, Crack
and Opiates also contribute.
Intelligence and data is
reviewed daily by police and
used to inform officers
conducting patrols in areas
affected by higher levels of
violence and related drug
markets.
Data on stop and search in
Lambeth can be found here:
https://www.met.police.uk/sd/st

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Page 96

11. 2020 Safer
Lambeth

Response

July 2021

Chief Supt
Colin
Wingrove
(MPS)

G

Item

Recommendation / Action

Partnership
Scrutiny Report

committee together with the justification for
continuing with the current stop and search strategy
given the low incidence of positive outcomes

Accepte
d/
Rejected

Response
ats-and-data/met/stop-andsearch-dashboard/

The BCU is developing a stop
and search improvement plan,
with insight and feedback from
community members and
organisations such as Black
Thrive and through the
Lambeth Made Safer Disrupt
and Deter work stream. This is
to improve overall quality of
encounter and seek greater
local community feedback,

Owner

RAG
rating

(Closed
October
2021)

Page 97

Lambeth experiences some of
the highest rates of violence
and knife crime in London. The
positive outcome rate for stop
and search has averaged 26%
in 2021 this is a 4%
improvement on same period
in 2020. Stop and search
remains an important and
effective response to knife
crime, robbery and violence,
and drivers of crime such as
drug offending. It is one tool as
part of a range of police and
partnership interventions and
activity.

Deadline

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepte
d/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

May 2021

Sophie
Taylor
(VAWG)

G

scrutiny and involvement. The
Improvement Plan should be
approved by the end of June
and will be shared with the
Committee when available.
A review of stop and search
can be found in the Lambeth
Police section OSC report.

That reports on the learning from the two domestic
homicide cases referred to in the report be shared
with the committee
That further information be requested from the
Probation service regarding any potential issues
which may affect commissioned services during the

Accepted

Accepted

The unification of the
Probation services
commenced on Saturday 26th
June 2021. There will be 12

Page 98

12. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report
13. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

Through the Disrupt and Deter
workstream of the LMS
strategy, the development and
launch of the stop and search
improvement plan took place
over 2021. The plan details a
range of specific projects to
improve community trust in
police actions, the quality of
stop and search encounters
and the cultural competence
amongst new and existing
officers.
The link to the Domestic
Homicide Reviews and reports
is here.

June 2021

Pippa
Beeston
(Probation
Service)

G

Item

Recommendation / Action
reintegration process, and how any potential risks
are being managed

Accepte
d/
Rejected

Deadline

probation regions across
England and Wales (11 in
England and Wales) each
overseen by a Regional
Probation Director. London
has its own regional director,
with Lambeth being part of the
SE London district. Pippa
Beeston remains as part of the
borough’s governance
structure, taking the role of
Head of Probation Delivery
Unit – Lambeth.

(Closed
October
2021)

Services previously delivered
by the CRC (Community
Rehabilitation Companies)
have been absorbed into the
unified Probation Service with
staff being transferred in the
process to allow for continuity
of service. For example,
Unpaid Work (Community
Payback) that is now under the
remit of the HM Prison and
Probation Service will build on
the innovative work delivered
by CRCs.
If the OSC or colleagues would
like to nominate a community

Owner

RAG
rating

Page 99

Response

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepte
d/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

project for Community
Payback, please use the
following email address:
CP_@justice.gov.uk.

The unification has changed
the way in the Commissioned
Rehabilitation Services are
being commissioned and

Page 100

UPDATE: 21.09.21
The unification means the
Probation Service (PS) is now
responsible for all sentence
management for community
supervision orders and prison
licences in both England and
Wales. This simplifies delivery,
making it easier for those who
Probation work with and giving
Probation greater control of
resources to be able to deliver
reform. To support effective
service user desistance and
rehabilitation, the unified
National Probation Service will
manage and deliver Accredited
Programmes, Structured
Interventions, Unpaid Work
and Senior Attendance
Centres.

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepte
d/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

provided across London. The
Probation Service having
unified in June 2021
completed commissioning
work prior to unification for
Commissioned Rehabilitation
Services (CRS) with the
expected delivery outcomes
being
•

•

•

Page 101

•

Be well targeted to
address areas of need
strongly associated
with reoffending.
Include tailored support
which recognises the
diverse backgrounds
and needs of
individuals, meeting
these needs and
achieving outcomes.
Encourage
collaborative work with
local partners to ensure
individuals have the
opportunity to access
all available
opportunities.
Be delivered by a
diverse mixed market
of service providers,

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepte
d/
Rejected

Response

•

The CRS provision is
commissioned for the benefit
of people on probation/licence
and is primarily communitybased provision. The
exception to this is the
accommodation service which
has an in-reach element in
custody pre-release, while
referrals for accommodation
are made pre-release.

Owner

RAG
rating

Page 102

•

making the most of
expertise from the
public, private,
voluntary, community
and social enterprise
sectors.
Increase judicial and
other stakeholder
confidence in the
interventions that will
be available to those
under Probation
supervision.
Ensure that services
are delivered in a way
that is easy to access
and meets the priority
needs within every
region.

Deadline

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepte
d/
Rejected

Response

To ensure that all staff and
those on Probation are able to
utilise the commissioned
services on offer and
understand the new processes
for referrals there has been
mandatory training for all staff
on the new CRS process.
Within Lambeth there have
been all staff briefings from

Owner

RAG
rating

Page 103

To support the commission
services there are clear
boundaries between
rehabilitative interventions
delivered by Probation Service
intervention team colleagues,
one-to-one work delivered by
probation practitioners and
specialist Commissioned
Rehabilitative Services (CRS).
Mobilisation of the CRS was
initiated preceding unification
with referrals being accepted
within 2-weeks of the
unification date which enabled
the providers to process the
referrals from day one of
unification and minimise any
gaps in service provision.

Deadline

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepte
d/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

some of the new providers with
more planned to ensure there
is increased understanding
and take up of the services on
offer.

That clarification be sought regarding the Safer
Lambeth Partnership’s position on protests in light of
the reference to “tackling” protests in the committee
report (para. 7.13)

Accepted

Page 104

14. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

As the transition period
continues, the referral data is
being collected on a London
and then borough level for
each service. This ensures
that services with lower-thanexpected referrals are
investigated to understand the
reasons why and support an
increase in referrals. Alongside
the analysis of data there are
feedback loops at practitioner,
operational manager and
strategic levels to ensure the
services being delivered are
benefitting those on subject to
Probation.
It is the responsibility of the
Safer Lambeth Partnership to
ensure protests are managed
in a constructive manner that
ensures the safety for all
concerned in and around the
protest. The use of the word
“tackle” in this instance was to

G

May 2021

Nigel
Lambert
(PPARS)

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepte
d/
Rejected

Response

Owner

RAG
rating

Page 105

reflect on the wider challenges
faced by the Responsible
Authorities and partners
across the Partnership with
regards to the many potential
challenges that need to be
accounted for in relation to
maintaining the safety of the
public during an XR protest. It
is acknowledged that the use
of the word “tackle” was not
appropriate in this instance
and that it does not reflect the
approach adopted by the
Partnership in relation to the
safe management of protests.

Deadline

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 2: Safer Lambeth Partnership Governance Structure 2021

Page 107

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 109
Appendix 3: Summary of Achievements by the IAG in 2021

1.1

The Independent Advisory Group (IAG) is set up to:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

Offer independent advice which can help the police to provide a better service to the
communities they serve;
Improve communication between the police and the community;
Help to forge a greater mutual understanding;
Improving trust and confidence in the MPS; and
Acting as a bridge between the communities and the MPS to tackle tensions communities
have been facing.

1.2

The IAG acts as a critical friend and does not shy away from challenging the Lambeth MPS on
where operations go wrong and commending where operations are done correctly. The IAG is
being led by Lorraine Jones and Umar Mahmood, who serve as the Chair and Vice Chair
respectively. The membership is wide ranging and reflects people from a variety of fields including
higher education, community development, youth services, mental health, teaching and more.

1.3

The COVID-19 pandemic has had an impact like no other and the IAG also felt the impact of this in
terms of meetings and activities. However, the IAG has still managed to build on several of the key
aspects it has been working on.

1.4

The IAG is working with a number of key groups through its various members, and this includes
charities, local community groups, faith groups, youth groups and the like. This has filtered through
several meetings, mainly online, such as the local ward panels.

1.5

Some of the year’s activities of the IAG include:
a.
b.

c.
d.

e.

f.

g.

Several community and leadership activities attended by Lorraine Jones and Umar
Mahmood;
Pan-London Community Reference Group for Covid-19: this group is attended by Umar
Mahmood in the capacity of Vice Chair and has resulted in several local issues being fed into
New Scotland Yard including the appropriate use of COVID-19 regulations and raising
concerns of the community on policing activity;
Walk around with Commissioner Cressida Dick on Violence against Women and Girls;
Visit of Brixton Town Centre Team and Community Liaison Officers by Umar Mahmood to
local community groups and Lambeth Councillors Nanda Manley-Browne and Irfan
Mohammed to discuss local issues including Islamophobia, hate crime and community
partnerships;
Through the police Learning & Development team, training over the year has continued with
several different members from the IAG attending to speak to new recruits as they get an
understanding of the borough and important factors to build relationships with the
community. This has been ongoing for the last two years;
The IAG has continued to be invaluable to improving police and community relations and
whilst there is still significant distrust in some areas, the MPS is determined to be a more
open organisation and the role of the IAG is key to this. They have supported several areas
including the Police Encounter Panels, attending Gold Groups in response to key incidents
that have taken place in the borough and local ward meetings;
Attending Pan London IAG Chairs meetings attended by senior officers including the
commissioner and deputy commissioners;

Page 110
h.

i.
j.
k.
l.

1.6

Some of the key gold group meetings that have been attended by Lorraine Jones and Umar
Mahmood, including the Sarah Everard murder and several incidents including firearms,
weapons and other critical incidents (e.g., traffic related incidents and fires). This has led to
detailed considerations from the IAG in the Community Impact Assessments. The IAG
continue to be consulted before Section 60s are implemented across the borough with any
concerns from the IAG being fed into the strategic decision making;
Meetings with the Violent Crime Task Force (VCTF) and Territorial Support Group (TSG) on
how they should approach incidents;
Part of the judging panel with the TSG urban arts project for the 1London Design Project with
London Nautical School where children designed a logo;
Attending operations as “observers” to ensure policing procedures are being followed
properly; and,
Regular review of briefing notes being sent out by the police on incidents that have taken
place.

Future activities from the IAG suggested to the Lambeth MPS include training for recruits on
culture, faith, mental health and police engagements with the youth. A work plan is currently being
designed by the IAG to focus their work on important areas such as stop and search, impact of
night time economy, engagement with faith groups, tackling hate crime and continuing to build
community confidence.

Appendix 4: BCU Public Protection Structure

Page 111

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 5: Data relating to the August 2021 drug incident overdoses

Page 113

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 6: Probation Service (Lambeth) Organogram

Page 115

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 7: Snapshot of Offence Types Covered at the Probation Service MAPPA

Page 117

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 8: Snapshot of Caseload Diversity within the Probation Service (Lambeth)

Page 119

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 9: Lambeth Made Safer Governance Structure

Page 121

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 123
Appendix 10: Glossary of Acronyms
Acronym
AAF
AFA
AGM
ASB
ASC
BAU
BCU
BRIT
BTP
CBO
CCE
CCG
CCTV
CFO
CID
CJS
CMG
CQC
CRC
CRMP
CSC
CSE
CSP
CT
CTLP
CTSA
DA
DASH
DHR
EDT
ETE
FAP
FGM
GLA
GP
GSTT
HFSV
HMICFRS
HMIP
HMP
HMPPS
HQ
HVM
IAG
IDVA
IOM

Full Name
Africa Advocacy Foundation
Automatic Fire Alarm
Annual General Meeting
Anti-Social Behaviour
Adult Social Care
Business As Usual
Basic Command Unit
Burglary, Robbery Investigation Team
British Transport Police
Criminal Behaviour Order
Child Criminal Exploitation
Clinical Commissioning Group
Closed-Circuit Television
Co-Financing Organisation
Criminal Investigation Department
Criminal Justice System
Community Monitoring Group
Care Quality Commission
London Community Rehabilitation Company
Community Risk Management Plan
Children’s Social Care
Child Sexual Exploitation
Community Safety Partnership
Counter Terrorism
Counter Terrorism Local Profile
Counter Terrorist Security Advisor
Domestic Abuse
Drugs, Alcohol Support and Health
Domestic Homicide Review
Emergency Duty Team
Education, Training and Employment
Fair Access Panel
Female Genital Mutilation
Greater London Authority
General Practitioner
Guy’s & St. Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust
Home Fire Safety Visits
Her Majesty's Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services
Her Majesty's Inspectorate of Probation
Her Majesty's Prison
Her Majesty's Prison and Probation Service
Headquarters
Hostile Vehicle Mitigation
Independent Advisory Group
Independent Domestic Violence Advisor
Integrated Offender Management

Page 124
IPD
IRH
L&Q
LAP
LAS
LB
LCPF
LEAP
LFB
LMC
LMS
LPN
MAPPA
MARAC
MASH
MAVE
MoJ
MOPAC
MPS ("the Met")
NFIB
NHS
NTE
OCG
OCSAE
OHID
OPD
OST
P+ Team
PAG
PDG
PEF
PEO
PHE
PIN
PPARS
PPO
PS
PS MAPPA
PSPO
PTG
PWB
RAR
RDC
RMO
RSE
RSL
RTC
SEHP
SENCO
SHP

Inpatient Detox
Integrated Referral Hub
London & Quadrant Housing Association
Locality Action Panel
London Ambulance Service
London Borough
London Crime Prevention Fund
Lambeth Early Action Partnership
London Fire Brigade
Lambeth Made Community
Lambeth Made Safer
London Prevent Network
Multi-Agency Public Protection Arrangements
Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference
Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub
Multi-Agency Violence & Exploitation
Ministry of Justice
Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime
Metropolitan Police Service
National Fraud Intelligence Bureau
National Health Service
Night-Time Economy
Organised Crime Groups
Online Child Sexual Abuse & Exploitation
Office for Health Improvement and Disparities
Offender Personality Disorder
Opioid Substitution Treatments
PartnershipPlus Team
Prevent Advisory Group
Partnership Delivery Group
Prison Education Framework
Prevent Education Officer
Public Health England
Professional Information Network
Public Protection, Assurance and Regulatory Services
Prevent Project Officer
Probation Service
Probation Service Multi-Agency Public Protection Arrangements
Public Space Protection Order
Partnership Tasking Group
PWB Personal Wellbeing
Rehabilitation Activity Requirement
Rapid Deployable Cameras
Resident Management Organisation
Relationships and Sex Education
Registered Social Landlord
Road Traffic Collision
Lambeth Sexual Exploitation and Harm Panel
Special Educational Needs Coordinator
Single Homeless Project

Page 125
SLA
SLAM / SLaM
SLP
SMTTG
SPO
SWA
SYV
TACT
TfL
TMO
TNO
UME
UNICEF
VAP
VAW
VAWG
VCS
VRU
VSU
WiP
XR
YJPB
YJS
YOT

South London Alliance
South London and Maudsley Foundation
Safer Lambeth Partnership
Substance Misuse Through the Gate
Senior Probation Officers
Solace Women’s Aid
Serious Youth Violence
Terrorism Act
Transport for London
Tenant Management Organisation
Total Notifiable Offences
Unlicensed Music Event
United Nations Children's Fund
Violence Against the Person
Vehicle as A Weapon
Violence Against Women and Girls
Voluntary and Community Sector
London Violence Reduction Unit
Violence Suppression Unit
Women in Prison
Extinction Rebellion
Youth Justice Partnership Board
Youth Justice Service
BCU Youth Offending Team

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 127

Agenda Item 4

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24 MARCH 2022
Report title: Understanding and Addressing Health Inequalities in Lambeth
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care: Councillors Jim Dickson and Lucy
Caldicott (Job Share)
Report Authorised by: Andrew Eyres: Strategic Director, Integrated Health and Care
Contact for enquiries: Ruth Hutt, Director of Public Health, 020 7926 7196,
rhutt@lambeth.gov.uk; and, Bimpe Oki, Consultant, Public Health 020 7926 9678,
boki@lambeth.gov.uk

REPORT SUMMARY
This report outlines the approach to measuring and tackling health inequalities in Lambeth. Reducing
inequality is central to the Borough Plan 2019-2021 and the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. This report
is not a comprehensive overview of all the breadth of the issue and response, but rather illustrative of
some of the work currently being developed to address our refreshed Health and Wellbeing Strategy
including learning lessons from the pandemic and addressing its impact. The new Health and Wellbeing
Strategy (2023) will aim to set out the level of ambition to reduce health inequalities in the borough
The appendices include more detailed analysis and information for reference. Appendix 1 highlights
some of data we have regarding both the experience of Covid but wider health inequalities in Lambeth
and Appendix 2 sets out further data concerning health inequalities for long term conditions.

FINANCE SUMMARY
None arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

To note the current understanding and the work underway to address health inequalities in
Lambeth to be developed through the refreshed Lambeth Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and
new Lambeth Health and Wellbeing Strategy (2023).

Page 128
1.

CONTEXT

1.1

This report outlines the approach to measuring and tackling health inequalities in Lambeth.
Reducing inequality is central to the Borough Plan 2019-2021 and the Health and Wellbeing
Strategy. The impact of poor health and disease does not fall equally across the population and
those from the most socio-economic disadvantaged communities experience the poorest health
outcomes. This has also been true of the experience of Covid-19.

1.2

Lambeth Together is the strategic local partnership for health and care. Addressing health
inequalities is central to its mission of improving health and care for all Lambeth people. A Lambeth
Together Equalities Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) group has been established during 2021 to help
drive the embedding of good practice on equality issues across the local health and care system.
The EDI Group which has representation from partners across Lambeth Together was set up to
a.
Hold a (constructive) mirror to the 'system' in Lambeth.
b.
Develop and adopt a shared measurement approach/system
c.
Create a 'social movement' that puts health and equity at the heart of delivering and service
design.
d.
Act as the Place level Equalities Group, engaging with other boroughs, SEL Integrated Care
System, London and national.
e.
Consider how to align our outcomes to the recently published NHS 5 focused clinical areas,
Appendix 3 provides an update with proposals of next steps for the Lambeth Together EDI group.

1.3

The health inequalities that were exacerbated by the pandemic brought a sense of urgency for the
NHS at a national level to take more concerted efforts. “Core20PLUS5” is an NHS England and
Improvement approach to support the reduction of health inequalities at both national and system
level. The approach defines a target population cohort – the ‘Core20PLUS’ and identifies 5
focused clinical areas requiring accelerated improvement. Core20 focuses on the 20% most
deprived of the national population; PLUS - Integrated Care System (ICS) determined population
groups experiencing poorer than average health access, experience and/or outcomes, but not
captured in the ‘Core20’ alone e.g., ethnic groups: “5”- sets out five clinical areas of focus to
achieve national aims.
1.
Maternity: ensuring continuity of care for 75% of women from Black, Asian and Minority
Ethnic communities and from the most deprived groups.
2.
Severe mental illness (SMI): ensuring annual health checks for 60% of those living with SMI
(bringing SMI in line with the success seen in learning disabilities).
3.
Chronic respiratory disease: a clear focus on Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease
(COPD) driving up uptake of COVID, flu and pneumonia vaccines to reduce infective
exacerbations and emergency hospital admissions due to those exacerbations.
4.
Early cancer diagnosis: 75% of cases diagnosed at stage 1 or 2 by 2028.
5.
Hypertension case-finding: to allow for interventions to optimise blood pressure and minimise
the risk of myocardial infarction and stroke.

1.4

Health inequalities have continued to be evident in Lambeth. Local research has also established
that the burden of disease is worse for some ethnic groups, specifically Black African and
Caribbean people, those from Asian backgrounds, and those from “other” backgrounds which in
Lambeth is likely to include our significant Spanish and Portuguese speaking communities. The
Annual Public Health Report published in 2019 was focused on Health Inequalities.

1.5

Recent data from the Office for National Statistics (ONS) has shown that life expectancy fell in
2020 across the country, and that the inequality in life expectancy increased. In Lambeth, male
life expectancy fell from 79.5 to 78.6 years and for women from 84.2 to 83.9 years. For women
this drop mirrors that seen across the country, but for men it is twice as much.

Page 129
1.6

The experience of Covid-19 has shown that there are differences by ethnic group, age, sex and
socio-economic status on testing, access and ability to implement protective behaviours (such as
self-isolation and access to PPE), vaccination status and the associated outcomes of severe
disease and risk of dying. In Lambeth, throughout the pandemic we have tried to mitigate some of
these impacts by working closely with communities who are at higher risk, may have barriers to
accessing support or care and for whom the standard approach does not work. This report sets out
some of evidence from London and Lambeth on what has been learnt over the last two years and
builds on a previous report to Overview and Scrutiny Committee in October 2020.

1.7

Whilst Covid-19 has had an impact on the health outcomes for Lambeth residents, we also know
that some of the risk factors for conditions like poor mental health, cardiovascular disease and
some cancers will have also increased due to a reduction in prevention activities and impact of
some of the restrictions which were put in place to prevent the spread of Covid-19. It is particularly
important that we recover some of the screening and prevention programmes rapidly and through
a lens of health equity building on what we have learnt from working with our communities through
the pandemic.

1.8

As part of the Lambeth Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) we are refreshing the health
profile for Lambeth as well as the process for prioritising areas of work for the JSNA. The JSNA is
a statutory requirement which assesses the current and future health and wellbeing, health and
social care needs of local population. There is a requirement that the JSNA sets the local strategic
direction of service delivery to meet the identified needs and informs different local policies and
strategies. This will include informing the new 2023 Lambeth Health and Wellbeing Strategy and
reducing health inequalities will be central to the ambition and outcomes of the Strategy. Health
inequality considerations will be considered in the co-production of the Strategy and how local
priorities are agreed.

1.9

In particular, the Health and Wellbeing Strategy will seek to reflect recommendations from Public
Health England - now the Office for Health Improvement and Office for Health Improvement and
Disparities (OHID) - on how to better focus on ethnicity within taking action on health inequalities.
These include:
a.
Mainstreaming ethnicity: Explicit consideration of ethnicity within health inequalities work.
b.
Influencing decision-makers and role of senior leadership: The Lambeth Together
Equalities, Diversity and Inclusion Group will seek to influence senior leadership across the
health and care system to take into account ethnic differences in decision-making processes.
c.
Data collection, analysis and reporting: Better quality data collection, more consistent
analysis and reporting of data on ethnicity, health and healthcare so that there is adequate
understanding of local needs and the extent to which they are being met by policies and
services.
d.
Action on the wider social and economic determinants of health: A Health in All Policies
approach will provide a mechanism to consider health impacts of the wider determinants of
health taking into account the different ethnic patterns.
e.
Tackling racism and ethnic discrimination: Acknowledging, understanding and
addressing the central role of racism must and building the evidence base around effective
action.
f.
Commissioning of culturally sensitive health promotion interventions: Interventions
need to work with cultural and religious understandings and values while recognising intragroup diversity and avoiding stereotyping.
g.
Improving access, experiences and outcomes of health services: Actions at
organisational level include: regular equity audits; use of Health Impact Assessments;
integration of equality into quality systems; good representation of black and minority ethnic

Page 130

h.

i.

communities among staff; sustained workforce development and employment practices; and
trust-building dialogue with service users
Engagement with minority ethnic groups: Having meaningful engagement and
involvement of minority ethnic communities, across all areas of activity. This will include the
JSNA and Health and Wellbeing Strategy development to help better understand needs and
assets. Also, a concerted effort will be required by public and private sector employers and
service providers; using the work with our anchor institutions to support this.
Making use of evidence: The evidence base to inform policy and practice remains limited,
but more can be done to mobilise the available evidence and to document and evaluate
promising and innovative local practice.

1.10 This report describes some of the information we have locally on health inequalities, highlighting
where available, any ethnic disparities and outlining work underway to address these. It is not a
comprehensive overview of all the breadth of the issue and response, but rather illustrative of
some of the work to recover the impacts of the pandemic and learn the lessons for the future, for
which the new Health and Wellbeing Strategy will offer strategic direction for the borough. The
appendices include more detailed analysis for reference. Appendix 1 highlights some of data we
have regarding both the experience of Covid but also other health inequalities in Lambeth.

2.
2.1

PROPOSAL AND REASONS
Pre Covid-19
The impact of health inequalities in Lambeth has been recognised for a long time, and much of the
work of the Council and NHS has centred on reducing inequalities by making a significant
difference to those with the worst outcomes. Inequalities existed both between Lambeth and the
rest of England and within Lambeth itself.

2.2

A critical indicator of health inequality is life expectancy (LE); a measure that offers a stark picture
of unfair and avoidable health inequalities. Prior to the pandemic, the gap in life expectancy
between the most and least deprived areas in England was 9.3 years for males and 7.3 years for
females. Life expectancy in Lambeth was broadly in line with the average for England as a whole:
for men it was one year lower than in England as a whole, for women it was the same. The gap
between Lambeth and England life expectancy had closed over the last 2 decades.

2.3

Healthy life expectancy (HLE) is the number of years we live in good health. Women in Lambeth
had a healthy life expectancy of 63.4 years. This had not changed in the past decade. For men
there had been a 6.8 year decline in healthy life expectancy since 2011-13, and was 58.4 years .
An average Lambeth resident will spend around 20 years in poor health. A man living in the most
deprived ward of Lambeth could expect to be in good health for 7 years less than one living in the
least deprived wards in Lambeth. A man in Lambeth could on average expect to live 3 years less in
good health than a woman.

2.4

Lambeth is an ethnically diverse population and the Black, Asian and Multi Ethnic (BAME)
community accounts for around 42% (60% including white other) of the total population. There is a
relationship between ethnicity and ill health, with BAME groups being more likely to report illhealth. Ill-health among the Black population also starts at a younger age than in the White British
population. A Black Caribbean man living in Lambeth is likely to experience his first long term
condition 10 years earlier than his White British counterpart. Evidence suggests the top most
influential key determinants to health inequalities Black Asian and Multi Ethnic communities are:
a.
Socio-economic deprivation – access to health promoting resources;
b.
Racism and discrimination;
c.
Residential location – access to resources, exposure to risks; and,

Page 131
d.
2.5

2.6

Access to preventative and treatment health services.

The full extent of the impact of Covid-19 on health inequalities in Lambeth is yet to be fully realised.
Some of the direct impacts of the pandemic were observed in relation to inequalities in virus
exposure, severity and mortality and these are included in this report. Indirect impacts resulting
from measures to limit transmission of coronavirus which tend to be socio-economic factors such
as loss of income, furlough, unemployment, lack of digital access and isolation will be revealed
over the short and long-term translating to inequalities in morbidity and mortality across certain
population groups.
Covid-19
Since the beginning of the pandemic, Public Health England and latterly the UK Health Security
Agency have provided data on Covid-19 cases and testing across the country. The quality of the
data has improved overtime and we are able to analyse our local information to get an
understanding of local case rates and who is testing for Covid-19. It is more difficult to access local
data at a granular level on hospitalisation and mortality.

2.7

The first case of Covid-19 was reported to Lambeth’s Director of Public Health on 28 February
2020. By the end of February 2022 there were 32,000 cases recorded in Lambeth residents and
over 3 million tests registered to Lambeth residents. There were 644 Lambeth residents with Covid
recorded as a cause of death recorded between January 2020 - December 2021. In 2021 Lambeth
recorded 135 more deaths than would be expected based on the 5-year average, with these
excess deaths so far totalling 409 over the course of the pandemic. Whilst some of these were
certainly due to Covid-19, others may reflect impacts of lock downs and challenges of delivering
preventative and routine care during a pandemic.

2.8

Case rates have fluctuated over the four distinct “waves” of Covid-19, reflective of the different
tools and infrastructure available for testing. In the most recent Delta and Omicron waves, case
rates tended to be highest in young adults and secondary school age children and, combined with
vaccination in older and more vulnerable groups, this meant the impact on the health system was
felt less acutely than in waves one (Wuhan original variant) and two (Alpha).

2.9

London level analysis clearly shows a socio-economic gradient associated with hospital admission,
with highest rates in the areas with higher deprivation (see Appendix 1). Men were more likely to
be admitted than women, and age was the biggest risk factor for admission. However, those with
Black African, Black Caribbean, Asian or other ethnicity had the highest admission rates compared
to the white ethnic groups in both wave 1 and 2 (prior to vaccination roll out). Critical care
admissions follow a similar pattern. The risk of dying following hospital admission was around twice
that in white ethnic group for Black Caribbean, Asian and Other ethnic groups but increased in all
ethnic groups with age. Data is not yet available for the most recent Omicron wave, and although
the overall numbers are likely to be lower in the most recent wave the patterns are likely to be
similar. The difference in the Omicron wave is that people who were not vaccinated or boosted
made up a very high proportion of admissions to hospital and in particular critical care.

2.10 As the Covid-19 vaccine has been rolled out to all age groups now except under 12s, the
differences in uptake are very clear. Younger people, those from more deprived areas and those
from Black and some Asian ethnic groups are less likely to be vaccinated. The Lambeth approach
to the vaccination programme has been to address these issues from the beginning and work with
communities to engage in conversations about vaccination to remove barriers and encourage
better uptake. This work continues and whilst rates of vaccination are still significantly lower for
some of our communities, every day we have people attending for first doses at our numerous
community sites. Appendix 1 outlines some of the approaches we are using in Lambeth.

Page 132
2.11 Work with the Black community to increase Covid-19 vaccine uptake in the Black community,
highlighted some entrenched factors that have contributed to low uptake of the Covid-19 vaccine in
certain communities. As a response Lambeth worked with the Office for Health Improvement and
Disparities (OHID), formerly Public Health England, to take a more holistic approach to support
Black residents with their general health and wellbeing while helping communities to make the
vaccine decision that is right for them alongside their general health and wellbeing. A Health and
Wellbeing Day for the Black community was held which was well attended and received positive
feedback. Learning from the event is being taken forward in the running of regular neighbourhood
informal health and wellbeing sessions and borough wide events.
Wider Health Inequalities
2.12 Other areas of health outcomes have been subject to increased scrutiny as the magnitude of the
differences between ethnic groups has become evident. The Black Thrive partnership, including
the Council and NHS, has been working for over five years to tackle racism, discrimination and
poor mental health outcomes for Black people in Lambeth; local research has shown that those
from certain ethnic groups experience their first long term condition up to 10 years younger than
the white population impacting on their ability to remain economically active and enjoying additional
years of good health.
2.13 The intersectionality between poverty, race, age, sexuality and gender can also play a significant
role in health outcomes. Recent local analysis indicates that women from Black backgrounds
appear to have a range of poorer health outcomes compared to both Black men and White women.
Appendix 2 provides detailed breakdown on health inequalities for certain medical conditions in
Lambeth related to ethnicity, social deprivation and gender. Lambeth has a significant programme
of work tackling some of the underlying causes of the poor health outcomes experienced by our
communities but much of the proactive and preventative care in place has also been adversely
affected by the pandemic and the ability to access healthcare. For example, the interruption of
programmes to support the management of hypertension (high blood pressure) have been
estimated to contribute to an additional 12,000 strokes and deaths nationally over the next three
years.
Hypertension (see Appendix 3)
2.14 Around 8% of residents registered with Lambeth GPs have hypertension (high blood pressure).
Through the pandemic, the proportion of GP registered patients under 80 years who have good
control of their blood pressure reduced from 72% to 41%. As hypertension is more common in
Black and Asian ethnic groups, those with obesity and from lower socio-economic neighbourhoods,
the impact and sequelae of poor control falls disproportionally on these groups. The data in
Appendix 2 shows that after chronic pain, hypertension is the second most prevalent long-term
condition affecting the Black communities in Lambeth, and the third most prevalent affecting Asian
communities. The existing data may not have fully captured the scale of the problem, however the
national CORE20PLUS5 programme will provide us with the opportunity to identify and diagnose
more people with high blood pressure.
2.15 Local community-based approaches have been developed in Lambeth working with GPs, using
community pharmacists and working with other voluntary and community sector (VCS)
organisations to engage with the communities at highest risk and enable them to get support to
manage their blood pressure. As we come out of the pandemic we are looking to learn from the
approaches to vaccination, to build trust in the community and adapt to a more outreach model to
identify and treat those with high blood pressure. Six out of our nine Primary Care Networks (PCN)
have chosen high blood pressure as an area that needs extra focus due to the marked inequalities

Page 133
regarding outcomes and have set out plans to address the inequalities in their PCN
Neighbourhood plans.
Diabetes (see Appendix 4)
2.16 Diabetes is one of the most common long-term conditions in Lambeth affecting around 5% of the
population, which is approximately 20,000 people. Good management of diabetes can prevent risk
of further complications, and primary prevention of diabetes can also be achieved by reducing
obesity. The data shown in Appendix shows that Black ethnic women have more than double the
rates in the general adult population (12.3% vs 5.6%); similar to the high rate in Black ethnic male
population (11.5%); and more than four times the rate in White ethnic female population (3.0%)
2.17 There has been a drop in the number of people living with diabetes who have received optimised
care through the pandemic. As diabetes disproportionally affects particular ethnic groups and
communities, patient management support programmes have been developed specifically for
these communities.
2.18 The Lambeth Together Long-Term Conditions Diabetes Inequalities Project is working on how to
better address and manage barriers to health through identifying at risk patients to provide targeted
supported self-management focusing on patients with protected characteristics. Using a health
coach, the project aims to explore what support is needed to enable socially appropriate selfmanagement, and links to community groups for a focussed group of diabetic patients with low
income.
Mental Health Promotion and Wellbeing (Appendices 5 & 6)
2.19 The pandemic has increased many of the risk factors for mental ill health in Lambeth. The number
of out of work benefits claimants, for example, rose from 8,890 in February 2020 to 22,510 in
March 2021. It has been declining since to reach 14,740 in January 2022. Many communities have
been affected by bereavement. Many people, particularly the elderly and children and young
people, have seen their social networks being disrupted by the lockdown, thus intensifying social
isolation.
2.20 In January the Health and Wellbeing Board had a Mental Health themed meeting, where some of
the inequalities in mental health and the local action on these were discussed. The Lambeth
Suicide prevention strategy was also published. The slides from this Board are in Appendix 5.
Maternal Health
2.21 Health inequalities are also seen in different maternal health risk factors and outcomes. The
general fertility rate in Lambeth1 is 44.3 per 1000. 39.1% of deliveries in Lambeth are to Black
and Multi ethnic mothers. Younger and older women, those of Black, Asian and Mixed ethnicity
and those living in more deprived areas are less likely to book (have their first midwife
appointment) within 10 weeks. In Lambeth 48% of pregnant women access maternity care early
compared to the national average of 57.8%.
2.22 Folic acid is important for the development of a healthy foetus. Folic acid is less likely to be taken
in preparation for pregnancy by women who are younger, Black, Asian or Mixed ethnicity and living
in more deprived areas. In Lambeth only 17.5% of women took folic acid supplements prior to
pregnancy, compared to 28.5% across London. Women in their 20s and 40s, those of Black or
White ethnicity and those living in more deprived areas are also more likely to be recorded as
obese at the time of booking.

1

Number of live births per 1,000 women of child bearing age

Page 134
2.23 Women of Black, Asian and Mixed ethnicity and those living in more deprived areas also have
poorer birth outcomes, In Lambeth 3.6% of babies have low birthweight at term, higher than the
London and national average. Premature birth is more likely in women of Black ethnicity, women
living in more deprived areas and mothers over 35. Babies who were of Black Caribbean ethnicity
were 1.7 times as likely to be born prematurely than babies who were of White Other ethnicity.
Stillbirths are more likely in those of Black and Asian ethnicity, those living in more deprived areas
and mothers over 35. Babies who were of Black Caribbean ethnicity were 1.7 times as likely to be
born prematurely than babies who were of White Other ethnicity.
2.24 Nationally, data gaps have been identified in relation to health inequalities variation; a full
complement of variation, trends and inequalities is not available for each maternal indicator. The
extent to which ethnicity is recorded is improving but there is still missing data including ‘Not
known’ and ‘Not stated’.
2.25 The evidence that maternal and perinatal mortality rates are significantly higher for Black, Asian,
and ethnic minority women and birthing people was heightened during the Covid 19 pandemic. As
a response the maternity services across South East London ensured that women and birthing
people from Black, Asian, and ethnic minorities were provided with information around COVID-19,
their increased risk of being hospitalised with COVID-19, Vitamin D supplementation and also data
collection.
2.26 The government announced in February 2022, a new taskforce to examine maternity care for
those in the most deprived areas and from ethnic minority groups in light of the worse outcomes
experienced by both mothers and babies. The taskforce seeks to increase understanding of the
drivers behind the disparities, examine the social factors linked to poorer health outcomes and
tackle these issues to improve the health and wellbeing of women and their babies. It will seek to
do so by looking to consider and support evidence-based interventions for the following areas:
a.
improving personalised care and support plans for mothers;
b.
addressing how wider societal issues impact maternal health, working with experts in other
government departments;
c.
improving education and awareness of pre-conception health when trying to conceive, such
as taking supplements before pregnancy and maintaining a healthy weight;
d.
increasing access to maternity care for all women and developing targeted support for
women from the most vulnerable groups; and,
e.
empowering women to make evidence-based decisions about their care during pregnancy
such as the development of a new digital framework, which provides women with support to
make informed decisions during labour.
Caseload midwifery was tested as part of Lambeth Early Action Partnership (LEAP). Caseload
midwifery describes continuity of midwifery care from booking to the postnatal period, with longer
and more frequent antenatal appointments including in the home setting. Continuity of midwifery
care has been shown to reduce preterm birth, but it was unclear how effective it would be for those
from deprived and ethnic backgrounds. Implementing caseload midwifery in the LEAP areas
resulted in a significant reduction in preterm birth rate in women allocated to caseload midwifery,
when compared with those who received traditional midwifery care. Caesarean section births were
also significantly reduced in women, including emergency caesarean deliveries without increase in
neonatal unit admission or stillbirth compared to traditional midwifery care. The findings suggest
that when applied to targeted groups (women in higher IMD quintile and women of diverse
ethnicity) that the impact of the caseload intervention is greater. Caseload midwifery continues to
be delivered as part of the LEAP programme.

Page 135
2.27 Locally, plans for improvement are being taken forward through the Local Maternity and Neonatal
System (LMNS) as part of the NHS Maternity Transformation Programme to meet the national
clinical ambition for continuing maternity care for Black, Asian and Multi ethnic women. The
learning from Lambeth Early Action Partnership (LEAP) will also help inform these improvement
plans.
2.28 The South East London (SEL) Local Maternity and Neonatal System has set out the following
actions which contribute to tackling health inequalities. These are:
a.
Over the next few months, the SEL Local Maternity and Neonatal System will be carrying out
an equity analysis and creating a maternity system wide equity action plan that will focus on
improving maternity care and services, for women and birthing people from ethnic minorities
and those living in the most deprived communities. This will be a large piece of work that will
involve women and birthing people and all maternity stakeholders.
b.
Continuing with plans to increase continuity of carer for women and birthing people from
Black, Asian, and ethnic minorities and those living in deprivation, and ensuring that all
women and birthing people receive personalised care throughout pregnancy, labour, birth
and during the postnatal period. Continuity of carer has been shown to significantly reduce
poorer outcomes and we are working on this becoming the default model of care for all
women and birthing people.
c.
Building the Maternal Medicine Network service over the next 3 to 6 months to ensure
women and birthing people with medical complexities receive the right care, by the right
people in the right place with a focus on reducing inequalities faced by those most
vulnerable, redressing the disproportionate poorer outcomes that some women and birthing
people face.
d.
Continue to improve maternity services data via the maternity services data set (MSDS)
highlighting where efforts and improvements need to be focused for those most vulnerable.
e.
Working with perinatal mental health services to address the gap in mental health services
for women and birthing people that experience fear, trauma, or loss in the context of their
maternity journey.
f.
Working with CCG colleagues to introduce the smoking cessation maternity pathway.
Smoking is the biggest modifiable risk factor in pregnancy and contributes to many stillbirths,
neonatal deaths and maternal morbidity and mortality.
g.
Collaborating with SEL Maternity Voice representatives to ensure that the user voice is part
of any service formation or transformation.
h.
The provision over the next 5 months of culturally sensitive training for maternity staff
delivered by the charity FiveXMore.
i.
Working with pan London colleagues to improve translation services within maternity care so
that women and birthing people are aware of their options and care pathways at all stages.
j.
Funding for the provision of empowering information wallets for Black, Asian, and ethnic
minority women and birthing people.
k.
Roll out across SEL of informative posters that will be displayed in healthcare facilities across
SEL providing information for Black, Asian, and ethnic minority women and birthing people
around maternity choice and created by Lewisham maternity voices.
l.
Roll out of a culturally sensitive recipe book, for women and birthing people with gestational
diabetes.
m. Ensuring engagement and sign up to national and regional programmes of work such as the
Capital Midwife Anti-Racist Framework and support the whole maternity workforce to thrive.
Sickle Cell Anaemia
2.29 In November 2021 the All-Party Parliamentary group on Sickle Cell Anaemia and Thalassemia
published its report: “No One’s Listening” with a series of recommendations to improve the care of
people living with sickle cell anaemia, a disease which predominately affects Black people. The

Page 136
report was triggered by the coroner’s report into the early and avoidable death of a sickle patient in
a North London Hospital. Sickle cell disease predominately affects Black people although there is
also small population of affected people from the Middle East, India and the Mediterranean region.
The report found a pattern of stigmatisation, under-funding, sub-standard care and a lack of
prioritisation. The Report’s recommendations to improve care extend from the Department of
Health and Social care, NHSE, NICE through to individual Trusts. Guy’s and St Thomas’s NHS
Foundation Trusts (GSTT) has the largest population of patients with Sickle cell adult patients
(currently 870 on the local database) and is working at individual service, directorate and Trust
level to ensure the recommendations are applied to improve care received by local patients.
2.30 Sickle cell is characterised by frequent episodes of severe pain which may need hospital
admission. It is also associated with multi-organ acute and chronic complications including stroke,
pulmonary hypertension, leg ulcers and renal failure, and requires life-long follow up and
comprehensive long term condition management. There is a particular emphasis on shifting care
from unplanned e.g. emergency admissions and crises to good planned care, including strong
condition management, promoting personalised care (across professional boundaries, tailored to
an individual) and promote self-care, where appropriate.
2.31 The overall prevalence of Sickle Cell Disease in Lambeth is estimated as 0.1% and 0.6% in the
Lambeth Black population. Locally, many crises are managed out of hospital through the support of
the South East London Sickle Cell/Thalassaemia Centre. The Centre provides services for adults,
young people and children with sickle cell disease and thalassaemia and their families. It provides
a specialist nursing service to the residents of Lambeth, Southwark and Lewisham, who are at risk
of having, or already have an unusual haemoglobin type. It also provides the same service to
families and carers who are affected by sickle cell disease and thalassaemia.
2.32 The team at the Centre consists of specialist nurses working across Lambeth, Southwark and
Lewisham, delivering education, support and crisis intervention where necessary for all patients
with sickle cell disease. The team provides a comprehensive service from neonatal screening to
end of life care and accepts self-referrals, primary and secondary referrals. The intensive patient
focused support available to both patients and families enables disease management and
providing support and education to help patients cope in crisis. Care is delivered through individual
care packages agreed with users, hospital consultants and the specialist nurse case managers.
Agreed care packages reflect a shared care approach underpinned by protocols and guidelines.
2.33 There are times when the most appropriate place for a person in crisis is the hospital. This can
facilitate fast, effective pain relief/management, fluid management and monitoring of vital signs.
The GSTT Sickle cell and red cell disorders service has close links with community services and
have specialist diagnostic laboratory services for red cell disorders. The haematology day unit
offers a red cell apheresis service for patients with long-term chronic complications of sickle cell
disease, for example stroke. Following a hospital attendance/stay, discharge information is
provided to the community team who will then monitor the patient and reviewed through multidisciplinary team meetings. A patient support group is run weekly; the support group is for patients
with sickle cell disorders who are seen at GSTT, and their family members and/or carers.
2.34 Local Sickle cell services are one of the most expert in the country, Guy’s and St Thomas’s NHS
Foundation Trust, Evelina Children’s Hospital and King’s College Hospital have led the South
Thames Sickle Cell and Thalassemia Network (STSTN). STSTN is a haemoglobinopathy
collaboration led by healthcare professionals, including consultants, nurses, psychologists and
others, that work closely with other hospitals in London and South East England. The STSTN
collaborates across service, teaching and research to improve the patient experience by offering
better treatment outcomes for people with sickle cell disease and thalassaemia.

Page 137
2.35 All Lambeth pregnant women are offered screening by a blood test for sickle cell and other
haemoglobin variants. Antenatal screening identifies parents to be who have the trait (also known
as a carrier). If the mother is identified with the trait, the baby’s father is offered a screening
test. Also, all newborn babies at five days old are screened as part of the newborn bloodspot (heel
prick test). The key reason for offering newborn screening for sickle cell disease is because babies
with sickle cell disease are vulnerable to serious infections. Newborn screening detects babies who
may have sickle cell disease or have the trait (also known as a carrier) for sickle cell disease.
Overarching approaches to working with communities
2.36 In Lambeth, just as in the rest of the country, the levels of emotional wellbeing decreased, and the
levels of anxiety increased during the pandemic. However, this trend seems to have reversed in
the last year. A recent Lambeth Resident Survey also shows that the levels of anxiety in the
borough have decreased.
2.37 The Lambeth Together approach to tackling inequalities works at different levels. There is a
strategic programme looking at Equalities, Diversity and Inclusion which works with the Lambeth
Together Delivery Alliances as well as the SE London Integrated Care Partnership to challenge
and develop a programme of work to improve outcomes for residents and staff in the local health
and care systems. The Lambeth Together Neighbourhood and Wellbeing Delivery Alliance is
developing approaches working with “thriving communities” to enable bottom up, community
development type approaches to addressing the issues impacting on health and wellbeing. The
food hubs which were established as part of the pandemic response are morphing into health and
wellbeing hubs which can support a wider network of advice and support, including benefits and
debt advice as well as health improvement activities such as stop smoking support, health checks
and weight management.
2.38 The learning from Covid-19 on the roll out of the vaccination programme has led to new
approaches and working in partnership with Public Health England and the Beacon Project, a
Black communities wellbeing event run in October helped demonstrate how to bring together
trusted health professionals with communities where there is a high level of need. We continue
working with the Beacon Project in running health and wellbeing sessions across the borough to
particularly engage with our Black community around their broader health and wellbeing. We are
also working with community groups and faith groups to encourage the development of culturally
competent health improvement programmes as well as health services which tackle some of
discrimination experienced by people in the health and care system.

3.

FINANCE

3.1

There are no finance implications at this stage.

4.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

There were no legal comments.

4.2

There were no further comments from Democratic Services.

5.

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1

NHS and Public Health officers have contributed to this report. The programmes of work have
been co-produced with residents and patients.

Page 138

6.

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

Not applicable.

7.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1

An Equalities Impact Assessment has not been completed as the report is for information. All
Lambeth Public Health activities have an impact on equalities – where possible these seek to
narrow the gap in the experience of health outcomes, and we strive to measure this in all our work
programmes. Through Covid-19 we have tried as far as possible to report data on ethnicity
routinely as part of our assessment of the pandemic and its impact on our residents. Whilst some
of this information is not able to be shared publicly due to the context of disclosure we do use it to
inform how we deliver our work programme.

8.

COMMUNITY SAFETY

8.1

Not applicable.

9.

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Environmental
Not applicable.

9.2

Health
Covered in the body of the report.

9.3

Corporate Parenting
Not applicable.

9.4

Staffing and accommodation
Not applicable.

9.5

Responsible Procurement
Not applicable.

10. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 Not applicable.

Page 139
AUDIT TRAIL
Date
Received

Comments in
paragraph:

Name and Position/Title

Lambeth Directorate

Date Sent

Councillors Jim Dickson
and Lucy Caldicott

Cabinet Member for
Health and Social Care
(Job Share)

04.03.22

15.03.22

Adults and Health

03.03.22

14.03.22

Throughout

Finance and Investment

04.03.22

04.03.22

3

Legal and Governance

04.03.22

09.03.22

4

Legal and Governance

04.03.22

05.03.22

Andrew Eyres, Strategic
Director
Peter Hesketh, Assistant
Director of Finance
Andrew Pavlou, Legal
Services
David Rose, Democratic
Services

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons

Background information

Appendices

11.03.22
14.03.22
16.03.22
No
No
Not applicable
Not applicable.
Borough Plan 2019-2021 Borough Plan
Health and Wellbeing Strategy Health and Wellbeing
Strategy
Annual Public Health Report 2018 Annual Public Health
Report
Covid 19 in Lambeth Health and Wellbeing Board
report Covid 19 report
All-Party Parliamentary group on Sickle Cell Anaemia
and Thalassemia
No One's Listening
Appendix 1 - Covid-19 & Inequalities
Appendix 2 SEL CCG Health Inequalities report
Appendix 3 Lambeth Together report
Appendix 4 - Blood pressure and diabetes in Lambeth
Appendix 5 - Mental health and wellbeing update
Appendix 6 - HWBB Mental health inequalities

This page is intentionally left blank

Summary – Lambeth population
Lambeth. extends over an area of 27.25 km2 with the 2022 resident population estimated at 317,800 people
(GLA 2020). Lambeth is the 7th most densely populated borough in London with around 12,000 per sqkm2.

Across all age groups, there is an even split of males to females. The population in Lambeth is predominantly
young, 61% are aged under 40; 41% aged 20 to 39 (a mobile population). Correspondingly, the older
population, those aged 60 years and over, account for a little over 13%.

The Annual population survey, estimates that a third of Lambeth’s residents are non-UK born. Of these non-UK
born, 40% are of wider European origin, 20% are of African origin; and 20% of Central or South American
origin. Nearly 150 languages are spoken as the first language in the homes of Lambeth school children.
Portuguese, Spanish and Somali, are the most commonly spoken other languages in Lambeth.
Lambeth is ranked as the 11th most deprived borough in London, and the 81st most deprived in England (IMD,
rank of average score). Nearly one in five of Lambeth’s residents (20%) live in an area that is ranked among
the 20% most deprived in England; over two thirds (67%) live in an area that is ranked among the 40% most
deprived in England, but levels of deprivation vary widely through the length of the borough.

Page 141

Lambeth’s population is highly diverse, a characteristic visible in the breadth of ethnic and cultural traditions
seen throughout the borough. It is estimated that 63% of the population describe their ethnicity as other than
White British; 23% describe their ethnicity as Black (11% Black African, 7% Black Caribbean and 5% Other
Black), 22% White Other and 6% as Asian. A larger proportion of the population aged under 20 years and over
50 years describe their ethnicity as Black.

COVID-19 Lambeth counts – still to add some context here
Testing
At the end of February 2022, 3,024,368 confirmed positive, negative or void COVID-19 virus test results (PCR and LFD
tests) have been reported among London residents. This is a count of test results and may include more than one test per
person. Of those 1,8826,640 are Lab-based virus tests and 1,197,728 are rapid lateral flow tests.
Cases
At the end of February 2022, 31,999 confirmed cases of COVID-19 had been reported in Lambeth.

Vaccinations
As of 3 March 2022 cumulative number of people who have received the first dose of COVID-19 vaccination 241,095.
Cumulative number of people who have received the second dose of COVID-19 vaccination, 223,530.
Cumulative number of people who have received a booster or third dose of COVID-19 vaccination, 163,048.
Mortality
As of 4 March 2022, there have been 608 cumulative deaths within 28 days of positive COVID-19 test.
As of 18 February 2022, there have been 685 cumulative deaths with COVID-19 on the death certificate.

Page 142

Admissions
At the end of February 2022, cumulative total number of patients admitted with COVID-19 to Guys and St Thomas was
3,874 and Kings College Hospital was 10,405. Please note not all of those admissions will be Lambeth residents.

Summary 1 – tests for COVID-19 (Lambeth)
At the end of February 2022, 3,024,368 confirmed positive, negative or void COVID-19 virus
test results (PCR and LFD tests) have been reported among Lambeth residents. COVID-19
has impacted some groups more than others and at the end of December 2021, the
cumulative COVID-19 test rate in the least deprived areas in Lambeth was higher than the
rate in the most deprived (40% least deprived vs 40% most deprived), the rate in females
was 1.1 times that of males, the rate in those aged 20-39 years was higher than other age
groups, and the rates in the Black and Mixed ethnicities were lower when compared to the
White British population.
Page 143

Page 144

Page 145

Page 146

Page 147

Page 148

Summary 2 – confirmed cases of COVID-19 (London)
At the end of December 2021, 1,867,647 confirmed cases of COVID-19 had been reported in
London. COVID-19 has impacted some groups more than others and at the end of
December 2021, the cumulative age-standardised confirmed COVID-19 case rate was
highest in the North West by North East region. London has a rate lower than England. The
rate in the least deprived areas (those aged under 75 years) in London was significantly
higher than the rate in the most deprived, the rate in females was 1.1 times that of males,
the rate in those aged 25-49 years was 1.6 times those aged 85 years and over, and the
rates in Any Other ethnic group was 1.1 times the rate in the White group.
Page 149

Page 150

Page 151

Page 152

Page 153

Page 154

Page 155

Page 156

Summary 3 – hospital admissions involving COVID-19 (London)

Page 157

At the end of November 2021, 65,675 admissions among London residents had been
finished with a primary diagnosis of COVID-19. The peak in monthly admissions was during
the second wave, January 2021, driven by the emergence of a new variant of coronavirus
(B.1.1.7 also known as Alpha). Wide inequalities in admission rates involving COVID-19 have
been seen. At the end of November 2021, the cumulative age-standardised admission rate
was highest in London followed by the North West region. The rate in the most deprived
areas in London was 2.6 times the rate in the least deprived, the rate in males was 1.5
times that of females, the rate in those aged 85 years and over was 1.6 times those aged 75
to 84 years, 2.8 times those aged 65 to 74 years, 4.1 times those aged 50 to 64 years and
the rates in Black (2.3 times) and Asian (2 times) groups were more than double the rate in
the White group.

Page 158

Page 159

Page 160

Page 161

Page 162

Page 163

Summary 4 – vaccinations COVID-19 (London)

Page 164

At the end of December 2021, estimated 899,060 London residents (18+) had not received a
COVID-19 vaccination. The vaccination rollout was prioritised by age group with older people
receiving vaccinations first. Differences in uptake between population age groups data may
therefore reflect differences in age structure between those groups. Wide inequalities in
vaccination rates involving COVID-19 have been seen. At the end of December 2021, the
cumulative age-standardised unvaccinated rate was highest in London followed by the
North West region. The rate in the most deprived areas in England was 2 times the rate in
the least deprived, the rate in males was 1.1 times that of females, the rate in those aged 50
to 64 years was 2 times those aged 85 years and over, 1.5 times those aged 60 to 69 years,
the rates in Black Caribbean was 3.9 times, Black African was 2.6 times, White Other was
2.4 times the rate in the White group, the rate in never worked occupation group was 2.3
times the rate in the higher managerial, administrative and professional occupations and the
rates in social rented housing was 2.1 times the rate of owned housing tenure.

Page 165

Page 166

Page 167

Page 168

Page 169

Page 170

Page 171

Page 172

Summary 5 - deaths involving COVID-19 (London)

Page 173

At the end of December 2021, 21,630 deaths among London residents had been registered
with COVID-19 mentioned on the death certificate. Wide inequalities in death rates involving
COVID-19 have been seen. The peak in monthly mortality was during the first and second
wave, April 2020 and January 2021, coinciding with peak cases and hospital admissions. At the
end of December 2021, the cumulative age-standardised mortality rate was highest in London
followed by the North West region. The rate in the most deprived areas in England was 2.2
times the rate in the least deprived, the rate in males was 1.8 times that of females, the rate in
those aged 85 years and over was 2.6 times those aged 75 to 84 years, 7.0 times those aged
65 to 74 years, 21.4 times those aged 50 to 64 years and the rates in Black (1.9 times) and
Asian (1.8 times) groups were nearly double the rate in the White group.

Page 174

Page 175

Page 176

Page 177

Page 178

Page 179

Trends in life expectancy – impact of Covid-19 (Source: Office of Health Improvement and
Disparities)
• In 2020, life expectancy for both sexes in England was lower than in each of the previous 5 years.
• Compared with 2019, life expectancy in 2020 fell by 1.3 years for males and 1.0 years for females.
• All English regions had falls in life expectancy between 2019 and 2020, but the biggest falls were in
London: 2.3 years for males and 1.5 years for females.

• The falls in life expectancy in 2020 were almost entirely a result of deaths from COVID-19.

Page 180

• In the South West, male life expectancy fell by only 0.5 years and in the East of England there was
a fall of only 0.7 years for females.

Inequalities in life expectancy – impact of Covid-19 (Source: Office of Health
Improvement and Disparities
• Life expectancy fell across all deprivation deciles in England in 2020, compared with the same
period in 2019. Inequality in life expectancy for England increased for both males and females.

• COVID-19 was the cause of death that contributed most to this gap. However, higher mortality from
heart disease, lung cancer, and chronic lower respiratory diseases in deprived areas were also
important reasons for the gap in life expectancy in both 2019 and 2020.
• At regional level, there was variation in the trend in inequality between 2019 and 2020, however in
all regions COVID-19 made the largest contribution to the gap in 2020.

Page 181

• The gap in male life expectancy between the most and least deprived in England was 10.3 years in
2020, one year larger than in 2019. For females, the gap was 8.5 years in 2020, 0.6 years larger
than in 2019.

Life expectancy in men has reduced in 2020

Page 182

Impact of Covid on Life
expectancy in men in
Lambeth

Life expectancy in women has reduced in 2020

Page 183

Impact of Covid on Life
expectancy in women in
Lambeth

Impact of Covid-19 on preventative services:
There has been significant reductions in uptake of some national screening programs

Page 184

Impact of Covid on hypertension detection and control
QOF Hypertension Prevalence and Indicators

Page 185

•
•

Prevalence is QOF Hypertension Register (numerator) / GP Practice List Size (denominator).
The Right Care Programme lists Greenwich, Lewisham and Southwark (dotted lines) as borough
comparators for Lambeth, in terms of population demographics and deprivation.

45

QOF Hypertension Under 80-year-olds: Lambeth GP Practices Apr 2019 - Mar 2020

Apr 2020 - Mar 2021

The percentage of patients aged 79 years or
under with hypertension in whom the last
blood pressure reading (measured in the
preceding 12 months) is 140/90 mmHg or less
in GP practices in Lambeth

Apr 2021 - Oct 2021

Page 186

46

Recorded diagnosed
Prevalence of a range
of long term conditions
in Lambeth

Page 187

Journal of Clinical
Epidemiology 2021
140135-148DOI:
(10.1016/j.jclinepi.20
21.09.005)

Sickle Cell
• Sickle cell disease is the name for a group of inherited health conditions that affect the red blood
cells. The most serious type is called sickle cell anaemia.

• Is a serious and lifelong health condition, although treatment can help manage many of the
symptoms.

• Caused by a gene that affects how red blood cells develop.
• Sickle cell disease is common and affects 1 in every 2000 live births in England.
• In the UK, sickle cell screening is offered to all newborn babies and all pregnant women.
• There are currently around 12,500–15,000 people with sickle cell disease in England (prevalence
~0.03%)
• Lambeth prevalence is 0.1% overall; Black groups 0.6%

Page 188

• Sickle cell disease occurs predominantly in people of African and African-Caribbean
origin, but cases also occur in families originating from the Middle East, parts of India, the eastern
Mediterranean, and South and Central America; the common factor to this distribution is a history of
malaria, or migration from a malarial area.

All party parliamentary group report November 2021

• Triggered by Coroner’s report into death of Evan
Nathan Smith in North Middlesex Hospital

• Report made recommendations to address these
areas

Page 189

• 3 evidence sessions held – patients, clinicians and
politicians – identified following broad themes:
• Sub-standard care on general wards and in
A&E
• Failure to provide joined-up sickle cell care
• Low awareness of sickle cell among heathcare
professionals and inadequate training
• Negative attitudes towards sickle cell patients
• Inadequate investment in sickle cell care

Maternal Health
(source Mothers and Babies:
Reducing Risk through Audits and
Confidential Enquiries across the
UK - MBRRACE-UK 2021)

• Since 2013 maternal death
rates have levelled off.

Page 190

• General trend in both direct
and indirect maternal death
rates has been downward
between 2004 to 2013

Maternal health – (source
Mothers and Babies: Reducing
Risk through Audits and
Confidential Enquiries across
the UK - MBRRACE-UK -2021)

• 8.8 women per 100,000 died
during pregnancy or up to six
weeks after childbirth or the
end of pregnancy. There is no
statistically significant
difference in maternal
mortality compared to 201012

Page 191

• In 2017-19, 191 women died
during or up to six weeks after
the end of pregnancy, from
causes associated with their
pregnancy, among 2,173,810
women giving birth in the UK.

Maternal health – (source Mothers and Babies: Reducing Risk through Audits and Confidential
Enquiries across the UK - MBRRACE-UK - 2021)

Page 192

• Age & deprivation impact
on maternal mortality
• Older age groups >40
years significantly
more likely to have
increased risk of
maternal mortality
• Younger age group <20
also has increased risk
• Those living in more
deprived areas have a
2 fold increased risk of
maternal deaths
compared to least
deprived areas

Page 193

Preventing
Maternal
Deaths

Summary of some
key public health
indicators by broad
public health groups

Page 194

Maternal and
child health
indicators

Page 195

Embedding attention to ethnicity within action on health inequalities

• Mainstreaming ethnicity
• Influencing decision-makers and role of senior leadership
• Action on the wider social and economic determinants of health tackling racism and ethnic
discrimination
• Commissioning of culturally sensitive health promotion interventions
• Improving access, experiences and outcomes of health services
• Engagement with minority ethnic groups
• Making use of evidence

Page 196

• Data collection, analysis and reporting

Page 197

Health Inequalities in Lambeth
Author: Dr Mark Ashworth, Reader in Primary Care, King’s College London
Date: 15/2/22
Report to: Dr Dianne Aitken, Equalities Lead, SE London CCG

Health inequalities: this report focusses on health inequalities related to ethnicity, social deprivation
and gender
Data source: all data are derived from the anonymised dataset, Lambeth DataNet. Data were
extracted at end of 2021 and refer to all patients registered at GP practices in Lambeth, 30/12/21.
All practices (n = 41) provided data. Approximately 4.6% of patients had ‘Informed Dissent’ codes in
their Electronic Health Record (EHR) and could therefore not be analysed as part of this survey. The
total number of patients included in the analysis is 344,937.
Previous data analysis in Lambeth: this analysis updates an earlier analysis conducted by Alessandra
Bisquera, King’s College London and commissioned by the Guy’s and St Thomas’ (GSTT) Charity, now
known as ‘Impact on Urban Health’.
Long Term Conditions: this analysis is based on the prevalence (frequency, %) of 32 Long Term
Conditions (LTCs) included in a wider study of multimorbidity in Lambeth led by MA. 18 of these LTCs
are QOF conditions; 14 are non-QOF conditions. A description of the LTCs and rationale for selecting
these LTCs is described in an earlier publication:
https://bmcprimcare.biomedcentral.com/track/pdf/10.1186/s12875-021-01477-x.pdf
Data summary: to simplify data presentation, key findings will be presented as the ‘Top 12’ LTCs,
based on prevalence frequency (%) for each demographic group representing different potential
health inequality groupings.

1

Page 198

Figure 1:
Prevalence of ‘Top 12’ Long Term Conditions in all adults registered at GP practices in Lambeth;
data for whole adult population:

Figure 2:
‘Top 12’ LTCs in White ethnicity population (includes White British and White Other ethnic
groupings)

2

Page 199

Figure 3:
‘Top 12’ LTCs in Black ethnicity population (includes Black African and Black Caribbean ethnic
groupings)

Figure 4:
‘Top 12’ LTCs in Asian ethnicity population (includes South Asian and South-East Asian ethnic
groupings)

3

Page 200

Figure 5:
‘Top 12’ LTCs in adult males
‘Top 12’ LTCs in Asian ethnicity population (includes South Asian and South-East Asian ethnic
groupings)

Figure 6:
‘Top 12’ LTCs in adult females

4

Page 201

Figure 7:
‘Top 12’ LTCs in most deprived quintile in Lambeth (based on IMD-2021 scores)

Figure 8:
‘Top 12’ LTCs in least deprived quintile in Lambeth (based on IMD-2021 scores)

5

Page 202

Figure 9:
‘Top 12’ LTCs in Black ethnicity males

Figure 10:
‘Top 12’ LTCs in Black ethnicity females

6

Page 203

Figure 11:
‘Top 12’ LTCs in White ethnicity males

Figure 12:
‘Top 12’ LTCs in White ethnicity females

7

Page 204

CONCLUSIONS:
1. Top Frequency (%) LTCs consist mainly of a ‘big five’: Anxiety, Chronic Pain, Depression,
Asthma, Hypertension
2. Ethnicity: three LTCs have substantially higher frequency in Black ethnicity and Asian
ethnicity populations: Chronic pain, Hypertension and Diabetes
3. Gender: three LTCs have much higher frequency in women than men: Anxiety, Depression,
Chronic Pain
4. Deprivation: five LTCs have much higher frequency in the most deprived compared to least
deprived communities: Chronic Pain, Anxiety, Depression, Hypertension, Diabetes
5. High rates of anxiety/depression in all populations. Some evidence of ‘low prevalence’ in
Black ethnicity males and Asian ethnicity generally, likely to be related to underreporting/access issue
6. Black ethnicity women appear particularly disadvantaged compared to both Black ethnicity
men and White ethnicity women (see Table):
a. Highest rates of Chronic Pain, Anxiety, Asthma, Hypertension, Osteoarthritis,
Diabetes, Morbid Obesity, CKD, Heart Failure, Rheumatoid Arthritis, Dementia,
Sickle Cell Disease (although likely to be similar to rates in Black males), Lupus
b. Lupus known to be particularly associated with Black ethnicity and female gender
c. Sickle Cell disease known to be mostly, but not entirely, confined to Black ethnicity
population
d. Chronic pain: double the rates in the general adult population (34.4% vs 17.3%);
almost double the rate in Black ethnicity male population (18.3%); almost double
the rate in White ethnicity female population (19.8%)
e. Hypertension: more than double the rates in the general adult population (25.0% vs
11.0%); similar to high rate in Black ethnicity male population (20.2%); treble the
rate in White ethnicity female population (7.8%)
f. Osteoarthritis: more than double the rates in the general adult population (13.5% vs
5.6%); more than double the rate in Black ethnicity male population (5.8%); more
than double the rate in White ethnicity female population (6.1%)
g. Diabetes: more than double the rates in the general adult population (12.3% vs
5.6%); similar to high rate in Black ethnicity male population (11.5%); more than 4x
the rate in White ethnicity female population (3.0%)
h. Morbid obesity: treble the rates in the general adult population (10.9% vs 3.5%);
more than treble the rate in Black ethnicity male population (3.1%); treble the rate
in White ethnicity female population (3.6%)
i. CKD: more than double the rates in the general adult population (4.5% vs 2.1%);
somewhat higher than the rate in Black ethnicity male population (3.9%); more than
double the rate in White ethnicity female population (2.0%)
j. Heart Failure: almost double the rates in the general adult population (1.1% vs
0.7%); same rate in Black ethnicity male population (1.1%); more than double the
rate in White ethnicity female population (0.5%)
k. Rheumatoid Arthritis: more than double the rates in the general adult population
(1.1% vs 0.5%); more than treble the rate in Black ethnicity male population (0.3%);
approaching double the rate in White ethnicity female population (0.7%)
l. Dementia: double the rates in the general adult population (1.0% vs 0.5%);
somewhat higher than the rate in Black ethnicity male population (0.7%); double the
rate in White ethnicity female population (0.5%)
8

Page 205

LTC name
Prevalence White
Black
Asian
Male
Female Most dep Least dep Black Male Black Female White Male White Female
Anxiety Disorders
19.2
21.4
19.2
15.3
14.3
24.3
20.4
18.6
12.4
25.6
16.7
26.2
Chronic Pain
17.3
16.1
26.5
17.0
12.8
21.9
21.7
14.6
18.3
34.4
12.5
19.8
Depression
13.5
15.1
13.7
9.9
10.6
16.5
14.9
12.1
9.7
17.6
12.4
17.9
Asthma
11.6
12.4
12.3
11.0
11.2
12.1
12.0
11.4
10.8
13.8
12.3
12.6
Hypertension
11.0
8.4
22.7
13.0
10.5
11.4
13.4
9.8
20.2
25.0
8.9
7.8
Osteoarthritis
5.6
4.9
9.8
6.0
3.8
7.4
6.7
5.0
5.8
13.5
3.8
6.1
Diabetes
5.6
3.5
11.9
11.1
5.7
5.5
7.3
4.5
11.5
12.3
3.9
3.0
Morbid Obesity
3.5
2.9
7.1
2.0
2.1
5.0
5.0
2.5
3.1
10.9
2.2
3.6
Alcohol Dependence
2.6
3.5
2.0
1.0
3.5
1.7
2.9
2.2
2.7
1.3
4.7
2.2
Cancer
2.5
2.9
3.0
1.9
2.4
2.7
2.5
3.0
3.4
2.7
2.6
3.2
CKD
2.1
1.7
4.2
2.3
1.8
2.3
2.4
1.9
3.9
4.5
1.4
2.0
SMI
1.7
1.3
3.1
1.3
1.8
1.5
2.2
1.1
3.5
2.7
1.5
1.2
Substance Dependency
1.5
1.7
1.7
0.5
2.1
0.9
2.0
1.0
2.5
0.8
2.4
1.1
CHD
1.4
1.5
1.5
2.6
1.8
1.0
1.6
1.5
1.7
1.3
2.0
1.0
COPD
1.1
1.5
0.8
0.7
1.2
1.0
1.5
0.8
1.0
0.5
1.5
1.4
Epilepsy
1.1
1.2
1.2
0.7
1.1
1.0
1.3
1.0
1.3
1.2
1.2
1.1
Stroke
1.1
1.0
1.9
1.0
1.1
1.0
1.3
1.0
1.9
1.8
1.1
0.8
Atrial Fibrillation
1.0
1.2
0.8
0.7
1.1
0.8
1.0
1.1
0.8
0.9
1.5
1.0
Hepatitis B/C
1.0
0.8
1.8
1.3
1.3
0.8
1.4
0.7
2.0
1.7
1.2
0.5
HIV
1.0
1.0
1.4
0.3
1.6
0.4
1.2
0.6
1.4
1.4
2.0
0.1
IBD
0.8
1.0
0.7
0.8
0.8
0.8
0.8
1.0
0.6
0.8
1.0
1.0
Heart Failure
0.7
0.6
1.1
0.8
0.7
0.6
0.8
0.6
1.1
1.1
0.7
0.5
RA
0.5
0.5
0.7
0.7
0.3
0.8
0.6
0.5
0.3
1.1
0.3
0.7
Dementia
0.5
0.4
0.8
0.5
0.4
0.5
0.5
0.5
0.7
1.0
0.3
0.5
Liver disease
0.5
0.5
0.7
0.6
0.6
0.4
0.7
0.4
0.8
0.7
0.7
0.4
Learning Disability
0.5
0.4
0.9
0.4
0.6
0.4
0.8
0.3
1.1
0.7
0.5
0.3
Osteoporosis
0.4
0.6
0.2
0.5
0.1
0.7
0.3
0.5
0.1
0.4
0.2
1.0
TIA
0.4
0.5
0.6
0.4
0.4
0.5
0.5
0.5
0.5
0.7
0.5
0.5
PAD
0.4
0.4
0.4
0.3
0.5
0.2
0.4
0.3
0.6
0.3
0.5
0.3
Sickle Cell Disease
0.2
0.0
0.6
0.0
0.1
0.2
0.2
0.1
0.6
0.7
0.0
0.0
MS
0.1
0.2
0.2
0.1
0.1
0.2
0.2
0.2
0.1
0.2
0.1
0.2
Lupus
0.1
0.1
0.3
0.2
0.0
0.3
0.2
0.1
0.1
0.6
0.0
0.2
Parkinson's
0.1
0.1
0.1
0.2
0.1
0.1
0.1
0.1
0.1
0.1
0.1
0.1

9

This page is intentionally left blank

Lambeth Together
Equalities Group update
23rd February 2022
Page 207

Presented by Juliet Amoa Associate Director Community Health
and Engagement and Dr Di Aitken

Description
The Lambeth Together EDI working group is tasked with coordinating the EDI programme
of work. The group consists of partners from across Lambeth Together.

Page 208

This group was established to;
• Hold a (constructive) mirror to the 'system' in Lambeth.
• Develop and adopt a shared measurement approach/system
• Create a 'social movement' that puts health and equity at the heart of delivering and
service design.
• Act as the Place-level Equalities Group, engaging with other boroughs, SEL Integrated
Care System, London and national.
• Collaborate with other sectors such as education, employment etc
• Consider how to align our outcomes to the NHS 5 focused clinical areas, Maternity,
Severe mental illness, Chronic respiratory disease, Early cancer diagnosis.

Key areas to update
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

Page 209

•

Lambeth Together Development Manager for Equality Diversity and
Inclusion
Black Londoners Health and Wellbeing event, what next?.
The Lambeth Together Pledge
Reverse mentoring programme
Integrated Care System EDI place mapping
Tacking Race Inequality, Pan London
The CORE20PLUS5 plan
Metrics and Data

Lambeth Together Development Manager
for Equality Diversity and inclusion
Page 210

We had a successful candidate, and they will start in approximately 3 weeks.
They will;
• Co ordinate the work of the Lambeth Together EDI group
• Co create clear outcomes and measures
• Achieve this through a project management approach in collaboration with
the alliances.

Black Londoners Health
and Wellbeing, what next?
•

•
•
•

Page 211

•

A health and wellbeing event was held in October 2021 and co designed with the VCS,
the community, health professionals and religious leaders
Over 500 community members. The evidence showed that 200 people had BP and
diabetic checks, 20 people had flu jabs. etc.
The video link of the event; https://youtu.be/yKAfh8Y-aao
We will be planning a yearly event in October 2022, during Black History Month
We are developing a programme of work to support smaller organisations to hold
regular tailor-made community health and wellbeing sessions with the black
community

The Lambeth Together Pledge
Page 212

• The EDI groups supported the co design of Lambeth Together Pledge.
• The video is to show all partners commitment to the partnership
https://lambethtogether.net/about-us/
• We need consider how we ensure this pledge is a living testament, reviewed
and embedded.

Reverse Mentoring Programme

•

This programme will support our development of a more inclusive culture
We are exploring the most effective way to implement this
We need to find the most appropriate programme for the partnership
GSTT do have the capacity to support this type of programme in Lambeth
Together
We will be exploring Reverse Mentoring in the EDI place mapping (ICS) and in
the OD programme.

Page 213

•
•
•
•

Integrated Care System
EDI place mapping
• 21st January there was an ICS EDI place mapping workshop

• It was noted that Lambeth Together had progressed in the EDI space
• It was evident that some partners presented the councils progress rather than the
whole integrated system

Page 214

• The work of Lambeth Together EDI programme was presented
• There was shared learning
• There will be a follow workshop to plan a way forward 15th February

Tacking Race Inequality
Pan London
Page 215

• The aim is to inform and guide the Chief Executives London Committee (CELC)
Tackling Racial Inequality steering group.
• This is chaired by Kim Smith (Chief Executive, Hammersmith & Fulham) with
representation from Lewisham, Lambeth, Newham, Camden, Havering,
Westminster, Haringey and Brent.
• A robust work programme was developed with pan London, sub regional and solo
borough initiatives and actions which respond to community and organisational
needs.
• The 3 key subgroups comprise of volunteer officers from all boroughs.

Tacking Race Inequality,
Pan London
• Role as large employer's theme

Demonstrating leadership theme
Demonstrating leadership working group
Sponsors: Stuart Love & Kim Smith

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Developing organisational commitment
statements
Developing a Chief Executives London
Committee statement
Developing an approach to assurance and
accountability
Delivering the Tackling Racial Inequality
Standard
Thought leadership towards targets and
standards
Developing a ‘BAME’ acronym working
group to include all partners from the whole
system

Large employers working group
Sponsors: Kim Wright & Althea Loderick

Best practice working group
Sponsors: Andrew Travers & Andrew BlakeHerbert

Co-Chairs Amanda Harcus (Tower Hamlets) and
Tracey Connage (Harrow

Chair - Serena Simon (Westminster)

1. Pan-London work to better understand and
drive change around staff representation
2. Reviewing recruitment practices and
training offers

•

Data Hackathon Task & Finish

•

Sponsor: Kim Smith

•

1. Develop and deliver a data hackathon
aimed at addressing data sharing and data
collection

1. Creating a central resource pool and learning
lab
2. Reviewing service areas to understand existing
practices, disproportionate impact and drive
activities
3. Working with the London Recovery
Programme to use local government’s
influence to put tackling racial inequality at
the heart of activity.
Comms & Engagement working group
Sponsor: Jenny Rowlands
1. Delivery of a pan-London communications
plan
2. Production of Race Matters, bi-monthly
newsletter to borough staff

Page 216

Chair – Juliet Amoa

Developing best practice theme

CORE20PLUS5

Page 217

• CORE20PLUS5 plan is to support the reduction of health inequalities at
both national and system level.
• The approach defines a target population cohort – the ‘Core20PLUS’ –
and identifies ‘5’ focus clinical areas requiring accelerated
improvement.
• Locally our additional focus areas are chronic pain and diabetes
• We hope to join the national Core20PLUS Connectors programme, and
recruit Community Connectors who could act as signposts, advocates
for Lambeth residents affected by high blood pressure.

CORE20PLUS5

Page 218

Metrics and Data

Page 219

• Provide a robust framework of equalities measures associated with Lambeth
Together priorities
• Develop an enhanced shared measurement approach to provide assurance and
knowledge sharing. Use and learn from existing work, ie Black Thrive SMS
• Coding and classification will be important to ensure robust and consistent analysis
• We have a draft Assurance Framework, and a Programme Management approach
in place
• The Lambeth Together Development Manager will support and progress this work.

Questions and ideas?
Page 220

• What are your thoughts on the CORE20PLUS5?
• We have agreed that Reverse Mentoring can be supported by GSTT
they will expand their RM programme. Do we want this to be across
all our partners or within each organisation?
• How involved does the Lambeth Together EDI group get in the
Tackling Race Inequality Pan London Councils programme?
• Do we as a partnership want to get involved in the discussion about
the ‘BAME’ acronym within the Pan London Tackling Race Inequality
Programme?

Lambeth Overview and Scrutiny Committee

24 March 2022

Page 221

Blood Pressure and Diabetes in Lambeth

Hypertension
Blood pressure (BP) = measurement of force applied to artery walls as blood is
pumped around the body. Hypertension is higher blood pressure than is necessary
& causes damage and worsening health outcomes over time.
Page 222

Source: 2018 ESC/ESH Guidelines for the management of arterial hypertension
European Heart Journal (2018) 39, 3021–3104 doi:10.1093/eurheartj/ehy339

Hypertension prevalence in Lambeth
40600

Hypertension Register

40400
40200
40000
39800
39600

Page 223

39400
39200

39000

Under-diagnosed: Around 28,000 Lambeth
residents have BP>140/90mmHg but no
diagnosis of hypertension (Wu, Alice S.;
Dodhia, H; Whitney, D; Ashworth M, 2019)

National CVD Ambition:
Increase detection of hypertension to
achieve 80% of expected prevalence by 2029

Local 2019 study
• Factors associated with not having a record of a
blood pressure in primary care
• Age – below age 50

• 18-30 – AOR 8.45 (7.08–10.07)
• 31-40 – AOR 5.40 (4.53–6.45)
• 41-50 – AOR 2.36 (1.97–2.82)

Page 224

• Sex

• Men – AOR 2.87 (2.80–2.95)

• Ethnic group

• White other AOR 1.52 (1.47– 1.57)

• Deprivation

• Most deprived AOR - 1.27 (1.23–1.32)

• Other risk factors not recorded
• Smoking status
• Alcohol status
• BMI status

Wu, Alice S.; Dodhia, H; Whitney, D; Ashworth M (2019) Is
the rule of halves still relevant today? A cross-sectional
analysis of hypertension detection, treatment and control
in an urban community Journal of Hypertension:
December 2019

Hypertension control
Bringing blood pressure down to <140 /90mmHg if 79years or less
and <150/90 mmHg if 80years or more

In Lambeth, if we reduce the average systolic BP in
people with hypertension by 10 mmHg, in one year,
we could prevent approximately

• Reduced face to face consultations due to
COVID-19 during 20/21 is most likely to have
impacted on monitoring of BP and BP target
achievement

Page 225

• 65 people from having a stroke
• 48 people from developing heart failure
• 61 people from developing ischaemic heart
disease
• 196 deaths

Lambeth is below the QOF threshold for maximum
payment for this indicator

Hypertension control and impact of pandemic
At end of 20/21
Of 38,315 people in Lambeth with
hypertension; 19,406 (50.6%) were
not achieving target BP (QOF)

When treating to target, time matters
If systolic BP > 150 mm Hg and there is a delay of > 6 weeks before
medication intensification
OR
a delay of > 12 weeks before BP follow-up after antihypertensive
medication intensification

Increases the risk of an acute cardiovascular event or death.

At Feb 2022
Of 40,279 people in Lambeth with
hypertension; 18840 (46.8%) were
not achieving target BP ( UCLP
searches)

Page 226

Scope to achieve max
QOF threshold

At end Oct 2021
Of 40,204 people in Lambeth with
hypertension; 19,501 (48.5%) were
not achieving target BP (UCLP
searches)

Hypertension control by practice
Lambeth Treatment to Blood Pressure Control Targets QOF March 21-Feb 22
100.0
90.0
80.0

QOF 20/21: 19047/38909 (48.9%)
patients are unmonitored or not
controlled to target

70.0
60.0
50.0

30.0

UCLP searches Feb 2022:
18,840/40.279 (46.8%)
patients are unmonitored or
not controlled to target

20.0
10.0

0.0

Actual target achievement 80s and under

Actual target achievement in over 80s

Page 227

40.0

Opportunities to monitor inequalities in blood
pressure control
Proportions of those on hypertension register whose blood
pressure is controlled or uncontrolled
100%

92.2%

90%
80%

91.3%

91.9%

91.7%

92.3%

91.3%

91.5%

91.8%

92.6%

91.6%

92.1%

91.9%

92.9%

91.7%

92.2%

70%
60%
50%
30%
20%
10%

8.4% 7.6% 8.1% 8.0% 8.5% 7.5% 8.1% 8.3% 8.3% 7.3% 8.3% 7.8% 8.1% 7.0% 7.6%

Quarter 1 2019-20

Quarter 4 2018-19

Quarter 3 2018-19

Quarter 2 2018-19

Quarter 1 2018-19

Quarter 4 2017-18

Quarter 3 2017-18

Quarter 2 2017-18

Quarter 1 2017-18

Quarter 4 2016-17

Quarter 3 2016-17

Quarter 2 2016-17

Quarter 1 2016-17

Quarter 4 2015-16

Quarter 3 2015-16

0%

Pre-pandemic review of the standard of uncontrolled BP level
(160mmHg/ 100mmHg). Ethnic and gender groups were followed and
matched with hypertension registered population to ensure any
widening of gaps were monitored and managed.

EZ analytics data can present Lambeth EMIS data
from GP practices to focus on BP control and
ethnicity, mental health and people with learning
disability

Page 228

40%

National tool- CVDPrevent Data and Improvement
Tool provides inequalities markers for
• Sex
• Age group
• Ethnicity
• Deprivation quintile
https://www.cvdprevent.nhs.uk/ update due for 20212022 data

Education and Prevention
• Health Checks ceased during pandemicshould we restart at pace?
• Lifestyle advice- using local and national
resources
• Improved use of remote BP monitoring

• Opportunity with the Health and
Wellbeing bus be used by practices to
target events to capture blood pressure
results and share why this is important
with local people

Page 229

• BP@Home scheme has been taken up by
early adopter sites 4 of 9 PCNs in Lambeth.
• 30-40% of England population with high BP
have own monitors - have all Healthcare
professionals made use of this?

Page 230

Services for the Lambeth population
• Xyla diagnostics is a new service commissioned prepandemic and mobilised during 2020. 6 sites across
Lambeth are offering diagnosis of blood pressure and ECGs
close to peoples homes.
• GP practices offer hypertension diagnosis and management
as part of their core service

• A Community Hypertension service is commissioned from
GSTT for difficult to control hypertension or that which is
complex due to patient factors or multimorbidities.

• Identify people over the age of 40 who have
previously not been diagnosed with
hypertension (high blood pressure), and to
refer those with suspected hypertension to
primary care following diagnosis via
ambulatory monitoring (ABPM).

Page 231

• There is a question regarding other community services and
the extent to which they can or do contribute to opportunistic
BP checks.

A new Community Pharmacy Hypertension
Service has been commissioned by NHS E/I,
launched in October 2020 and under
mobilisation locally by our community
pharmacies. This will :

• Promote healthy behaviours to service
users and support adherence to lifestyle
and medication regimes

• Positive feedback from the public has been received by
healthwatch on community pharmacy services and support
• Refer people identified as likely to have high
during the pandemic. The local vaccination programme and
blood pressure to general practice, for
community pharmacy vaccine champions scheme have
ongoing care to manage their blood
demonstrated the reach of PCN and community pharmacy
pressure.
vaccination services into communities and positive impact on
reducing health inequalities .
12

Quality Improvement
• BHF Project 2018/20 : Hypertension
detection and management

Successes and Learning
• Infrastructure- both staff skills and experience and
level of remuneration at optometrist/pharmacies did
not allow anticipated levels of opportunistic BP
checks.

Page 232

• Trial of three models to find people with high BPs
GP Federation- through community events
Optometrists- through customers
Community Pharmacies- through customers

• Successes include pathway development for
seamless care and increased opportunity for
discussion with people about blood pressure in
Lambeth settings such as Lambeth Country Show.
• Opportunity to refresh/launch – with community
pharmacy BP checks scheme.

BHF project
community
pharmacy
site

Covid – 19 Impact
Page 233

Nationally, as a result of the disruption of hypertension care caused
by COVID-19 we expect to see an additional 12,000 heart attacks,
strokes and deaths over the next 3 years

Medicines adherence
The ability for patients to take their
medicines as prescribed, ‘medicines
adherence’ is cited as one of the
principal reasons why patients don’t
achieve the expected outcomes from
their treatment.

Barriers to optimal use of
medicine

Examples
Inappropriate prescribing
Mistakes in dispensing or administration

Practical

Forgetfulness
Inability to open containers

Between 30-50% of medicines
prescribed for long-term conditions are
not taken as intended.

Information

Instructions not understood
Poor understanding of condition/treatment

This results in waste as well as poor
outcomes for the patient

Lifestyle choices

Unpleasant side effects
Inconvenience
No perceived benefit

Ways to tackle this
✓ More shared decision making
✓ Structured Medication reviews
✓ Community pharmacy support ‘new
medicines service’
✓ Practice patient education groups

Beliefs about
medicine

Unnatural
Addictive
Poisonous
Diminishing efficacy

Page 234

Professional

Recovery Plans

Page 235

• Amplify community pharmacy impact and swift mobilisation of the new Hypertension service.
Joint working with GP practices as part of PCNs to serve their population
• Engage with communities based on Health Inequalies data to give insight into developing
culturally aware approaches and services.
• Include Xyla diagnostics and community/acute providers in our work to ensure connections
and synergies.
• Explore opportunities for all services to include BP measurement opportunistically as part of
care.
• Include blood pressure checks and offers to discuss medicines use on hypertension at
community engagement events, and through the Health and Wellbeing bus, working with
voluntary groups.
• PCNs and GP practices have an ongoing focus on Long Term Conditions, prioritising those
groups most affected by the pandemic
• Amplify Physical Health Checks in people with Learning Disabilities or severe mental illness.
• Refresh approach to health check commissioning and delivery
• Practice and PCN Pharmacists focussing on medicines adherence – shared decision making
approach to enable adherence and personalised care.

Diabetes
• Diabetes is a lifelong condition that causes a
person's blood sugar level to become too high.

More than 4.9 million
people living with
diabetes in the UK

90% of people with
diabetes have Type 2
Diabetes (T2D)

• High blood sugar levels can damage the blood
vessels and lead to chronic complications such as
eye, foot and/or kidney problems; nerve damage;
heart attack or stroke. Having one chronic
complication increases the risk of developing other
complications of diabetes. Complications of diabetes
are preventable.

£10 billion spent on
diabetes annually
(approx. 10% of entire
NHS budget)

Almost 80% of this is
spend on treating
diabetes complications

Diabetes UK. (2019). Facts & Figures

Page 236

• There are 2 main types of diabetes:
▪ type 1 diabetes – where the body's immune
system attacks and destroys the cells that
produce insulin
▪ type 2 diabetes – where the body does not
produce enough insulin, or the body's cells do
not react to insulin

The Healthcare Landscape
• 41 general practices
• 2 large foundation trusts

• 1 community based diabetes intermediate care team
(DICT) operating across 4 different sites
• The majority of patients with diabetes are cared for by
their GPs
• Patients with diabetes with more complex needs can be
referred to the Lambeth DICT (Type 2) or a hospital (Type
1)

Page 237

• King’s College Hospital
• Guy’s and St Thomas’ Hospital
• St George’s Hospital also provides some care, although not
located within the borough

Diabetes in Lambeth
5 % of the population on the diabetes register 1

19,245 people with diabetes 2

63% people with T2D have a record of all 8 care processes during 2020-21 2

34% of people with T2D met all 3 treatment targets during 2020-21

2

5% of the population are on the non-diabetic hyperglycaemia register, at risk of
developing T2D 2

1. EMIS Enterprise (Lambeth) [Accessed 28/02/2022].
2. EZ Analytics Diabetes app (Lambeth) [Accessed 28/02/2022]
3. Guy’s and St Thomas’ Charity (2018). From One to Many. Exploring peoples’s progression to multiple long-term conditions in and urban environment.

Page 238

Diabetes is one of the most common long term conditions (LTCs) in Lambeth and
the starting point or “gateway” for the majority of journeys to multiples LTCs 3

Diabetes in Lambeth
Number of people with diabetes in Lambeth (aged 17 or over, QOF DM017)
25000

19973

20,298

20,218

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

20652

19006

20000
18274
17259

Page 239

16239
15302
15000

10000

5000

0
2013/14

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

2021/22

Public Health England (2018). Public Health Profiles: Diabetes. [online] Fingertips.phe.org.uk.
EMIS Enterprise (Lambeth) [Accessed 28 Feb 2022]

Prevention and Education
• NHS Diabetes Prevention Programme Healthier You
➢ evidence based behavioural change programme providing personalised
support to reduce the risk of T2D through education on healthy eating and
lifestyle, help to lose weight and physical exercise programmes
Page 240

Xyla Health and Wellbeing Sept 2021

Prevention and Education
• Healthy Eating and Active Lifestyles for Diabetes (HEAL-D)
➢ a bespoke self-management group education course for
people with type 2 diabetes from African and Caribbean communities. Pilot expanded across South
London from Dec 2021.

• NHS Health checks for adults in England aged 40 to 74 to spot early signs of type 2 diabetes
and other conditions due to the higher risk of developing these as we get older.

Page 241

• DAFNE and DESMOND
➢ structured education for all people with Type 1 and 2 diabetes respectively covering.
➢ DESMOND courses are provided in English, Portuguese and Spanish and at weekends in
Lambeth but people can attend courses in any South London borough by discussing their needs
with the Diabetes Book and Learn Service. They include modules for those with newly diagnosed
T2D as well as those with established T2D
Over 90% of attendees during the pandemic found the virtual DESMOND courses easy to
understand, were able to ask questions and engage with others with T2D; and set a goal to make
a lifestyle change.

Prevention and Education
A DESMOND session in action
$DESMOND

*INFORM :Insulin for
Ongoing Practice
Management

Page 242

:
Diabetes Education
Self Management for
Ongoing and Newly
Diagnosed

Lambeth Diabetes Intermediate Care Team
Community Clinics
•Consultant-led community clinics across 4 different sites
•Virtual clinics with GP practices
•Joint DICT and CMHT (Community Mental Health Team) virtual clinic for patients with Severe Mental Illness (SMI) and diabetes
•Telephone support and monitoring for complex patients
Support for Patients and Community Healthcare Practitioners (HCPs)

Formal Education for HCPs
•INFORM (Insulin for Ongoing Practice Management) courses
•Community learning events
•Quality improvement programme for GP practices (in conjunction with AT Learning)
Structured Patient Education
•DESMOND structured education sessions for people with diabetes (English, Portuguese and spanish-speaking)
•Food and Diabetes Groups (local alternative to DESMOND)
•STEPs sessions for people at risk of diabetes (local alternative to NHS Diabetes Prevention Programme)
•Insulin and GLP-1 (Glucagon-like peptide 1) Start Groups

Page 243

•Duty Diabetes Specialist Nurse (DSN) to review referrals and give telephone or email advice daily
•Care of housebound patients and support for community nursing team
•Support for nursing homes
•Development of diabetes treatment pathways
•Enhanced support for 10 practices to meet NICE treatment targets and 8 Care Processes
•Named DSN for each GP practice who provides advice to HCPs and support to patients

Care Processes

1. EZ Analytics diabetes app February 2022

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

Blood glucose level (HbA1c)
Blood pressure
Cholesterol
Kidney function (Urinary albumin)
Kidney function (Serum creatinine)
Weight check
Smoking status
Foot examination
eye examination
1 - 8 are completed at least annually
9 is carried out annually via a national screening programme.

NDA year

% 8 Care Process completed

2016-17

42.1

2017-18

61.3

2018-19

76.6

2019-20

82.3

2020-21

64.4

Page 244

• The 9 recommended care
processes are an evidence-based
measure of whether patients with
diabetes are being supported to
successfully manage their
condition, improve health
outcomes and reduce the
occurrence of the complications of
diabetes.
• Preliminary National Diabetes
Audit 2020-21 data shows 64.4%
of people in Lambeth with T2D
had 8 Care Processes recorded.
Highest borough achievement in
London and 2nd in England 1.

3 Treatment Targets (3TT)
• NICE recommends treatment targets for HbA1c (glucose control), blood pressure
and Cardiovascular Disease (CVD) risk reduction

• Preliminary National Diabetes Audit 2020-21 data shows 34.% of people
reached the 3TT 1
NDA year

% 3TT reached

2016-17

38.1

2017-18

37.2

2018-19

44.1

2019-20

42.4

2020-21

34.0
1. EZ Analytics diabetes app February 2022

Page 245

1. Target HbA1c reduces the risk of all diabetic
complications (eyes, kidney, nerves) and CVD
risk.
2. Target blood pressure reduces CVD risk and
reduces the progression of diabetic eye and
kidney disease
3. Statins reduce serum cholesterol and CVD
risk.

Quality Improvement & Transformation
Over the years we have worked with providers to transform the treatment and care of people with
diabetes through a number of projects with the results of the National Diabetes Audits (previous
slides) showing how they have had a positive impact:

Lambeth Diabetes Improvement Project

• Providing support in the form webinars, newsletters, advice and guidance on areas such as
clinical management, call and recall models, health inequalities, as well as providing targeted
support to practices to reduce variation in care.
• Introduction of the use of a local population health management tool

EZ Analytics Population Health Management Tool – diabetes app
• A bespoke diabetes app was developed with AT Tech to share real time data based on EMIS Web
(GP patient record system).
• The diabetes app provides data at Primary Care Network and practice level and to support them
in identification, management and achievement of Care Processes, 3 Treatment Target, at high
risk of diabetes, risk stratification, medicines optimisation and safety.

Page 246

• Lambeth DICT and AT Learning have run a successful Quality Improvement (QI) programme in
general practice, to share and replicate their experience of QI in diabetes management

Snapshot of the EZ Analytics
diabetes app – health
inequalities tab
Top left hand infographic
shows that during NDA
20-21 audit period (Jan
20 to Mar 21) – 68.5% of
patients with Type 2
diabetes and a learning
disability had all 8 care
processes measured.

Page 247

Practices can drill down
further through the link
with EMIS Web to
a) find out which 8 Care
Process has not been
recorded during the
audit period
b) pull the list of patients
e.g. remaining 31.5%
and focus on inviting
them for review of the
missing Care Process

Quality Improvement & Transformation –
Medicines
Collaborative working across the system through the SEL Diabetes Medicines Working
Group to develop medicines optimisation pathways and support introduction and timely
access to new diabetes medicines and devices.

Guidelines, resources and collaborative working across the system have enabled
52% of those with Type 1 diabetes aged 17 or over to access a FreeStyle Libre device
in Lambeth, in line with clinical eligibility criteria.
EMIS Enterprise (Lambeth) [Accessed 28 Feb 2022]

Page 248

The NHS Long Term Plan made a commitment to ensure that “in line with clinical
guidelines, patients with Type 1 diabetes benefit from flash glucose monitors from April
2019”
FreeStyle Libre is a flash glucose monitoring system that measures sugar (glucose)
levels in the fluid under the skin (rather than in the blood), all the time throughout the
day, using a sensor and reader/smartphone.

Impact of Covid-19

Page 249

The management and care of diabetes has been affected in a similar way to other
long term health conditions
Control of diabetes has worsened during the Pandemic as seen from the National
Diabetes Audit data 2020-21 due to a number of factors:
• Apprehension and concern regarding accessing face to face care which has
increased “did not attend” appointment rates
• Differences in ability to use technology and having access to technology to be
able to continue care through remote consultations
• Reduced availability of face to face care and phlebotomy/ blood testing due to
capacity/redeployment/illness which has led to increased waiting times and also
impacted care process checks, target reviews and eyes screening
• Difficulty for providers in adapting content of self-management courses to allow
virtual delivery and retain same impact/outcomes, as well as difficulty for patient
accessing Self Management courses virtually due to technology requirements

Recovery Plans

Page 250

• GP practices focussing on proactive care for those most affected/have had care disrupted/have not accessed care during
the pandemic
• Working with provider of NHS Diabetes Prevention Programme to improve referral and uptake through education and
training for referrers and promotion via the Health and Wellbeing Bus and community events
• Continue working with Lambeth DICT and AT Learning to run a Quality Improvement (QI) programme focus on a return to
pre-pandemic Care Process and 3 Treatment Target measurements
• Continue to engage with local communities on the management and care of patients with diabetes via the Lambeth
Diabetes UK Forum
• Incorporating the outcomes of the Neighbourhood and Wellbeing Delivery Alliance HBD PCN Pilot on hypertension,
diabetes and health inequalities
• Collaboration with South London and Maudsley (SLAM) NHS Trust to improve management of patients with Serious
Mental Illness and diabetes, through joint working, virtual clinics, and development of treatment pathways
• Collaboration with care homes in Lambeth to improve care of residents with diabetes, and develop care pathways
• Further develop the EZ Analytics diabetes app to help increase uptake of structured education following a new diagnosis
and as a refresher course for those with established diabetes.
• Collaboration with Improving Access to Psychological Therapies service (IAPTs) to include psychology sessions in the
DESMOND offering
• Resume Virtual Clinics between GP practices and Community Providers to support complex case management and
education
• Resume Health checks as outlined in the Blood Pressure section, to help improve referral and uptake of NHS Diabetes
Prevention Programme

Page 251

RCGP : Person Centred Care.
https://www.rcgp.org.uk/personcentredcare

Page 252

Thank you
Page 253

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 255
Appendix 5 - Mental Health Promotion and Wellbeing Update
Inequalities
Mental ill health is largely influenced by the same factors that affect physical health. These include social
determinants such as:
 adverse childhood events such as being a victim of abuse

poor housing

poverty

traumatic events

poor working conditions

unemployment

social isolation

Impact of the pandemic
The pandemic has increased many of the risk factors for mental ill health in Lambeth.
The number of out of work benefits claimants, for example, rose from 8,890 in February 2020 to 22,510
in March 2021; this has since declined to 14,740 in January 2022.
Many communities have been affected by bereavement.
Many people, particularly the elderly and children and young people, have seen their social networks
being disrupted by the lockdown, thus intensifying social isolation.
In Lambeth, just as in the rest of the country, the levels of emotional wellbeing decreased and the levels
of anxiety increased during the pandemic. However, this trend seems to have reversed in the last year, as
shown in the most recent Annual Personal Wellbeing Estimated (ONS 2021).
These measures are calculated from four wellbeing questions in the Annual Population Survey:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Overall, how satisfied are you with your life nowadays?
Overall, to what extent do you feel that the things you do in your life are worthwhile?
Overall, how happy did you feel yesterday?
Overall, how anxious did you feel yesterday?

A recent Lambeth Resident Survey also shows that the levels of anxiety in the borough have decreased.

Work to date
Better Mental Health Fund
Lambeth has received grant funding from OHID to run projects aimed at improving the wellbeing of groups
whose mental health and wellbeing has been particularly affected by the pandemic. As part of this grant
we are working in partnership with voluntary sector organisations to deliver nine projects.
The Carers’ Hub is running two sister projects aimed at supporting and connecting young and adult carers.
The young carers project builds on the existing support the Hub offers to this group during school holidays

Page 256
by offering term-time activities and support. As part of the project the Carers’ Hub have been working
closely with Lambeth schools helping them identify students with caring responsibilities.
The adult carers project offers a combination of prevention activities such as mindfulness and Tai Chi, and
two strands of workshops - one for carers to improve their own wellbeing and one for staff to build
confidence and expertise around supporting carers mental health and wellbeing and manage complex
cases.
The Black Men’s Consortium, facilitated by Tony Cealy and Claire Douglas are running weekly drama
classes on Mondays between 6.00pm - 9.00pm at Mosaic Clubhouse. The classes are open to Black Men
who want to explore and express issues of mental health, suicide, stigma, and access to services through
performing arts.
The Black Men’s Consortium have held the performance of the project on the 7th of December 2021 at
Brixton Library, with an accompany exhibition of art pieces also produced by the group. The recording of
the performance can be accessed here: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=al1TLxq5WWc
The group will hold a second event on the 30th and 31st if March 2022.
The Feeling our Way project is working with 39 care leavers and young asylum seekers who are digitally
isolated to connect them with their peers. Participants are offered ipads and data packs to connect digitally,
as well as in person wellbeing sessions and digital wellbeing packs aimed at improving their mental health
literacy.
The Tulse Hill estate project brought together a number of local organisations to engage 70 young people
in the Tulse Hill estate in activities such as football, boxing, fashion and sale training during the summer
holidays and October half term in 2021. This partnership approach has been very successful with
organisations who are normally at odds with each other coming together to serve one purpose to support
and uplift the most vulnerable and marginalised young people on the Tulse Hill estate.
The loneliness pilot project is connecting socially isolated elderly individuals in the Thriving Hills Brook
and Dale area with local voluntary sector organisations offering activities ranging from singing to arts and
crafts to wellbeing days at a local café. The sessions have been very well attended so far.
We have been working with Cruse Bereavement Charity to deliver bereavement awareness training to
Lambeth Council staff who are in contact with other colleagues or members of the public who have been
affected by a recent loss.
Suicide prevention strategy
The Lambeth Suicide Prevention Partnership Group, facilitate by Public Health, have developed and
launched the new Suicide Prevention Strategy for Lambeth outlining our vision for the next three year as
well as focus areas and actions for the next twelve months.
The action plan for the first year of the Strategy focuses on

Raise awareness of crisis and bereavement support

Provide additional support for residents bereaved by suicide

Deliver the Pride in Practice programme to voluntary sector organisations

Regular suicide prevention training for Lambeth staff and key community groups

Developing projects supporting men’s wellbeing in the borough

Improve timely reporting of suicide, attempted suicide and self -harm highlighting
prevalence among vulnerable groups.

Promote talking about mental health and destigmatize asking for help

Work collaboratively to improve data collection and care on self -harm.

Page 257
Pride in practice and Trans Awareness Training
Since 2019 Lambeth has been running the Pride in Practice programme in partnership with the LGBT
Foundation. Pride in Practice is a training, support and quality assurance programme that works with
primary care, particularly GP practices, and pharmacies to ensure that all lesbian, gay, bisexual and trans
people have access to inclusive healthcare that understands and meets the needs of our communities.
Since starting Pride in Practice in Lambeth we have:

Engaged with 32 practices

Delivered LGBT inclusivity training to 23 GP practices

Delivered training to 294 health care professionals

Awarded 11 primary care services

A further 11 practices are currently going through the final assessment process to be awarded.
Since 2019 in partnership with LGBT Hero Lambeth has developed and rolled out a trans awareness
training programme for frontline staff in the borough. This programme was initially piloted with council staff
and has since been extended and is available to staff from all statutory and community organisations, local
partners and businesses that work with the Lambeth public.

This page is intentionally left blank

Lambeth Public Health Team
January 2022
publichealth@lambeth.gov.uk

Page 259

Promoting Mental Wellbeing
- Tackling Health Inequalities in Lambeth

INEQUALTIES IN
MENTAL HEALTH
Page 260

Several factors have been linked to
mental health, including race and
ethnicity, gender, age, income level,
education level, sexual orientation,
interpersonal, family, and community
dynamics, housing quality, social
support, employment opportunities,
and work and school conditions.

Centre for Mental Health. Mental Health Inequalities Factsheet. 2020

COVID-19, MENTAL HEALTH AND INEQUALITIES

Page 261

Overall personal well-being in the UK during the 1st and 2nd wave of the COVID-19 pandemic is among the lowest levels
since 2011.By the end June 2021, ratings for feeling that things done in life are worthwhile, happiness and anxiety
recovered to levels seen before the COVID-19 pandemic.
But those in the lowest income bracket continued to be more likely to report negative impacts to personal well-being in
comparison with higher brackets; such as the COVID-19 pandemic making their mental health worse (18%) and feeling
stressed or anxious (32%).
ONS. Personal Wellbeing in the UK. December 2021

ANXIETY LEVELS IN LAMBETH DURING COVID-19
The increasing trend in the percentage feeling anxious seem to halt, although this is a result of more residents giving a neutral
score, rather than an increase in those who report a very low level of anxiety.
60%

40%

40%

43%
38%

37%

36%

36%

32%

31%
34% 28%

32%

32%

27%

26%
20%

27%
26%

16%

0%
2020 annual survey
(Jan/Feb 20)

COVID Pulse Survey
(May/June 2020)

Positive (0-1)

2020 Q1
(Nov 20)

Neutral (2-5)

2021 Q2
(Feb/Mar 21)

2021 annual survey
(May/Jun 21)

Negative (6-10)

On a scale of zero to ten, where zero is not at all anxious and ten is completely anxious, overall, how anxious did you feel yesterday?

2021 Q3
(Sept/Oct 21)

Page 262

43%

INEQUALITIES, COVID-19 AND MENTAL HEALTH IN LAMBETH
COVID-19 starkly exposed how existing inequalities and interconnections between them
affect mental health in different communities.

Public Health England, 2021.

Page 263

Risk factors heightened by the pandemic
• Loneliness and isolation
• Unemployment
• Poverty
• Financial insecurity and debt
• Working conditions (esp frontline health & care)
• Racial discrimination
• Education loss & impaired childhood development
• Complicated grief
• Housing insecurity/homelessness
• Substance misuse
• Domestic violence

Groups most at risk of poor mental health
• CYP with particular characteristics
• Young adults (18-34 years)
•Children and men from certain ethnic backgrounds
• Women (especially lone mothers)
• Women experiencing abuse/domestic violence
• Adults living alone
• Adults with pre-existing mental health conditions
• Adults with caring responsibilities
• Adults with low income
• Adults experiencing loss of income since onset of
pandemic
• Adults working in small businesses or self-employed
• Frontline health and social care professionals
• Adults with long term physical health conditions
• Older adults (shielded /or with multi-morbidities

PROMOTING MENTAL WELLBEING – TACKLING HEALTH INEQUALITIES
WHAT WORKS?
Whole system prevention approach - input from all sectors including voluntary, statutory,
employers and faith communities, as well as local neighbourhood action is needed.

Life course and whole household approach - minimise risk factors and enhance protective
factors at important life stages, from perinatal period through early childhood to
adolescence, working age, pre-conception and family-building years, and into older age.

Page 264

People and community centred - co-production - communities can help to identify needs
and issues, local assets and solutions that will work for them.
Good communication, collaboration and partnership - collaboration and trust is required
between partners across the whole system.
Tackling inequalities - the social determinants of mental health interact with socioeconomic status, gender, ethnicity, age and other characteristics in ways that put some
people at far higher risk than others. COVID-19 has exacerbated these inequalities.

PROMOTING MENTAL WELLBEING – TACKLING INEQUALITIES IN
LAMBETH – WHAT ARE WE DOING? (1)
In Lambeth a whole system approach has been taken to promote mental wellbeing in
Lambeth. This includes:

• Using the Better Mental Health Fund to support priority groups: (1) carers, (2) care leavers & young asylum
seekers, (3) lonely older adults, (4) recently unemployed young Black adults, (5) working age Black men, and (6)
young people in deprived neighbourhoods. In addition, we are providing mental health promotion outreach from
the Health and Wellbeing Bus
• Provision of training on bereavement awareness, mental health awareness, mental health first aid and suicide
prevention to community organisations and staff across the borough
• Supporting school mental health leads and their mental health support teams

Page 265

• Working with community and faith groups, vcs and other partners to support individuals and communities
particularly those affected by the pandemic, through a range of their activities which promote positive mental
wellbeing, resilience and social capital in the community

PROMOTING MENTAL WELLBEING – TACKLING INEQUALITIES IN
LAMBETH – WHAT ARE WE DOING? (2)
• Working in partnership with Citizen UK and the DWP to provide financial and debt advice from a variety of

settings including GP practices and the food hubs as well as through help lines
• Contributing to initiatives to improve LGBTQ+ health and mental wellbeing

• Increasing the value of the Lambeth Wellbeing grant funding to support community wellbeing initiatives
• Promoting positive wellbeing through different communication channels and events
• Developing with stakeholders a refreshed Lambeth Suicide Prevention Strategy (2022 - 2025)
• Promoting the Good Thinking mental wellbeing portal
• Promoting and organising events for Great Mental Health Day
• Working in partnership with SLaM and Citizen UK to deliver the South London Listens programme

Page 266

• Incorporating opportunities to promote wellbeing in the delivery of health and wellbeing hubs

Wellbeing from the focus of unpaid
caring
About me
Importance of wellbeing from a carer’s perspective
Poem of wellbeing
My Book
Carer wellbeing Poem

Page 267

•
•
•
•
•

National
carer
groups
• Chair Triangle of Care Steering group
• Royal college of Nursing EbyE group
• NHS England HSJ judge 2018, 2020, 2021
• NHS England Citizens involvement
Page 268

• Chair joint Lambeth & Southwark carers forum

A bit about me

Page 269

• Former carer of 18 years, although I still support my brothers
• Am also an Author and poet.
• Involved in many mental health trusts due to my activities on carer
forums / support groups. I run 6 carer forums for half of London.
• Mainly Involved at SLaM and often speak well of involvement
• My main area of work is computer support, which has served me
well.

Importance of wellbeing from a carer’s
perspective
• Unpaid caring is not an easy thing to undertake (will show the vast
world of a carer in a bit)
Carer’s stress and burnout
Worry and anxiety
Can suffer lack of sleep
Trouble accessing resources can cause added health issues.

Page 270

•
•
•
•

The vast world of the MH Carer

Page 271

What I found useful as a carer
Carer support groups – Lambeth carer’s hub
Carer Peer support
Access to the GP who understood mental health issues / carer’s register
Kept a wellbeing plan
Exercised and ate well
Followed the 5 wellbeing steps
•
•
•
•
•

1. Connect with other people ·
2. Be physically active ·
3. Learn new skills ·
4. Give to others ·
5. Pay attention to the present .

Page 272

•
•
•
•
•
•

My book in more perspective
Telling your carer story
My story
Caring through Coronavirus
The tragedy of Young carers
Carer traits and characteristics
What I found vital for carer support
Networking with Fellow Carers
Including unpaid carers in NHS Co-Production
The stigma of an unpaid Mental Health Carer
What I learned as a carer

Page 273

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Carer wellbeing poem
No one ever told you that you will be doing this
Yet here you are trying to cope

Trying to care

No one ever told you how much you both will suffer
Yet you are trying your best

No one ever told you that things could go wrong
And yet each day you struggle

hoping the illness to disappear

No one ever told you about the sacrifices
Yet you will keep sacrificing

Year after year

No one ever told you about the future
Yet you are putting it all on the line

facing it with fear

Page 274

Being there

Margherita Sweetlove – Public Health Specialist
Bimpe Oki – Consultant in Public Health
Lambeth Public Health Team
publichealth@lambeth.gov.uk

Page 275

Lambeth Suicide Prevention Strategy
(2022-2025)
and Year 1 Action Plan

UNDERSTANDING SUICIDE IN LAMBETH

There has been a general
decrease in suicide rates in
Lambeth, London and England
in the period 2001-2020.

Page 276

Over the 3-year period 2018-2020,
on average 17 Lambeth residents
died each year from suicide.
35% of these were female.

Most suicides in Lambeth occur in
people aged between 20-50 years.
In males, the most frequent age band is
30-39 year olds whereas in females it is
40-49 year olds.

LAMBETH SUICIDE PREVENTION STRATEGY AIMS

• The strategy for Lambeth aims to contribute to the London
pledge by ensuring that the recent downward trend in rates of
suicide continues, through effective partnership working across
the borough.

Page 277

• The London Health Inequalities Strategy 2018 includes a
commitment from the Mayor of London to make London a Zero
Suicide City by 2028. The Strategy pledges that action will be
taken across London to prevent suicide, and all Londoners
know where they can get help when they need it.

LAMBETH SUICIDE PREVENTION STRATEGY PRIORITIES
High-risk Groups

Areas for Action
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

People who are vulnerable due to
economic circumstances,
Children and young people,
People who are socially isolated,
Men
LGBTQ+ people,
People who misuse substances,
People in the care of mental health
services,
BME groups, migrants and asylum seekers,
People in the prison system

Page 278

• Reducing the risk of suicide in key high-risk
groups
• Tailoring approaches to improve mental health
in specific groups
• Reducing access to means of suicide
• Providing better information and support to
those bereaved
• Supporting the media in delivering sensitive
approaches to suicide and suicidal behaviour
• Supporting research, data collection and
monitoring
• Reducing rates of self-harm as a key indicator
of suicide risk

LAMBETH SUICIDE PREVENTION STRATEGY CONSULTATION
(SOME RESPONSES)

I’m a local psychiatrist and
psychoanalyst……., this is a
great idea

Among women, those of
menopausal age are most at risk
of suicide. And recent studies have
found that twice as many women
who became perimenopausal had
clinically significant depressive
symptoms compared with women
who had not yet entered the
transition phase

Page 279

I think you could also think
about how you would actually
reach out to distressed
individuals who may not be
known to the community
groups etc.

The list of priority groups should
include men bearing in mind
that 75% of completed suicides
are men.

LAMBETH SUICIDE PREVENTION STRATEGY YEAR 1 - ACTION PLAN
Priority

Actions
1.1 Raise awareness of available mental health crisis support

1. Reduce the risk of suicide in
high risk groups

1.1.b Ensure that organisations such as community and faith groups, and local employers have
access to a range of resources
1.2 Provide regular suicide prevention training for frontline staff and community groups – prioritising
staff and organisations supporting the strategy’s priority groups
1.3 Deliver the Pride in Practice programme to voluntary sector organisations
1.4 Work to increase mental health expertise and resources available to local communities so that
people can get support earlier and from places and people that they trust
1.5 Explore ways to further developing projects supporting the wellbeing of men in the borough –
e.g. men’s groups, men’s sheds

2. Providing better information
and support to those bereaved or 2.1 Advertise existing support for people bereaved by suicide – i.e. SEL Suicide Bereavement Service
affected by suicide
2.2. Work with Cruse to provide a ‘Facing the Future’ group to support adults bereaved by suicide

Page 280

1.1.a Locally appropriate communication resources to be co-developed

LAMBETH SUICIDE PREVENTION STRATEGY - YEAR 1 ACTION PLAN
Priority

Actions
3.1 Gain access to Thrive LDN suicide surveillance data

• People with contact with mental health services

3. Supporting
research,
data
collection
and
monitoring

• Providers of substance misuse services

Page 281

3.2 Conduct an audit of meaningful data to improve near time reporting of suicide, attempted suicide and
self-harm highlighting prevalence among stated strategic target groups and other local vulnerable groups eg:

• Pregnant women & postnatal
• Migrants and asylum seekers

• Homeless people
• Women who experience violence
• Women in the criminal justice system
• Men in the criminal justice system (including Brixton prison)
This will also include the collection of surveillance data on substances used in poisonings and where they were
purchased.

LAMBETH SUICIDE PREVENTION STRATEGY - YEAR 1 ACTION PLAN
Priority

Actions

5. Reducing rates of self- 5.1 Work collaboratively with colleagues from the SE London ICS to improve
harm as a key indicator of the self-harm pathway both in terms of improved data collection and
suicide risk
improved experience of care

Page 282

4.1. Work with local media and comms to ensure suicide is treated sensibly
and appropriately
4. support the media in
4.2. Locally appropriate communications and media campaigns aimed at
delivering sensitive
normalising talking about mental health and suicide to be co-developed with
approaches to suicide and
key groups
suicidal behaviour
4.3 Run awareness campaigns about the effect of menopause on women’s
mental health

For further information please contact
Lambeth Public Health Team
publichealth@lambeth.gov.uk

Page 283

Many thanks to the
Lambeth Suicide Prevention
Partnership Group

FACE TO FACE SUPPORT FOR THOSE WHO FEEL LIFE IS NO LONGER WORTH LIVING

Page 284

The Listening
Place

Revolving door and gap in Services

FR

Suicide
attempt.

Inappropriate
service. Person
loses faith in
system.

GP:
medication/
IAPT services.
1

Page 285

A & E: Quick
to discharge
to GP, usually
24hrs.

FR

THE LISTENING PLACE (TLP)
• The Listening Place provides free, sustained, face-to-face support, by appointment
to those who feel life is no longer worth living
Page 286

• Based in Pimlico, with satellite site at Kings College Hospital on Sundays
• Open 7 days a week; 12 hours a day
• Average of 500 referrals of suicidal people per month
• Over 100 appointments a day
• 68% of referrals from NHS
• 100% confidential

1

• Very fast response rate
• Proven results
• Recruited and trained over 1000 volunteers

28

FR

Causes of suicide

1

Page 287

• A great many
• Do not want to die, but do not want to go on living the way they feel
• Narrow down options – need to talk about it
• Anxiety and depression – exacerbated by pandemic
• Abusive relationships – worse during pandemic
• Childhood abuse/trauma
• Substance misuse
• Bereavement
29

FR

Suicide Prevention Partnership
• No-one can solve the problem on their own
Page 288

• Working with partners ensures that people are
signposted to the help they need

• Best practice can be shared

1

30

In the words of visitors….

FR

“The Listening Place has been life-changing for me. I never felt comfortable opening up about my darkest
thoughts and through their relaxed, friendly service I finally felt able to address these things about myself. The
specific focus on the volunteers being non-judgemental was really important to me and really helped me to
relax. This is really minor, but the fact that you provide tea is really calming and welcoming too!” (TLP Visitor, July
2021).

“TLP is addressing a critical gap in the support for suicidal people. Our own services are under increasing pressure
so its vital that we can refer people to The Listening Place. They are going to be a crucial part of supporting people
who feel suicidal going forward. The simple power of listening should not be undervalued”. (Sean Cross, Consultant
Liaison Psychiatrist, South London and Maudsley NHS).

1

Page 289

“Amazing place, amazing team. Felt heard, supported and comforted. An outlet to explore all my hardest thoughts
and to understand my triggers” (TLP Visitor, November 2021).

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 291

Agenda Item 5

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24 MARCH 2022
Report title: Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2021/22
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance: Councillor Andy Wilson
Report Authorised by: Andrew Pavlou, Interim Director of Legal and Governance:
Contact for enquiries: David Rose, Senior Democratic Services Officer, Legal and
Governance; 020 7926 1037, drose@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
This report sets out the committee’s draft work programme, provides an update on and record of actions
or recommendations arising from previous meetings, and provides councillors with information relevant
to the management of the committee.

Finance summary
There are no additional capital or revenue implications arising as a direct result of this report. The work
programme will be undertaken within the existing budget provision for Scrutiny within Legal and
Governance.

Recommendations
1.

That the work programme as drafted and the status of actions (Appendix 1) be noted.

2.

That members suggest items for future scrutiny for the 2022/23 municipal year.

Page 292
1.

Context

1.1

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) is responsible for overseeing and scrutinising the
whole range of the Authority’s functions and responsibilities, as well as other public service
providers’ work and its impact on the local community. The committee’s remit extends to all
matters which impact on the economic, social and environmental wellbeing of those who live, work,
study or use services in the borough.

1.2

OSC also exercises the council’s statutory scrutiny functions in relation to health, and crime and
disorder. The committee has responsibility for the review and scrutiny of matters relating to the
planning, provision and operation of health and related services in Lambeth (and any substantial
variation thereof) in accordance with the Health and Social Care Act 2012 and relevant regulations.
The committee is also the borough’s designated ‘Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee’ in
accordance with the Police and Justice Act 2006 and has responsibility for scrutinising the work of
the Safer Lambeth Partnership.

1.3

At the AGM on 21 April 2021, Council agreed the committee membership and meeting dates for
the 2021/22 municipal year. Further information can be found on the Council’s website at:
http://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=113

1.4

The Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee (CSSC) established in April 2017 is continuing in
2021/22 and is scheduled to meet three times over the course of the year, a reduction in meetings
from previous years. Cllr Joshua Lindsey, the Chair of CSSC, also sits on OSC in order to ensure
coordination of work between the two bodies, eliminate any potential duplication and feed in
findings from CSSC into OSC, and vice versa, where relevant.

1.5

In addition, a new Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee (HSSC) is being established this municipal
year with the remit to scrutinise the full range of housing management services which fall under the
control of the Director of Housing, together with Private Sector Enforcement and Regulation. HSSC
is chaired by Cllr Mary Atkins, OSC Vice Chair.

2.

Proposal and Reasons

2.1

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is invited to consider its work programme at each meeting.
Although some flexibility needs to be retained to enable items to be added at relatively short notice,
planning the committee’s work programme assists in the commissioning of reports and helps to
ensure that planned work is considered in a timely manner.

2.2

The committee’s draft work programme and action monitoring table are attached at Appendix 1.
The work programme is updated following completion of any actions or recommendations arising
or timetabling of new items. Only those actions which are amber or red rated from the 2020/21
round of meetings are included. The work programme should be monitored at each meeting to
ensure that previous actions and requests have been completed in full.

2.3

Arrangements for meetings for the 2022/23 municipal year are yet to be confirmed but suggested
areas for future scrutiny are set out in the appendix to this report, taking into account the
committee’s previous work and issues identified.

2.4

Scrutiny Commissions
All proposals for scrutiny commissions should be submitted to the Scrutiny Team and will be
considered by the OSC Chair and Vice Chairs in the first instance. Councillors submitting a
proposal for a commission are asked to provide outline information using the commission scoping

Page 293
template. Commissions can only be progressed when adequate resource has become available in
the Democratic Services Team. The table included in Appendix 1 summarises the status of all
current commissions.
2.5

2.6

2.7

In December 2020 OSC agreed to establish a commission on Low Traffic Neighbourhoods (LTNs)
– specifically the processes used to introduce and evaluate such emergency measures and
identifying lessons for future such situations. The commission met on 17 December 2020 to refine
its terms of reference and agree an outline work plan and has since met a further seven times,
taking evidence from the Deputy Leader of the Council (Sustainable Transport, Environment and
Clean Air) and officers regarding the emergency LTN rollout in Lambeth; considering a variety of
research papers, articles and reports on LTNs more widely; examining common themes in
objections to LTN schemes; and hearing from two university professors with specialisms in active
travel, and attitudes and behaviour change in relation to climate change initiatives. The
commission’s draft report was agreed at the October meeting and was approved, along with the
action plan, at Cabinet on 22 November 2021.
Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees
Our Healthier South East London JHOSC
Our Healthier South East London (OHSEL) Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
(JHOSC) comprises representatives of the six boroughs across South East London - the London
Boroughs of Bromley, Bexley, Lambeth, Lewisham and Southwark and the Royal Borough of
Greenwich. The Joint Committee’s role is to scrutinise health services across South East London,
in particular the proposals and consultation processes of the NHS Our Healthier South East
London programme to ensure that improved, safe and sustainable health services are delivered
across the region. The Council’s representatives are currently Cllr Marianna Masters, who is Vice
Chair of the JHOSC, and Cllr Rezina Chowdhury. The first meeting of the municipal year took
place online (informally) on 30 June 2021. Further information on the committee’s work can be
found at: https://cds.bromley.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=714 .
Lambeth Hospital JHOSC
In late 2019 a service change proposal was received from NHS Lambeth Clinical Commissioning
Group and their provider, South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust (SLaM) regarding
the potential reconfiguration of mental health inpatient services at Lambeth Hospital; specifically
the transfer of one psychiatric intensive care unit (PICU) and four acute wards to a new facility on
the Maudsley Hospital site, located in the London Borough of Southwark. Following conversations
with commissioners and colleagues in Southwark it was decided that this proposal amounted to a
substantial reconfiguration proposal covering more than one local authority area (in accordance
with the Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny)
Regulations 2013) and, as such, a JHOSC has been established between the London Boroughs of
Lambeth and Southwark to scrutinise the plans.

2.8

This JHOSC held its first meeting on 6 February 2020, during which the Terms of Reference and
consultation plans were approved. Last year, the committee conducted a virtual tour of the
Lambeth Hospital site and a fly-through of Douglas Bennett House, which will be built on the
Maudsley Hospital site. In addition to the tour, information was provided on the need for change
while updates were provided on the consultation process and the timeframe for decision making.

2.9

The consultation ran from 4 March until 31 May and the JHOSC met on 28 May 2020 to consider,
and respond to, the proposals in more detail. A meeting on 30 June allowed further scrutiny, and
recommendations to be made, before the South East London Clinical Commissioning Group made
its final decision to relocate four acute wards and the Psychiatric Intensive Care Unit (PICU) from

Page 294
Lambeth Hospital to the Maudsley site. These proposals were supported by the JHOSC. However,
an additional meeting was held in January 2021 to ensure monitoring of progress. Moving
forwards, the Committee will continue to be briefed on developments informally and, if required, will
hold further meetings ahead of the opening of Douglas Bennett House in early 2023.
2.10 The Council’s representatives are Cllr Marianna Masters, the Chair, Cllr Joshua Lindsey and Cllr
Rezina Chowdhury.
Borough Plan
2.11 Lambeth’s Borough Plan sets out the outcomes and objectives that the Council is trying to achieve;
these can be a useful tool for scrutiny members in their holding to account role; and, to support the
consideration, identification, and prioritisation of work programme items. The Borough Plan is
based around five big ambitions:
a.
enable sustainable growth and investment;
b.
increase community resilience;
c.
promote care and independence by reforming services;
d.
make Lambeth a place where people want to live, work and invest; and,
e.
be passionate about equality, strengthening diversity, and delivering inclusion.
Forward Plan
2.12 The Forward Plan lists all key decisions that the Council (including the Health and Wellbeing
Board) will take over the coming months. A key decision is defined as an executive decision which
will:
(1) Require an amendment to the Community Plan Outcomes Framework or require a
recommendation to Council to amend the Budget and Policy Framework; and/or
(2) Result in the local authority incurring expenditure, raising income or making savings in
excess of £500,000; and/or
(3) Have a significant impact on:
(a) communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards in Lambeth; or
(b) wellbeing of the community or the quality of service provided to a significant number of
people living or working in an area; or,
(c) communities of interest
2.13 The plan is therefore a useful tool for identifying forthcoming decisions where the committee might
add value. The Forward Plan can be found at:
https://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RD=0&RPId=137&bcr=1

3.

Finance

3.1

There are no additional capital or revenue implications arising as a direct result of this report. The
work programme will be undertaken within the existing budget provision for Scrutiny within Legal
and Governance.

4.

Legal and Democracy

4.1

There are no legal implications, but advice on specific work programme items may be provided in
the future.

4.2

There are no further democratic implications arising from this report.

Page 295
5.

Consultation and co-production

5.1

All members of the council are entitled to suggest items for scrutiny work programmes in
accordance with the council’s scrutiny procedure rules (Constitution Part 3, Section 6).
Suggestions are also invited specifically from scrutiny members as part of their community
leadership role and from members of the public. The council’s website includes a form for the
submission of suggestions and for public notice questions.

6.

Risk management

6.1

None.

7.

Equalities impact assessment

7.1

An equalities impact assessment of the work programme has not been undertaken. Reports
commissioned by the committee will be expected to address any equalities issues. Any
recommendations arising from commissions will have equalities implications considered at the
drafting stage.

8.

Community safety

8.1

None.

9.

Organisational implications

9.1

None.

10. Timetable for implementation
10.1 See Appendix 1.

Page 296
Audit Trail
Name/Position
Hamant Bharadia,
Assistant Director
Strategic Finance
Andrew Pavlou, Legal
Services
Maria Burton, Democratic
Services

Lambeth directorate/
department or partner

Date
Sent

Date
Received

22.02.22

22.02.22

Comments
in para:

Finance and Investment
Legal and Governance
Legal and Governance

Report History
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from
Disclosure/confidential accompanying
report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

N/A
11.03.22
11.03.22
No
No
N/A
N/A
Future Lambeth: Our Borough Plan 2016-2021
Forward Plan of Key Decisions
Lambeth Council Constitution 09.06.21
Appendix 1: OSC Work Programme 2021/22

APPENDIX 1
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
2021-22 WORK PROGRAMME


7 June 2021 – Procurement / Developer Contributions

Item / topic

Aims / objectives and
recommendations
Report on performance against stated
outcomes/KPIs since the policy was
introduced and how social value
commitments are monitored/assessed.

Developer
Contributions &
Neighbourhood
CIL Delivery
Framework

To respond to the OSC
recommendation of 23.09.20 as follows:
“That further transparency is needed
regarding developer contributions. This
should include publishing details on the
Council website of where Community
Infrastructure Levy payments are
generated and spent (over the last five
years in each ward); a list of projects
funded by CIL, NCIL and S106; and the
criteria for each funding stream”

Draft deadline: 17 May
Final deadline: 25 May
Agenda publication date: 27 May

Visits

Witnesses

Genine
Whitehorne

N/A

Yasmin Ibison (Back
Thrive); Simon Hannah
(Unison); Cllr Adrian
Garden

Rob Bristow

N/A

Cllr Ben Kind

Background information

Recommendations to be
considered ahead of
Cabinet decision scheduled
for July 2021.

Page 297

Responsible
Procurement
Policy Review

Lead Officer



14 July 2021 – Health and Social Care

Item / topic

Information on the commissioning
framework; different models/types of care
homes; impact of C-19 and Brexit;
monitoring and inspection arrangements;
challenges moving forward, including for
staff, carers and service providers. This will
incorporate requested information on
Minnie Kidd House.

Lead
Officer

Visits

Fiona
Connolly /
Jane
Bowie

N/A

Witnesses

Care home providers,
including a core block
provider and a smaller
unit, with input from a
manager and care staff.
An aligned professional –
e.g. a GP or a public
health officer who’s
worked alongside the
commissioning team.
Service users and carers
Healthwatch Lambeth
Age UK Lambeth
Lambeth Keep Our NHS
Public

Draft deadline: 24 June
Final deadline: 2 July
Agenda publication date: 6 July

Background information

Page 298

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery

Aims / objectives and recommendations



12 October 2021
Item / topic

Low Traffic
Neighbourhoods
Scrutiny
Commission – Final
Report

To provide an update on the issues
covered by committee in July 2020,
with additional information on Air
Quality Reporting, the work of the
Citizens’ Assembly (including next
steps) and information/data to help
quantify the health impacts of air
pollution across Lambeth.
To provide data on road
accidents/collisions across the
borough for the last five years. To
include an explanation, with
benchmarking against other
boroughs, and details on work that is
taking place to reduce road danger,
especially for younger people.
For OSC, as the parent Committee, to
consider and agree the final report
from the LTN Scrutiny Commission
ahead of this going to Cabinet for a
response.

Draft deadline: 21 September
Final deadline: 29 September
Agenda publication date: 4 October

Lead Officer

Hannah
Jameson

Visits

Witnesses

Background information

TBC

Councillor Joanna
Reynolds

These items may be combined
or taken as two standalone
reports.

N/A

Witnesses were
interviewed during the
Commission’s evidence
gathering

Ruth Hutt
Paul
Keenlyside
Simon
Phillips
Michael
Munnelly

Maria Burton

Page 299

Climate Change
Update (including
Road Safety)

Aims / objectives and
recommendations

Cllr Mary Atkins was Chair of
the Commission



16 December 2021 – Moved to 10 January 2022

Item / topic

Budget

Minnie Kidd House
(for info only)

To be presented to OSC following initial
Cabinet approval. Will then go to Cabinet
and Council in the new year
To include:
 Clarity on responsibility (central
government, local government,
partners, MPs), broad overview of
the process
 Services the Council funds (e.g.
Centre 70, CAB), number of
referrals, outcomes and how these
contracts are evaluated.
 Housing benefit – statistics on
recipients, refusals, evictions
 How the complaints process works
 Comparisons with other boroughs
 Current issues: Universal Credit,
Test and Trace
At OSC on 14 July 2021, the Committee
requested:
 A report on the future use of Minnie Kidd
House, setting out care provided,
environmental issues, including work
required for the building to be compliant
with fire safety standards, and next steps,
be considered by Overview and Scrutiny
at a future committee meeting, with input
from Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS
Foundation Trust.

Draft deadline: 25 November
Final deadline: 03 December
Agenda publication date: 08 December

Visits

Lead Officer

Witnesses

Christina
Thompson

N/A

Trade unions, BIDs,
Charity representatives

Natasa
Patterson

N/A

Helen Hayes MP
Centre 70/CAB
Residents
supported/affected

Jane Bowie

N/A

N/A

Background information

Page 300

Benefits

Aims / objectives and
recommendations

OSC 14 July 2021



2 February 2022
Aims / objectives and
recommendations

Item / topic

Employment &
Skills Strategy one
year on

To assess the impact of the
Employment and Skills Strategy one
year after its adoption

Events Scrutiny
Commission 2nd
Update

Second and final update to the
Commission

Visits

Lead Officer

Alison May/
Jacqueline
Faulkner

N/A

Kevin Crook

N/A

Witnesses

Background information

Employment and Skills
providers (colleges etc)
(Former) apprentices
Ward Councillors in
affected parks
Friends groups for
affected parks

Page 301

Draft deadline: 13 January
Final deadline: 21 January
Agenda publication date: 25 January



24 March 2022 – Crime and Disorder (Provisional)
Aims / objectives and
recommendations

Item / topic

Annual Crime and Disorder item, to
focus on:
Safer Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report






Trust and confidence in the
Police and how these can be
improved/resolved
Stop and search
County lines
Safer Neighbourhood Panels
and their effectiveness

Lead Officer

Trevor East

Visits

Brixton
Police
Station?

Witnesses

Safer Lambeth
Partnership
Lambeth Youth Safety
Forum
Natalie Creary, Black
Thrive

Background information

Safer Lambeth Partnership
report, OSC 23 March 2021

Aims / objectives and
recommendations

Item / topic




Visits

Witnesses

Background information

The process for police
complaints, particularly for
groups such as young people
and BAME people
How the Council and Police
work together on areas such as
anti-social behaviour

To provide data on health inequalities
and outcomes, primarily on
race/ethnicity.
Case studies: sickle cell, Black maternal
health, obesity, diabetes

Ruth
Hutt/Bimpe
Oki

Bell Ribeiro-Addy MP
Florence Eshalomi MP
Patients groups?
Five Times More?

Draft deadline: 4 March
Final deadline: 14 March
Agenda publication date: 16 March

Issues for potential future scrutiny









Thames Water issues
Covid related expenditure and, subject to speaking to the Chair of Corporate Committee, work that has taken place to prevent covid support fraud
Violence affecting young people / youth violence (subject to speaking to the Chair of Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub Committee)
Care Homes Annual Report – see minutes from 14 July 2021 OSC for details
Financial Inclusion Strategy
Waste Strategy
Resident Services contract performance
Leisure Strategy/contracts

Page 302

Health –
Addressing health
inequalities

Lead Officer




Customer service standards
Road Safety Strategy – summer 2022 at the earliest

Page 303

Scrutiny Commissions
(More information on current commissions is contained in the OSC work programme report)
Title/Proposal

Status

Co-Chairs/Lead Member(s)

Maximising Benefits from Events

Concluded. Final report presented to Cabinet on 13 Jan 2020. First action plan
update Sept 2020, second update February 2022.

Cllr Mary Atkins

Low Traffic Neighbourhoods

Concluded Membership and scope agreed at Dec 2020 OSC; commission
meeting regularly. Final report presented to Cabinet on 22 November 2021.

Cllr Mary Atkins

Page 304

Overview & Scrutiny Committee Action Monitoring
30 January 2019: Transport / Digital Accessibility
Item

Recommendation / Action

Draft Lambeth
Transport
Strategy

To support the work being done to explore the feasibility
of introducing a workplace parking levy in the borough and
request to be kept updated throughout the evidence
gathering and decision making process

Draft Lambeth
Transport
Strategy

That the Transport Strategy be amended to include
guidance on motorcycle parking provision and criteria for
interested residents

Accepted/
Rejected

Response
Work stream delayed due to
Covid-19

Accepted

-

To be picked up in the Kerbside
Strategy in 2021/22
November 2021: the Strategy is
currently in development

Deadline

Owner

TBC

Simon
Phillips

TBC
Simon
Phillips

RAG
rating
A
(last
update 08
November
2021)
A
(last
update 09
February
2022)

Item
Council
Response to
Covid-19

Recommendation / Action
That further work be done to establish how vacant space
and additional space requirements be identified and
connected to support changes in working practices in
Lambeth

Accepted/
Rejected
Accepted

Response
Project Work to commence to
consolidate all information
including: location, facilities
available, current usage,
associated budgets etc

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

TBC

Andrew
Travers/
Neil
Euesden

A

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Late 2021

Hannah
Jameson

16 July 2020: Budget / Climate Change
Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Tackling Climate
Change in Light
of Covid-19

That the committee endorses the innovative work being
done by the London Borough of Islington on heat transfer
and would like to see Lambeth explore similar approaches

Accepted

Response
The council has begun to develop
its energy strategy and will
identify relevant low carbon
energy opportunities as part of
this work. We expect the first
phase of work, to develop the

A
(last
update 10

Page 305

19 May 2020: Council Response to Covid-19

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating
November
2021)

evidence base, to be completed in
summer 2021 with options for
decarbonising heat to follow
shortly after.

23 September 2020: Economic Recovery
Item

Recommendation / Action

That the importance of optimising local spend to generate
social impact be highlighted and that clear targets be set
for increasing the amount of spend that is retained locally

Economic
Resilience Strategy
/ Draft Skills &
Employment
Strategy

That the committee is sympathetic to small businesses
trying to remain afloat through the pandemic, as well as
minor landlords, and wishes to see the Council taking
whatever action it can to ensure rent increases do not
lead to local firms going out of business

Jobs For All
Scrutiny
Commission Action
Plan Update

That consideration be given to widening the scope of the
Opportunity Lambeth website to ensure it better connects
residents seeking work with appropriate jobs available in
the borough

Accepted

Accepted in
part

Accepted

Response
The Enterprise & Economy
Strategic Programme Board will
be exploring the potential to set
local spend targets through the
council’s supply chain and
through new development s106
process.
November 2021: This is being
taken forward as part of the
Council’s new Responsible
Procurement Policy update.
The council is not able to take any
action in relationships between
commercial landlords and
tenants. Any business needing
advice can access the support
offered through the London
Business Hub.
The feedback from the Committee
and during the development of the
Skills and Employment Strategy
has highlighted the need to
improve the user experience of
the Opportunity Lambeth website,
and to ensure it is used as a
single point of access for
promoting local job,
apprenticeship and work
experience opportunities. This will

Owner

RAG
rating

Dec 2021

Christina
Thompson

A
(last
update 11
November
2021)

N/A

Nabeel
Khan / Matt
Blades

A
(last
update 11
November
2021)

Oct 2021

Nabeel
Khan /
Alison May

A
(last
update 11
November
2021)

Deadline

Page 306

Economic
Resilience Strategy
/ Draft Skills &
Employment
Strategy

Accepted/
Rejected

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Owner

RAG
rating

Oct 2021

Paul Bates

A
(last
update 14
November
2021)

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Paul Bates

A
(last
update 14
November
2021)

Deadline

be a priority for the coming six
months.
Jobs For All
Scrutiny
Commission Action
Plan Update

That the relative costs and benefits of social value
measures be calculated to ensure the focus is on those
initiatives which are proven to give rise to net positive
outcomes

Accepted

A comprehensive review of Social
Value at Lambeth Council was
carried out in January 2021. This
resulted in Management Board
approving an organisation-wide
approach to identifying,
measuring and monitoring social
value outcomes. Work is currently
underway to calculate the impact
of social value gains and prioritise
methods of deriving additional
value from contracts and
partnerships.

Item

Recommendation / Action

Covid-19 in
Lambeth: Lessons
Learned in Health
and Care

That the valuable coordinating role of Voluntary and
Community Sector organisations be recognised, and that
appropriate support be provided to the sector, especially
those organisations experiencing difficulties with their own
volunteers and workforce.

Covid-19 in
Lambeth: Lessons
Learned in Health
and Care

That the Committee be kept up to date with resident
survey data, including the Pulse survey and future
research work, as and when this becomes available.

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Accepted

Covid-19 in
Lambeth: Lessons

That messaging regarding vulnerable residents and their
entitlements (for example, with regards to exemptions
from certain Covid-19 guidelines) be clarified.

Accepted

Response
The contribution of the sector is
widely recognised and
acknowledged and will continue to
be a key part of our work on
Covid-19 and vaccine. A
refreshed VCS strategy will be
confirmed in 2021 (timings TBC).
This is agreed in principle.
Officers will liaise further with
members regarding desired
format and timings.
November 2021: Officers will
hold a briefing with Members on
the latest Residents’ Survey – to
be arranged
Officers will look into this in more
depth and report back.

TBC

Ongoing

Paul Bates

TBC

Paul Bates

A
(last
update 14
November
2021)

A

Page 307

20 October 2020: Health and Social Care

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

Learned in Health
and Care

RAG
rating
(last
update 14
November
2021)

That more transparency and communication are needed
on the necessary fiscal trade-offs inherent in actions to
tackle climate change and how to mitigate them in future.

Annual Public
Health Report:
Climate Change
and Health

That the effectiveness of the partnership with Thames
Water be monitored to ensure it results in a reduction in
flooding and improvements to the environment.

Annual Public
Health Report:
Climate Change
and Health

That joined up working is required between the Thames
Water partnership referred to by officers and existing
ongoing dialogue between the local MP, ward councillors
and Thames Water.

Accepted in
part

Accepted in
part

This sits within the overall climate
change and sustainable growth
agenda not within public health –
but should be picked up as part of
the Citizens’ Assembly and further
development of local strategy.
Agreed. To be aware, the
partnership is intended to reduce
the risk of surface water flooding.
This does not include flooding
arising from leaks.
Officers will find out about existing
conversations. However, it should
be clear that the strategic
partnership is addressing surface
water flood risk and not flooding
arising from leaks. This is a
separate part of Thames Water
that deals with this.

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)
A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

TBC

Hannah
Jameson

TBC

Hannah
Jameson

TBC

Hannah
Jameson

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Christina
Thompson

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

9 December 2020: Budget / Homes for Lambeth Governance
Item

Financial
Planning Report
2020/21 to
2024/25

Recommendation / Action
That the committee notes the heavy reliance on income
generation (particularly in Resident Services) to address
the budget gap and requests further updates on how
these proposals are progressing against stated targets,
including the impact of raising fees and charges on users
and the take-up of services

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Response
Appendix 4 of the Revenue and
Capital Budget to Cabinet and
Council provides the current year
fees and charges budgets and the
forecast outturn. Budget and
Performance Monitoring is
reported to Cabinet on a quarterly
basis.

Ongoing

Page 308

Annual Public
Health Report:
Climate Change
and Health

Item

Financial
Planning Report
2020/21 to
2024/25

Recommendation / Action
That the committee is concerned at the plans for a whole
Council structural review in 2022-24 and the adverse
effect this may have on service delivery, and in particular
on low paid and BAME staff. The committee therefore
requests further detail on these proposals as and when
they emerge and urges the Council leadership to consult
with and empower staff throughout the process, both via
the trade unions and directly

That the committee supports the intention to maintain an
appropriate level of reserves in order to safeguard the
Council’s viability and enable the authority to continue
effective service delivery, in particular those services
aimed at the most vulnerable, and requests further future
updates regarding the reserves position

Financial
Planning Report
2020/21 to
2024/25

That the committee notes the bigger than usual lag in
capital investment spend this year due to the pandemic
and requests further updates on the capital programme to
monitor how this is addressed

Homes for
Lambeth
Governance
Review

That the committee reiterates the necessity for ongoing
scrutiny and oversight of Homes for Lambeth. This should
include regular reports back to the committee and to
Corporate Committee, on the structure and progress of
projects, and performance against KPIs.

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Response
Work is underway to identify
possible savings, though this is at
an early stage. Further detail will
be provided to the committee in
future months as details become
clearer

Section 25 of the Local
Government Act 2003 requires
the Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
(in Lambeth’s case the Director of
Finance) to report to the Authority
on two areas:
a)The robustness of the
estimates made for the
purpose of the calculations
b)The adequacy of the
proposed reserves
See paragraph 2.74 of the
Revenue and Capital Budget to
Cabinet and Council 8 February
2021 and 3 March 2021
Budget and Performance
Monitoring is reported to Cabinet
on a quarterly basis and includes
the monitoring of the capital
programme.
Reporting is provided to the
Council through the Ownership
and Stewardship Panel on the
progress of projects and
performance against KPIs. These
meetings are being held more
frequently (quarterly) and papers
for these meetings are published
online here.
A comprehensive new
performance report is being

Owner

RAG
rating

Fiona
McDermott

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Christina
Thompson

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Ongoing

Christina
Thompson

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Ongoing

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Deadline

Ongoing

Ongoing

Page 309

Financial
Planning Report
2020/21 to
2024/25

Accepted/
Rejected

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Sept 2021

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

developed which includes project
progress and performance
against KPIs. This new report
standard will be used for
presentations as a matter of
routine.

Homes for
Lambeth
Governance
Review

That the committee requests a further review of the OSP
and for the terms of reference to be circulated to the
committee.

Accepted

That a more structured approach to resident involvement
is required, with residents on project boards, and wider
Lambeth forums and with leaseholder and tenant
representatives on the Homes for Lambeth board.

Accepted in
part (see
response)

The updated Shareholder
Agreement was executed on 12
April 2021. Further changes to
this agreement, including an
update of the OSP Terms of
Reference will be brought to OSP
for consideration and shared with
the committee once finalised
The approach to resident Board
recruitment will be set out in
HFL’s Resident Engagement
Strategy which will be presented
for approval in July.
In addition benchmarking
research is being conducted to
look at the approach to resident
Board Members within similar
organisations and LA wholly
owned companies. The
benchmarking will be considered
by HFL’s Remuneration &
Nominations Committee in July.

Aug 2021
On-going for
resident
engagement

Page 310

Homes for
Lambeth
Governance
Review

The review of Ownership and
Stewardship Panel is on-going,
and has been informed by the
external governance review
undertaken by Bevan Brittan.

Item
Homes for
Lambeth
Governance
Review

Recommendation / Action
To request an update on future board structures, ideally
including an organogram, and details of increased
reporting to the council.

That the committee be updated on any proposals for
Homes for Lambeth to become a community benefit
society.

Homes for
Lambeth
Governance
Review

That any material changes to financial predictions,
including income, expenditure and additional funding
requirements, be brought to the attention of the committee
as and when they occur.

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Response
Updates on any changes to the
Homes for Lambeth Board
structure will be reported to
Ownership and Stewardship
Panel, along with the regular
reporting referred to above.
Ownership and Stewardship
Panel papers will be published
online here in the usual way and
will be available for members of
OSC to review
Should Homes for Lambeth wish
to progress with plans to become
a community benefit society then
Officers will ensure that the
committee is updated.

Material changes in the financial
plans for the HFL programme –
the HFL annual Business Plan
and the Joint Delivery Plan – as
approved prior to the start of each
financial year will be brought to
the Committee for information and
discussion, in a similar fashion to
the finance presentation in July
2020.

Deadline

Owner

On-going

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

RAG
rating
A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

On-going

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

Annual

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

July 2021

Chief Supt
Colin
Wingrove
(MPS)

G

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

23 March 2021: Crime and Disorder
Item

Recommendation / Action

2. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

That a thorough and widely publicised process be
established to enable local organisations and individuals
to work effectively with the police, especially regarding the

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Response
The local authority play a key role
in supporting effective working of
the police in this process.

Page 311

Homes for
Lambeth
Governance
Review

Accepted/
Rejected

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

needs of young people and women, when seeking to
organise future events such as vigils or protests

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Oct 2021

Chief Supt
Colin
Wingrove
(MPS)

G
(last
update 06
October
2021)

Details are being collated to
explain the process and will be
shared in due course.
UPDATE: 30.06.21:
The process and information in
relation to events is publicised by
Lambeth Council (who will link in
with the Police) and by The Met
Police, who would similarly link
with Council colleagues.

Page 312

Both websites (below) contain
information, advice and contact
information. On the Met website
there is an online form and this
then routes the enquiry to the
appropriate team or borough.
https://eventlambeth.co.uk/organi
sing/planning-your-event/
https://www.met.police.uk/tua/tellus-about/eo/af/eventsprocessions/
Where additional support is
required, this should be flagged in
the application process.

8. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

That the police be urged to assess whether existing
practices are conducive to building and maintaining trust
and confidence, and consider what more might be done to
improve this (for example, work with the relevant Lambeth
Made Safer work stream and ensure all officers are aware
of the importance of this work stream)

Accepted

The BCU has developed an
engagement plan in line with the
Met Engagement plan devised by
Commander Ali Heydari; The
Mayor’s Action Plan; & local
strategies including Lambeth
Made Safer & Southwark Stands
Together. Links to these are
below:

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Mayor’s Action Plan:
https://www.london.gov.uk/publi
cations/action-plan-transparencyaccountability-and-trustpolicing#actions
Southwark Stands Together:
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/e
ngagement-andconsultations/tackling-racialinequalities-racism-and-injusticesouthwark-stands-together

We are still waiting for details of
the Met Engagement plan devised
by Commander Ali Heydari.
The BCU Commander has now
attended every Lambeth Made
Safer Community Forum with the
Cabinet Lead for Jobs, Skills &
Community Safety demonstrating
the level of commitment to
engaging with residents and
improve community safety and
address underlying issues that
contribute to crime and ASB
including Environment; Health;

Page 313

Lambeth Made Safer:
https://moderngov.lambeth.gov.
uk/documents/s122975/Appendi
x%20A%20%20Lambeth%20Made%20Safer
%20Strategy%20v19.pdf

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Employment; Education;
Inequalities.
The MPS and BCU is reviewing
effectiveness and support for local
Safer Neighbourhood Ward
panels including refreshing
priorities, empowering local
officers to use data and statistics
in a meaningful way to drive
action and outcomes suited to
local communities. Details of
timelines and objectives will be
shared with the Committee when
available.

As part of the reinvigoration of the
Ward Panels, the Metropolitan
Police Service has recently issued
guidance to the Ward panels on
priority setting. The guidance
seems to have been well
received.
At present we do not have any
hard timelines for the completion
of the review.
With this in mind, details of this
review process will be shared with
the OSC in due course.
October 2021: The review has
been completed and is available
to Members.

Page 314

The review of the Safer
Neighbourhood Ward Panels is
part of the Mayor’s Action Plan
(link above).

Item

That the latest Lambeth stop and search data (to include
statistics on complaints received and details of
subsequent action taken) be shared with the committee
together with the justification for continuing with the
current stop and search strategy given the low incidence
of positive outcomes

Accepted/
Rejected
Accepted

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Oct 2021

Chief Supt
Colin
Wingrove
(MPS)

G
(last
update 17
Feb 22)

Data on stop and search in
Lambeth can be found here:
https://www.met.police.uk/sd/stats
-and-data/met/stop-and-searchdashboard/
Lambeth experiences some of the
highest rates of violence and knife
crime in London. The positive
outcome rate for stop and search
has averaged 26% in 2021 this is
a 4% improvement on same
period in 2020. Stop and search
remains an important and
effective response to knife crime,
robbery and violence, and drivers
of crime such as drug offending. It
is one tool as part of a range of
police and partnership
interventions and activity.
The BCU is developing a stop and
search improvement plan, with
insight and feedback from
community members and
organisations such as Black
Thrive and through the Lambeth
Made Safer Disrupt and Deter
work stream. This is to improve
overall quality of encounter and
seek greater local community
feedback, scrutiny and
involvement. The Improvement
Plan should be approved by the
end of June and will be shared
with the Committee when
available.
UPDATE: 30.06.21:
The Plan has been reviewed by
both the Lambeth Made Safer

Page 315

11. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

Recommendation / Action

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Oct 2021

Pippa
Beeston
(National
Probation
Service)

G

Implementation Board and
Strategy board this month (June).
The Plan is being shared with Cllr
Dyer this week (w/c Monday 28th
June) to review. Once feedback
has been collated from across this
review process, the LMS
Programme Manager will liaise
with the Disrupt and Deter
workstream lead (DS Neerav
Patel) with regards to sharing the
plan – including forwarding the
document with the OSC.

13. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

That further information be requested from the Probation
service regarding any potential issues which may affect
commissioned services during the reintegration process,
and how any potential risks are being managed

Accepted

The unification of the Probation
services commenced on Saturday
26th June 2021. There will be 12
probation regions across England
and Wales (11 in England and
Wales) each overseen by a
Regional Probation Director.
London has its own regional
director, with Lambeth being part
of the SE London district. Pippa
Beeston remains as part of the
borough’s governance structure,
taking the role of Head of
Probation Delivery Unit –
Lambeth.
Services previously delivered by
the CRC (Community
Rehabilitation Companies) have
been absorbed into the unified

Page 316

February 2022: The latest stop
and search data will be included
in the report for March 2022,
along with explanations for its
continued use

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

TBC

OSC

A

Aug 2021

Nataša
Patterson

G

Probation Service with staff being
transferred in the process to allow
for continuity of service. For
example, Unpaid Work
(Community Payback) that is now
under the remit of the HM Prison
and Probation Service will build
on the innovative work delivered
by CRCs.

To request a further paper to OSC at a future meeting on
customer service standards

That information on the Lambeth website regarding the
council structure and employee information/contact details
be enhanced and standardised

Accepted

The basic Council structure and
organisational chart covering
senior management grades are
currently published on the
Lambeth website. In addition it is
proposed to review and improve
our active directory, automated
switchboard and revisit our
Contact Us page.
Update (Sept 2021) - As a part of
the overall call centre technology
improvements, where we are
looking to implement new cloud
based and AI empowered
solution, we will review all
customer journeys and overall
access to services, which would
give improved experience to
residents and easier access to

Page 317

Accessibility of
Council Digital
Services Scrutiny
Commission
Update
Accessibility of
Council Digital
Services Scrutiny
Commission
Update

If the OSC or colleagues would
like to nominate a community
project for Community Payback,
please use the following email
address: CP_@justice.gov.uk.
To be considered by committee
when determining work
programme for 2022/23

Item

Lambeth Scrutiny
Review

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

To approve the action plan set out at Appendix 2.
Accepted

Response
services. It is not envisaged that
full employee information other
than published ones will be in
scope, however, these
improvements should reduce the
need for individual officers.
Current plan will see these
delivered in phases by the end of
the year.
Actions to be taken forward by
committee members and
Democratic Services as outlined
in the action plan

RAG
rating

Deadline

Owner

To be
implemented
throughout
2021/22

OSC /
Dem Servs

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

September
2021

Rob
Bristow

G

Rob
Bristow

A
(last
update 08
November
2021)

Rob
Bristow

A
(last
update 08

G

Item

Developer
Contributions

Recommendation / Action

That the CLIP approach be revised to ensure the
proceeds of growth are shared across the whole borough,
with a focus on the most deprived areas

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Developer
Contributions

To ensure there is a transparent and democratic localised
consultative mechanism for identifying NCIL priorities
outside of Neighbourhood Plans

Accepted

Developer
Contributions

That the committee requests further information regarding
the likely impact of the Government White Paper on

Accepted

Response
In essence this is what the new
proposals agreed by Cabinet on
the 5th July do. The agreed
proposals revise the approach to
NCIL such that the whole of the
borough is regarded as the local
area, which enables spend to take
place on the basis of need. See
Para 2.14 (b) of the Cabinet
Report from 5/7/21 in this regard.
This is also secured through the
new proposals agreed by Cabinet
(see para 2.12 of the Cabinet
Report of 5/7/21 for details of the
strengthened local consultation
mechanisms)

At the time of writing (August
2021) further details are still
awaited from Government on how

TBC
(Discussions
currently
taking place
with Strategy
and Comms
Team)
TBC (subject
to
Government

Page 318

7 June 2021: Developer Contributions / Responsible Procurement

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Lambeth and that steps are taken to ensure local people
can continue to have a say over how CIL is allocated

Developer
Contributions

That a strategy is needed regarding changes in the use of
space as a result of the pandemic, both in terms of
working and where people choose to live

Accepted

Accepted

the White Paper proposals will be
implemented. Once these are
published officers will be able to
produce further analysis on the
likely impacts on Lambeth. In
respect of ensuring local people
can continue to have influence
over the allocation of CIL, this will
be achieved through the
strengthened consultation
mechanisms mentioned in para
2.12 of the Cabinet Report – and
the priorities that emerge from this
process will in turn be taken into
account in allocation decisions by
the Council.
February 2022: Further details on
the White Paper proposals are
still awaiting.
At the time of writing, details of
the Community Connections Fund
are still being worked up in
discussion with the relevant
members of Cabinet – details can
be shared with OSC once
available.

The Draft Revised Lambeth Local
Plan, which will be reported to
Cabinet and Full Council in
September for adoption, is the
lead strategy for the Council in
this regard, and has recently been
declared sound by a Government
Inspector following an
Examination in Public. This
document has been informed by a
raft of evidence including the new
London Plan (adopted earlier this

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

pronouncem
ents)

February
2022)

TBC –
subject to
ongoing
discussions
with the
relevant
Cabinet
member/The
Leader

Rob
Bristow

A
(last
update 08
November
2021)

Rob
Bristow

G
(last
update 08
November
2021)

September
2021

Page 319

Developer
Contributions

That further information be provided regarding the
Community Connections fund, including how success will
be measured

Response

Item

Recommendation / Action

That a more detailed breakdown is required going forward
of how developer contributions are accrued and spent, to
ward level

Developer
Contributions

To ensure spending on infrastructure is properly managed
at a project level in order that schemes which are
overspending can be readily identified and issues
addressed

Developer
Contributions

That greater transparency is needed regarding the
decision making process for spending developer
contributions, including how these link to resident views
and relevant policy priorities (for example, Borough Plan
outcomes)

Rejected

Accepted

Accepted

Response
year) and our own JLL office
study which advised on the future
of office space in the borough
following the pandemic.
November 2021: The Revised
Local Plan for Lambeth was
adopted in September 2021
This recommendation was
carefully considered but ultimately
not accepted for the reasons set
out at para. 2.11 of the Cabinet
Report of 5/7/21.
Spending by project is managed
in accordance with the Council’s
established financial management
systems, and is undertaken by the
relevant project team with
oversight from Finance and the
relevant Directorate Management
Team or Transformation Board.
In addition a new Capital
Programme Board is being set up
from October this year to monitor
capital spending across
programmes to ensure that
spending is optimised and any
overspends/underspends can be
appropriately addressed.
Measures to achieve greater
transparency around spending
decisions for developer
contributions and demonstrating
that these are linked to resident
priorities were agreed by Cabinet,
and the measures to achieve this
are set out in paras 2.12 and 2.13
of the Cabinet Report of 5/7/21;
with greater accountability
ensured through more detailed

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

July 2021

Rob
Bristow

R

Rob
Bristow

A
(last
update 08
November
2021)

Rob
Bristow

A
(last
update 08
November
2021)

October
2021

TBC – this is
subject to
discussions
on the timing
of
implementati
on of these
measures
with Strategy
and Comms
colleagues

Page 320

Developer
Contributions

Accepted/
Rejected

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

To consult with staff regarding their views on working
conditions when a contract change results in them
working under a different company

Accepted

reporting to Cabinet, as set out in
para 2.15 of the report.
The council is committed to
ensure that the Responsible
Procurement policy is consistently
applied across all procurement
activity and that we are able to
proactively report on deliverables
and impact. As such the
responsible procurement is an
integral part of the development of
a new corporate contract
management framework which
will include comprehensive
guidance materials and training
for contract managers. Phase 2
of the development of the
council’s new electronic
management system (eCMS) will
enable more efficient reporting
against responsible procurement
commitments. The contract
management will include clear
guidance for the effective
management of contracts
including non-performance. This
will be further supported by the
development of a new
Commercial Advisory team
supporting contract managers
with complex performance issues.
For all contracts that may impact
staff working on the existing
service, the council must consider
whether Transfer of Undertakings
(Protection of Employment)
regulations (TUPE)
applies. Where TUPE does
apply, the employer (this may be
the council where a contract has

Owner

RAG
rating

March 2022

Sasa Glisic

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

July 2021

Genine
Whitehorne

G

Deadline
and Finance
colleagues

Page 321

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

To ensure the Responsible Procurement policy is applied
in an effective and transparent manner, including setting
tangible targets on social value priorities, spot checks on
compliance, appropriate training for all contract managers
in using the electronic contract management system,
transparency of data to the maximum extent possible, and
penalties for failing to meet social value targets.

Response

Item

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update
Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

To ensure a process is in place to review social value
commitments and associated KPIs whenever a contract is
renewed

To ensure contracts are monitored to ensure commitment
to and compliance with the modern slavery charter
That Trade Union membership and involvement be
championed for staff employed under Council contracts

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Response
previously been delivered inhouse or another third party
contractor) must consult
employees or their
representatives about anything to
do with the transfer that could
affect them. The council works
with incumbent providers and new
contractors to ensure transition
and mobilisation of new services
are effectively managed and the
impact to workers is mitigated
wherever possible.
The contract management
framework will include clear
guidance regarding review of
contracts as part of the annual
review process and at key
contract milestones including
when enacting an option to
extend.
Compliance against modern
slavery charter will be built into
the contract management
assurance framework and form
part of annual contract reviews.
The council ensures that all
potential contractors adhere to
appropriate employment
legislation and regulations as part
of the procurement process. This
includes the legal right for
collective participation and to join
a Trade Union. The Council is
keen to ensure Trade Unions can
function effectively within
Lambeth, and that they have
access to the information they
need to function effectively. As
such the council is committed to

Owner

RAG
rating

Sasa Glisic

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Oct 2021

Sasa Glisic

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

July 2021

Genine
Whitehorne

Deadline

Oct 2021

G

Page 322

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

Recommendation / Action

Item

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

(To provide
clarity)
Accepted

protecting Trade Union rights and
will support workers to ensure
they have information about their
rights. However, we consider it to
be an individual’s right to choose
whether or not they wish to join a
Trade Union. champion trade
union membership.
The Public Services (Social
Value) Act, 2012 provides the
legislative framework for the
council’s Responsible
Procurement Policy. The
council’s social value duty is
balanced by obligations to ensure
fair and open competition as set
out in the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015 which state,
inter alia, that award criteria must
be ‘linked to the subject matter’ of
the contract in question, must be
contract-specific, and must not
be aimed at assessing the
business or corporate policies of
the tenderer. In considering how,
in conducting the process of
procurement, it might act with a
view to
securing the improvement of the
economic, social and
environmental well-being of its
area, the Public Services (Social
Value) Act requires that the
procuring authority must consider
only matters that are relevant to
what is proposed to be procured.
Further, in doing so, it must
consider the extent to which it is
proportionate in all the
circumstances to take those

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

G

Page 323

That clarity be provided to the committee regarding the
ability of the Council to use its leverage via responsible
procurement to secure wider societal and environmental
benefits beyond local authority borders under current law.
This includes looking at the past record of organisations to
assess their suitability, requiring adherence to Council
policies and practice, and encouraging contractors to pay
the London Living Wage to its entire workforce (not just
those working as part of the Lambeth contract)

Response

July 2021

Genine
Whitehorne

Item

Accepted/
Rejected

That a clear process is required to demonstrate how the
aims of the Responsible Procurement policy link to other
Council priorities and strategies (such as the Borough
Plan)

Accepted

Lambeth
Responsible

To endorse the Preston model as a means of prioritising
the needs of local business and the community

Accepted

Response
matters into account. As such the
council does not legally have the
ability to require contractors to
pay LLW beyond Lambeth
specific contracts and cannot
consider other reputational factors
beyond those directly related to
the ability to deliver the a specific
contract. Additionally, the council
has very little commercial
leverage to influence supplier
behaviour beyond delivery of
Lambeth specific contracts
In March 2021 work was carried
out to link the Responsible
Procurement policy with
Lambeth’s Societal Impact
Framework that the Council has
developed. This framework
reflects the Council’s priority
areas set out in key strategies
(including the Borough Plan as
well as the UN Sustainable
Development Goals). Section 9
of the current Policy sets out how
it supports the Borough Plan. At
the policy’s next review point, the
intention is to align the language
in the Responsible Procurement
policy to this framework and
create further opportunities for
social and environmental benefits
through procurement. This work
will be completed alongside
strategy and policy leads from
across the Council.
Further guidance is being
developed to support the update
of the Responsible Procurement

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Oct 2021

Sasa Glisic

Dec 2021

Sasa Glisic

A

Page 324

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

Recommendation / Action

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Procurement
Update

That the Council should actively consider insourcing
services whenever feasible

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

To ensure the Transformation & Efficiency Champion is
fully involved in the coordination of responsible
procurement with related initiatives such as societal
impact of spend and the performance management and
appraisal process, and to request a future report back on
how this is working

Accepted

Accepted

Policy. This will include a number
of case studies showcasing best
practice (both internal and
external). It is important to
recognise that the approach in
Lambeth already exceeds the
outcomes achieved in Preston
however these successes are not
effectively communicated. The
case studies will help to more
effectively share the learning, As
a part of this process, it is
intended to include further
information on external models
(including the Preston example).
When commissioning services it
is already mandatory that a range
of options are considered as part
of developing the business case.
These options include assessing
the council’s ability to deliver the
services in-house. This options
appraisal will be further
strengthened by new guidance
that will provide commissioners /
service managers with more
information about factors to
consider when undertaking a
make or buy assessment.
The Transformation & Efficiency
Champion is already well
engaged in discussions regarding
our approach. This will continue
as work develops and the
Champion will be invited to be an
active participant in the update of
the Policy to inform and shape
priorities going forward.

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Dec 2021

Sasa Glisic

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Sasa Glisic
March 2022

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Page 325

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

Response

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

To ensure an appropriate balance is struck between value
for money and social value commitments in the
procurement system

Accepted

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

To review the role of consultant advisors in the tender
process to ensure value for money and transparent
delivery of social value commitments

Accepted

Response
Social value is an important
consideration in our procurement
activity. When evaluating
tenders, it is important that careful
consideration is given to the split
between price and quality as part
of the evaluation methodology.
This split will vary depending on
the type of services being
procured and the way in which is
it being sourced. It has recently
been agreed to introduce a
mandatory 10% social value
criteria for all procurements over
£500k. Social value must be
included as part of the evaluation
methodology for procurements
below £500k though the
percentage will be decided as
appropriate for the type and value
of contract being awarded.
Consultants and specialist
advisors play an important role in
many of our procurement
projects. For very complex or
technical areas it is vital that the
council benefits from expert
knowledge in order to ensure the
best outcomes are delivered for
Lambeth residents. The Council
has recently established a new
Commercial and Advisory team
creating greater internal capability
to assess commercial
opportunities. The use of external
consultants should always be
assessed to ensure it represents
best value and to determine how
social value commitments can be

RAG
rating

Deadline

Owner

Oct 2021

Sasa Glisic

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Sasa Glisic

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Page 326

Item

Item

Recommendation / Action

That the Opportunity Lambeth website be significantly
enhanced and that all jobs arising from procurement
activities be advertised on the site

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

That more consistency is required regarding data
collection and publication and that the establishment of a
monitoring committee to oversee social value
commitments be considered

OSC Work
Programme

That the following items be considered for inclusion in the
work programme for the 2021-22 municipal term:
Issues with Thames Water

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Response
supported. Consultants must
adhere to council policies.
The ‘Opportunity Lambeth’
service has secured £150,000
capital funding to further develop
its digital functions and will
commence development once
project manager is in place. The
Skills and Employment team
remain committed to advertising
all employment opportunities
arising from procurement
activities. We are now working to
establish a corporate approach to
ensure that the team are notified
of these new opportunities in a
timely fashion and that we have a
consistent approach to monitoring
outcomes. The Skills and
Employment division have
ringfenced resource to support
this activity.
Data and reporting are being
addressed as part of the further
development of eCMS. The
governance of the reporting is yet
to be decided and the
appropriateness of the
establishment of a monitoring
committee will be considered.
However, it is important to
understand the role, purpose and
remit of such a committee. This
will be considered in consultation
with the lead Cabinet Member
and the Transformation and
efficiency champion.
Items added to the future work
programme.

RAG
rating

Deadline

Owner

Dec 2021

Sasa Glisic

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Dec 2021

Sasa Glisic

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Democratic
Services

G

April 2022

Page 327

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

Accepted/
Rejected

Item

Recommendation / Action
-

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Benefit process and complaints
Road traffic collisions/road safety

14 July 2021: Care Home Provision and Delivery in Lambeth
Recommendation / Action

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

To improve person centred care planning and ensure
care pathways were joined up and understood by the
public, Adult Social Care should:
- Develop guidance, including a plain English route
map, to help service users and carers navigate the
system;
- Provide a single point of contact for questions about
care home provision and delivery in Lambeth; and
- Ensure each care home resident had a dedicated
point of contact so both service users and carers
know who to contact if they have a question about
their care.

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

The Council’s support for care homes during the
coronavirus pandemic, including the provision of advice,
guidance, training and equipment, be commended.

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

Care homes and carers be thanked for providing service
users with outstanding support during the coronavirus
pandemic.

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

The Council introduces a care worker of the year award,
to recognise the outstanding care provided across the
borough.

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Jane
Bowie/Fiona
Connolly

A
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)

1. Producing guidance
including a map
2. Establishing a SPoC for all
care home residents
Accepted

Accepted

November 2021: Adult Social
Care is working with agencies
on this. When agreed will
produce updated guidance,
update website, produce a map
and clarify SPOC for users and
families
Letter to Council officers
providing support, public health
and commissioners

1. Guidance
– March
2022
2. December
2021

September
2021

Jane Bowie

September
2021

Michelle
Homer/Jane
Bowie

July 2022

Jen
Burgess/Jan
e Bowie

Letter to all care homes
including message for care staff
Accepted

Accepted

Establish award event, to align
with Council staff awards, for
2022 with nominations including
from sector for 21-22

G
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)
G
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)
A
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)

Page 328

Item

Item
Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

Recommendation / Action
Adult Social Care work across the Council and with
colleagues and partners, including providers, to raise the
profile of the work done by care homes and promote
opportunities for a career in care homes.

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Response
Through NWDA multi-agency
workstream
November 2021: This has now
been implemented into BAU
processes

Deadline

Ongoing

Owner
Jane
Bowie/Cathy
Ingram

Investigate potential
Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

To aid recruitment, to investigate whether it would be
possible for Opportunity Lambeth to work with Care
Homes across the borough.

The Council sign up to UNISON’s Ethical Care Charter
and ensure those working in care homes receive
payment of their salary for periods when they are on sick
leave, are given appropriate training, receive regular
appraisals/pay reviews and feel supported.

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

Lessons learnt in relation to Covid-19 should be shared
with the Overview and Scrutiny Committee within 6 – 12
months. This should cover matters in relation to both
care home provision and delivery during the pandemic,
with input from service users and carers. To ensure
service users and carers are listened to and heard,
thought should be given to the methodology that is used,
and by who, to capture these experiences.

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

All care homes should have a clear, transparent and well
publicised complaints procedure, setting out how to raise
concerns freely and confidentially, who to contact and
how to appeal.

Under
consideration

Accepted

January 2022

UNISON’s Ethical Care Charter
relates to home care not care
home services – the regulator
CQC and commissioners retain
oversight that care home staff
do remain supported including
through completion of appraisals
and provision of training and
adoption of all the remaining
elements of the Charter for
home care services is currently
under political consideration.
Build on review report
completed by public health April
2021 by collating views /
experiences of residents and
carers to produce 1 composite
report

Jane Bowie

July 2022

October 2021
November 2021: Selected
homes will be requested to send
an example of complaint

Jane
Bowie/Ese
Iyasere/
Healthwatch
?

Confirm every care home has
appropriate complaints policy
and procedure in place
Accepted

Jade
Holvey/Jane
Bowie

Michelle
Homer/Jane
Bowie

G
(last
update
10
Novembe
r 2021)
A
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)

A
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)

A
(last
update
10
Novembe
r 2021)
G
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)

Page 329

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

Accepted

RAG
rating

Item

Recommendation / Action

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

To help create an atmosphere where workers feel able
to report concerns, the Council should ensure all care
homes have a whistleblowing policy and ensure staff are
aware that they can raise concerns freely and
confidentially.

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

The Council ensures all care homes hold regular
meetings for families and carers, with suitable
safeguards established to support, and hear from,
residents who are not visited/supported by friends or
family.

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

A report on the future use of Minnie Kidd House, setting
out care provided, environmental issues, including work
required for the building to be compliant with fire safety
standards, and next steps, be considered by Overview
and Scrutiny at a future committee meeting, with input
from Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust.

Accepted

Accepted

Response
received and managed as per
their policy, in the last 6 months.
Confirm all care homes have
whistleblowing policy in place
and staff are made aware of
how to access

Confirm all care homes have
regular resident and carer
meetings in place and systems
to ensure views of residents
without visitors get captured

Deadline

Owner

October 2021

Michelle
Homer/Jane
Bowie

October 2021

Jen
Burgess/Jan
e Bowie

RAG
rating
G
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)
G
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)

To draft as supplement to
annual ASC complaints report.

September
2022

Accepted

Accepted

To be included in the agenda for
December 2021

December
2021

Jane Bowie

Jane Bowie

A
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)

G

Page 330

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

An annual report on care homes be provided to both
Overview and Scrutiny and Cabinet to provide details
on:
Monitoring and inspection, including data from the
Care Quality Commission (CQC) and Lambeth’s
own commissioners;
How CQC ratings in Lambeth compared to other
boroughs;
The challenges and opportunities for staff and
service providers – including information on staffing
levels, vacancies and future staffing requirements;
The experiences of service users and carers,
including feedback on the care and services
received;
The number of complaints received as well as
lessons learnt; and
The impact of Brexit and Covid-19, including the
supply of personal protective equipment (PPE).

Accepted/
Rejected

Item

Recommendation / Action

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

To help maximise health and wellbeing in care homes,
schemes that increase community interaction and
encourage residents to get involved in local activities,
including interaction with ward councillors, should be
supported.

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

An officer briefing on future care models be provided to
Councillors.

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Response
To be included in NWDA
workstream (action no. 5)
November 2021: This has now
been implemented into BAU
processes

Deadline

Ongoing

Briefing with outline timelines to
be presented
Accepted

January 2022

Owner
Jane
Bowie/Cathy
Ingram

Jade
Holvey/Jane
Bowie

RAG
rating
G
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)
A
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)

12 October 2021: Climate Emergency Response/LTN Commission
Recommendation / Action

Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update

That the findings of the Citizens’ Assembly form the
basis of the Council’s carbon reduction action plan,
and that the Council continue to involve residents in
discussions on climate change.
That the Council does more to encourage reduction
in household and business waste generation and to
increase reuse and recycling in line with targets,
through the use of incentives, penalties, improved
communication and best practice from equivalent
authorities and community reuse schemes.

Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update
Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update
Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update

Accepted/
Rejected
Accepted

Accepted

That the Council prioritises the retrofitting of its
most energy inefficient homes, particularly onstreet properties.

Accepted

That the option of incentivising private occupiers
and landlords to improve the energy efficiency of
their homes be explored, particularly through cooperative and community energy providers.

Accepted

Response

Deadline

Owner

April 2022

Hannah
Jameson

April 2022

Hannah
Jameson

April 2022

Hannah
Jameson

April 2022

Hannah
Jameson

RAG
rating
A

Page 331

Item

Item

Accepted/
Rejected

That the Committee be provided a strategic
overview of how the Council and its partners work
together on climate change mitigations and
adaptations.

Accepted

That details of the targets, outcomes and evidence
for the interventions included in the report and
action plan be provided to the Committee.

Accepted

That the Committee be provided details of how the
Council will continue to involve residents in the
development of its carbon reduction action plan.

Accepted

That details of the Communications Strategy and
how it will be publicised to residents be provided to
the Committee.

Accepted

That the Committee be provided details of flood
mitigation actions to be taken in the near future,
including targets and expected outcomes.

Accepted

That the Council works with partners, particularly
Thames Water, to ensure that flooding is
addressed in an adequate and timely manner.

Accepted

That the Council’s targets on transport emissions
be clarified to the Committee and that a 2030 target
for net zero emissions relating to transport be
adopted.

Accepted

That details of the forthcoming Road Safety
Strategy be provided to the Committee, particularly
regarding the involvement of young people in its

Accepted

Response

Deadline

Owner

April 2022

Hannah
Jameson

April 2022

Hannah
Jameson

April 2022

Hannah
Jameson

April 2022

Hannah
Jameson

April 2022

Hannah
Jameson

April 2022

Hannah
Jameson

April 2022

Hannah
Jameson

April 2022

Hannah
Jameson

RAG
rating

Page 332

Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update
Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update
Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update
Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update
Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update
Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update
Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update
Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update

Recommendation / Action

Item

Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update

development and the work of partners such as
Transport for London and schools.
That the Committee be provided with details of the
Council’s current demolitions policy, the Mayor of
London’s guidance on demolitions and the Royal
Academy of Engineering’s proposals on a
presumption against demolition.
To approve the report for presentation to Cabinet
subject to consideration of the following comments:
1. That a strategic overview of the implementation
of Low Traffic Neighbourhoods be conducted
with a view to provide guidance on how similar
interventions could be implemented in an
evidence-based manner in the future.
2. That local people’s feedback is listened to and
that the Council proactively seeks to resolve
conflict and disagreement amongst residents.
3. That the Council ensures that the needs of
disabled people are met.
4. That the feedback and needs of individual
businesses, particularly those negatively
affected, be considered and responded to.
5. That communications be utilised effectively
across the Council to ensure residents and
businesses are aware of LTNs and any
changes.

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

April 2022

Accepted

Owner

RAG
rating

Hannah
Jameson

November 2021: The report
was approved at Cabinet on 22
November 2021

Accepted

Nov 2021

Hannah
Jameson/
Simon
Phillips

G
(last
update
22.11.21)

Owner

RAG
rating

10 January 2022: Minnie Kidd House/Medium Term Financial Strategy/Benefits
Item
Minnie Kidd
House

Recommendation / Action
That the following questions be forwarded to
officers for response outside the meeting:

Accepted/
Rejected
Accepted

Response

Deadline
July 2022

Jane
Bowie/GSTT

Page 333

Low Traffic
Neighbourhoods
Commission:
Draft Report

Recommendation / Action

Item

Medium Term
Financial Strategy

 Members requested the report, or an extract,
from the external review referred to in Appendix
1.
 There were discrepancies on the affected
residents, such as the third resident who had
not moved by December 2020 who was not
referred to in Appendix 1.
 Members had been informed that a decision on
the site would be made in spring 2021, but the
building was still empty, and requested that
other uses, such as accommodation for NHS
staff, be considered.
 Consultation with the local community on the
future of the site was essential, and residents
would like the site to continue to be used for
health purposes.
 Members requested that the Council and GSTT
apologise to affected families.
 Members requested that more information on
the legal basis on the oversight of the plans for
Minnie Kidd House.
 More consideration and scrutiny on the
decision-making
process
was
needed,
particularly given the issues that were made
earlier in the process.
To ensure that communications on available
Council funding and how to access this funding be
made available, particularly to small organisations
supporting vulnerable groups.
To provide the Committee information on
commissioning small organisations and the third
sector, including on the role of Integrate and an
equalities analysis of the organisations
commissioned.

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Owner

RAG
rating

July 2022

Christina
Thompson

G
(last
updated
26.01.22)

July 2022

Christina
Thompson/Pr
ocurement

Deadline

Page 334

Medium Term
Financial Strategy

Recommendation / Action

Accepted

Accepted

January 2022: This information
was provided to Members via
email

Item
Medium Term
Financial Strategy

Medium Term
Financial Strategy

Medium Term
Financial Strategy

Medium Term
Financial Strategy

Medium Term
Financial Strategy

Benefits and
Welfare Support

Benefits and
Welfare Support
Benefits and
Welfare Support

That the Council be mindful of retaining and
supporting staff, and to consult and fully inform
them of proposed changes in the Council.
To provide the Committee with a breakdown on the
sources of parking income.
That the delivery of social returns in relation to fees
and charges be prioritised, be assessed annually,
and that outcomes be monitored.
To consult with the Mayor of London to ensure
local and London-wide advertising policies align.
That the Committee welcomes the absence of new
savings targets, but that the Committee be
provided with a six-monthly update on progress
and the impact on residents.
To update both Overview and Scrutiny Committee
and Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee on a
quarterly basis on performance of HRA contractors
on repairs and voids, to include details of any
penalties issued.
That the Council recognise the need for additional
community help for recent migrants, including
access to interpretation and translation
To explore further methods of improving the
Council’s relationship with DWP.
To further improve and revise communications with
residents and to trial with users within six months.

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

July 2022

Christina
Thompson

July 2022

Christina
Thompson/P
arking (Neil
Fenton)

Accepted

July 2022

Christina
Thompson

Accepted

July 2022

Christina
Thompson

Accepted

July 2022

Christina
Thompson

Accepted

July 2022

Christina
Thompson/
Housing (Neil
Euesden)

Accepted

July 2022

Accepted

July 2022

Accepted

July 2022

Accepted

Accepted

January 2022: This information
was provided to Members via
email

RAG
rating

G
(last
updated
21.01.22)

Page 335

Medium Term
Financial Strategy

Recommendation / Action

Item

Benefits and
Welfare Support

Benefits and
Welfare Support

Benefits and
Welfare Support

Benefits and
Welfare Support

To acknowledge the value of the Council’s
relationships with external organisations such as
Centre 70 and CAML, and the work of external
organisations, and calls for their continued support.
To provide additional opportunities for residents to
provide feedback on the service they receive, and
to report on this annually.
That officers provide the Committee with the Advice
Service Review report.
To provide specific benefits advice for people on
zero hours contracts.
To analyse the number of people without recourse
to public funds approaching the Council.

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Accepted

July 2022

Accepted

July 2022

Accepted

July 2022

Accepted

July 2022

Accepted

July 2022

Owner

RAG
rating

Owner

RAG
rating

Page 336

Benefits and
Welfare Support

Recommendation / Action

02 February 2022: Events Scrutiny Commission/Employment and Skills
Item

Recommendation / Action

Events Scrutiny
Commission
Action Plan
Update

That job opportunities relating to events be
maximised, particularly in disadvantaged areas
such as Tulse Hill.

Events Scrutiny
Commission
Action Plan
Update
Events Scrutiny
Commission

That the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on
events continue to be reviewed, and that the
appropriateness of the framework be
considered.
That the Committee requests that the Council
prioritise personal safety in parks, both during

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Kevin Crook

Kevin Crook

Kevin Crook

Recommendation / Action

Action Plan
Update

events and normal use, in light of the murder of
Sarah Everard and continuing youth violence.
That the Council listens and engages with key
stakeholders to minimise and mitigate against
potential negative impacts from events.
That the Committee be provided with the full
evaluation of the Skills and Employment
Programme.
That the findings of the review of the South
London BID Recruitment Service be shared
with the Committee and be used to inform
future, more strategic programmes.
That vulnerable groups, particularly Black,
Asian and Multi-Ethnic people, at risk of falling
out of employment be identified with a view of
helping them return to work, including the
aftercare provided after the end of
programmes.
That programmes be designed with flexibility,
particularly for parents and carers, such as the
use of flexible hours, subsidised childcare and
the consideration of a four-day week pilot.
That the work between schools and
Employment and Skills continue, and that the
Careers Strategy be shared with the
Committee.
That social media messaging and promotion of
programmes, particularly those aimed at young
people, be continued and improved.

Events Scrutiny
Commission
Action Plan
Update
Skills and
Employment
Strategy - One
Year On
Skills and
Employment
Strategy - One
Year On

Skills and
Employment
Strategy - One
Year On

Skills and
Employment
Strategy - One
Year On
Skills and
Employment
Strategy - One
Year On
Skills and
Employment
Strategy - One
Year On

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Kevin Crook

Alison May

Alison May

Alison May

Alison May

Alison May

Alison May

Page 337

Item

Recommendation / Action

Skills and
Employment
Strategy - One
Year On
Skills and
Employment
Strategy - One
Year On
Skills and
Employment
Strategy - One
Year On

That the role of Youth Hubs be reviewed for
their effectiveness in helping young people into
work.
That the value for money of grants to external
organisations be properly assessed, with clear
benchmarks for each programme.
That care leavers continue to be prioritised in
being prepared for work, considering the
additional challenges faced.
That as far as possible, migrants be identified
to ensure they can be well-informed of their
rights and the support available in a systematic
manner.

Skills and
Employment
Strategy - One
Year On

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Alison May

Alison May

Alison May

Alison May

Page 338

Item

